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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of CARATLANE TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of CARATLANE TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
(the “Company”), which comprise the standalone balance sheet as at 31 March 2022. and the standalone
statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), standalone statement of changes in equity
and standalone statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as ‘standalone financial statements’).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022, and its profit and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by
us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters (‘K AM”) are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
\k[)/and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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CARATLANE TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Revenue Recognition

Refer note 21 and 3(i) to the standalone financial statements

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Company recognises revenue when the
control of goods being sold is transferred to the
customer. A substantial part of Company’s
revenue relates to jewellery which involves large
number of individual sales contracts having varied
contractual terms with retail customers, online
customers and franchisees. This increases the risk
of misstatement of the timing and amount of
revenue recognised to achieve specific
performance targets or expectations.

The Company and its external stakeholders focus
on revenue as a key performance indicator.

In view of the above we have identified revenue
recognition as a key audit matter.

In view of the significance of the matter, we
applied the following audit procedures in this area,
among other procedures, to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence in respect of revenue
that has been recognized:

1. Assessed the appropriateness of the accounting
policy for revenue recognition as per relevant
accounting standard.

2. We evaluated the design and implementation

of key internal financial controls and their
operating effectiveness with respect to revenue
recognition transactions selected on a sample
basis. These included general IT controls and
key application controls over the IT system
which govern revenue recognition, including
access controls and controls over program
changes.

3. We perused selected samples of key contracts

with customers and franchisees to understand
terms and conditions particularly relating to
acceptance of goods.

4. We performed substantive testing of online
and retail sales by selecting samples of sales
made online and at the retail outlets using
statistical sampling and tested the underlying
documents, which included tracing sales to
collection reports and bank statements. For
franchisee sales (other than retail sales), we
performed substantive testing using statistical
sampling and tested the underlying
documentation including verification of
invoices and collections thereon.

5. We tested, selected samples of sales
transactions made immediately pre and post
year end, agreed the period of revenue
recognition to the underlying documents.

6. We scrutinised manual journals posted to
revenue to identify unusual items.
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CARATLANE TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Inventories

The key audit matter

Refer note 10 and 3(vi) to the standalone financial statements

How the matter was addressed in o_ur audit

The Company’s inventories primarily comprises
jewellery  (consisting of gold, diamonds,
gemstones etc.). The Company holds inventory at
various locations including factories, fulfillment
centers, stores (retail outlets) and third-party
locations.

There is a significant risk of loss of inventory given
the high value and nature of the inventory
involved.

In view of the above, we have identified existence
of physical inventories as a key audit matter.

4, For

In view of the significance of the matter we applied
the following audit procedures in this area, among
other procedures, to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence:

1.  We evaluated the design, implementation
and
tested the operating effectiveness of key
controls that the Company has in relation to
safeguarding and physical verification of
inventories including the appropriateness of
the  Company’s  standard  operating
procedures for conducting, recording and
reconciling  physical  verification of
inventories and tested the implementation
thereof.

2. We evaluated the design, implementation

and operating effectiveness of general IT
controls and key application controls over
the Company's IT system including those
relating to recording of inventory quantities
on occurrence of each sale transaction,
including access controls and controls over
program changes.

3. For sampled locations, we attended physical
verification of stocks conducted by the
Company, performed roll-back and roll-
forward procedures as at the year end, where
applicable. We also performed surprise stock
counts at selected stores on a sample basis.
We also checked on a sample basis
reconciliation of inventories as per physical
inventory verification and book records.

samples selected using statistical
sampling, we obtained independent
confirmations of inventories held with third
parties.
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CARATLANE TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)
Other Information

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s Director’s report, but does not include the
standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs, profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone

Q‘}ﬁnancial statements.
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CARATLANE TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of standalone financial statements and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were

of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore

the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes

public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter

should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
A\){be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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CARATLANE TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

(A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the standalone statement of changes in equity and the standalone
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March
2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure B”.

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

a)

b)

d)

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2022 on its
financial position in its standalone financial statements - Refer note 35 to the standalone
financial statements;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company;

(i) The Management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in the note 41 to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or
kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate

‘\ Beneficiaries.
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CARATLANE TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued)

(ii) The Management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the note 41 to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been received
by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii)Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (d) (i) and (d) (ii) contain any material mis-statement.

e) The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions
of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid
down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other
details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

for BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 101248W/W-100022

Partner
Membership No. 064597
UDIN: 22064597AIEZJY2173

Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 30, 2022
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Caratlane Trading Private Limited

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the standalone financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2022
(Referred to in our report of even date)

(1) (a)

(b)

(©

(d)

(e

(i) (a)

(b)

\y-

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical
verification of its property, plant and equipment, by which all property, plant and equipment
are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. In accordance with this
programme, certain property, plant and equipment were verified during the year. In our
opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of
the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

The Company does not have any immovable property (other than properties where the
Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee).
Accordingly, clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its property,
plant and equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the
year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending
against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami
Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The inventory, except goods-in-transit and stocks lying with third parties, has been
physically verified by the management during the year. For stocks lying with third parties at
the year-end, written confirmations have been obtained and for goods-in-transit subsequent
evidence of receipts has been linked with inventory records. In our opinion, the frequency
of such verification is reasonable, and procedures and coverage as followed by Management
were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the physical stocks
and the book records that were more than 10% in the aggregate of each class of inventory.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working
capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions
on the basis of security of current assets. In our opinion, the quarterly returns or statements
filed by the Company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the
books of account of the Company.
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Caratlane Trading Private Limited

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

(iii)

Ny

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not provided any guarantee
or security or granted any advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, limited liability partnership or any other parties during the year. The
Company has made investment and has granted a loan to a Company during the year, in
respect of which the requisite information is as below. The Company has not made any
investments or granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to firms, limited liability partnership
or any other parties during the year.

(a) Based on the audit procedures carried out by us and as per the information and
explanation given to us, the Company has provided a loan as mentioned below:

Rs. in lakhs
Particulars Loans
Aggregate amount during the year
- Subsidiary 22(
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date o
- Subsidiary =l

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures conducted by us, in our opinion, the investments made during the year and the
terms and conditions of the grant of the loan during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial
to the interest of the Company.

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, in case of the loan given, the repayment of
principal and payment of interest has been stipulated. There were no amounts due for
repayment of principal and payment of interest during the year. Further, the Company has
not given any advance in the nature of loan to any party during the year.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety
days in respect of the loan given. Further, the Company has not given any advances in the
nature of loans to any party during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there is no loan granted falling due during the
year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of
existing loans given to same parties. Further, the Company has not given any advance in the
nature of loan to any party during the year.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms
r period of repayment.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not given any
loans, or provided any guarantee or security as specified under Section 185 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act™). In respect of the investments made and loan given by the Company,
in our opinion the provisions of Section 186 of the Act have been complied with. Further,
according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not provided any guarantee
or security as specified under Section 186 of the Act.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
from the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for any of the
products manufactured by the Company. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not
applicable.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, in our opinion, amounts deducted/
accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including
Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-Tax,
Duty of Customs, Cess and other statutory dues have generally been regularly
deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities. The
Company does not have liability in respect of Service Tax, Duty of Excise, Sales
Tax and Value Added Tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory
dues has been subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance,
Income-Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and other statutory dues were in arrears as at
31 March 2022, for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

) According to the information and explanations given to us, and on the basis of our
examination of the records, statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax,
Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess
or other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute are
as follows:

Statute/ Nature of dues | Amount* | Period to which | Forum where the dispute
the amount | in pending

relates
(Financial year)

Sales Tax/ Value Added | 69,504,340 2016-2018 Upto Commissioner level

B (889,586)

* the amounts disclosed are excluding interest and penalties, wherever applicable and

\“‘)/ amount in brackets represent amounts paid under protest.
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Caratlane Trading Private Limited

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

(viii)

(ix) (a)

(b)

(c)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed
any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of accounts, in the tax
assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of
loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of

(e)

the balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have
been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of
the standalone financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiary (as defined under the Act). Further, the Company does not hold any investment
in any associate or joint venture (as defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March
2022.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us,

) (a)

(b)

(xi) (a)
(b)

()

)%

we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities
held in its subsidiary (as defined under the Act). Further, the Company does not hold any
investment in any associate or joint venture (as defined under the Act) during the year ended
31 March 2022.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(x)(a) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the
year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanation given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company or
has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12)
of Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under
rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company
during the year while determining the nature, timing and extent of audit procedures.
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Caratlane Trading Private Limited

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, the Company is
not a Nidhi Company as prescribed under Section 406 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph
3(xii)(a)(b)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
Sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, and details of all the related party
transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

(a) Based on the information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our
opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature
of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions
with its directors or persons connected to its directors and hence, provisions of Section 192
of the Companies Act, 2013, are not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank
of India Act 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not
applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanation provided to us, the Group, as per the
provisions of the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016), has
five registered Core Investment Companies and one unregistered Core Investment
Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however,
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state
that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give
any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year

“\} from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

(xx) The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

Jfor BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101248W/W-100022

Vs

Vikash Gup

Partner

Membership Number: 064597
UDIN: 22064597AIEZJY2173

Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 30, 2022
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ report on the standalone financial statements of
CARATLANE TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED for the period ended 31 March 2022.

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid standalone financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
CARATLANE TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2022 in conjunction
with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2022,
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter
referred to as “the Act”).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

QOur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal

financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of

internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of

such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating

the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures

selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
\]\>/()fthe standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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CARATLANE TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s report (continued)

Auditor’s responsibility (continued)

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

for BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 101248 W/W-100022

Wit

Vikash Gupt:

Partner

Membership No. 064597
UDIN: 22064597AIEZ)JY2173

Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 30, 2022



Caratlane Trading Private Limited
Standalone Bslance Sheet
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note Asat As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5(i) 2,995 2,007
Capital work-in-progress S(iii) 2 -
Right-of-use assets 6 7416 4,487
Intangible assets 5(ii) 1,148 697
[ntangible asscts under development 5(iv) 479 si4
Financial assets
i Investments (i) 109
1i. Loans receivable (i) 227 .
iil. Other financial assets i) 4,445 4,566
Deferred tax assets {net) 8 5,097 -
Income tox assets (net) 3 115 96
Other non-current assets 9 924 1.868
22,957 14,235
Current assets
[nventories 10 53,380 25,453
Financial assets
i. Investments 110 - 1,252
ii. Trade reccivables 11(ii) 2,051 882
iii Cash and cash equivalents 11(iif) 426 495
iv Other bank balance 11(iv) 178 67
v. Lonns receivable 11(v) 198 73
vi. Other financial assets L1(vi) 1,486 1,178
Qther current assets 12 8,792 4,088
66,511 33,488
89,468 47,723
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 13 665 665
Other equity 14 11,067 1.123
11,732 1,788
Liabilities
Non-current tiabilities
Financial liabilities
i, Borrowings 15(i) 219 R70
ii. Lease habilities 15(i1) 10,293 7813
iii. Other financial liabilities 15(1ii) 32 304
Other non-current liabilities 16 108 128
Provisions 17 674 401
11,606 9,516
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i Borrowings 18(i) 18,153 12,058
ii. Gold on loan 18(i1) 23,643 11,565
iii. Leasc liabilitics 18(iii) 1,849 1,684
iy, Trade payables 18(iv)
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 3.970 615
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 12,925 7093
v. Other financial liabilities 18(v) 1,141 101
Other current liabilities 19 4,097 3.135
Provisions 20 352 164
66,130 36,419
. 89,468 47,723

Significant accounting policies
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial staterments.

N

J

As per our report of even datc attached

for BSR & Co. LLP
Churtered Accountants
Firm registratjon l%ﬁt 101248W/ W-100022

Vikash Gupta

Purtner

Membership No, (4597
Place: Bengaluru

Date: April 30, 2022

Manayoe Divector
DIN: 01683592

Manoj Bhanawat
Chief Financial Qfficer
Place: Bengaluru

Date: April 29, 2022

for and on pehalf of the I:gnl of Directors of
H TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
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.
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—

/

Ashok Wumar Sonthalia
Direcior
DIN: 03259683

W
Ahons DasGupt:

Company Secrelary
Place: Bengaluru
Dale: April 29, 2022




Caratlane Trading Private Limited
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars Pote 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Revenue from operations 21 125,717 71,570
Other income n 1.001 734
Total income (1) 126,718 72,304
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 23(1) 93,497 43,097
Purchase of stock-in-trade 23(ii) 11,852 10,708
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress 23(ii1) (20,491) (3,734)
Employce benefits expense 24 8,951 5,792
Finance costs 25 2,084 2,068
Depreciation and amortisation expense 26 2,653 2,183
Other expenses 27 23,356 12.028
Total expenses (11) 121.902 72,142
Profit before tax (11T} [(1)-(IT)] 4.816 162
Tax expense (1V)
- Current tax =
- Deferred tax 8 (5.057)
Profit after tax (A) [(HIT)-(1V)] 9.873 162
Other comprehensive income
Ttems that will not be reclassified subsequently to the statement of profit and loss:

- Remeasurements of empleyee defined benefit plans (157) 5

- Income-tax on above 40

Items that will be reclassified to the statement of profit and loss:

- Effective portions of gains and loss on designated portion of hedging 2 (2)
instruments in a cash flow hedge

- Income-tax on above

Total other comprehensive income (B) (115) 3

Total comprehensive income for the year (A+B) 9,758 165

Earnings per equity share (par value of Rs, 2 per share)

Basic earnings per share ' 29 68 049
Dituted eamings per share 28 29 48 048
Significant accounting pelicies 3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

for BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm n:;_'lslr'mml/u‘@hcr 101248W/ W-100022

e

Vikash Gupta Ashok Kumar Sonthalia
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership Nol064597 DIN: 01683592 DIN: 03259683

Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 30, 2022

Maunoj Bhanawa Ahona Das Gupta
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru

Date: April 29, 2022 Date: April 29, 2022




Caratlane Trading Private Limited
Standalone st of changes in equity

(Al amownis in INR lakhs, unless orherwise staied)
A. Equity share eapital

Particulars Amount
Balance at the April 1, 2020 665
Changes in equity share capital during the year -

As at March 31, 2021 663
Changes in equity share capitgl during the year® 0
As at March 31, 2022 665

* Represenis amount less than Rs | lokh

1. Other equity
T T N
. Other comprehensive income
Particulars Securities Hlack oPlfom Retained Re-measurement of Total
. outstanding i Cash flow hedpe
premium account earnings R defined benefit
obligation

Balance at the April 1, 2020 40,923 684 (40,553) - {132) 922

Premium on shares issued during the year 2 2) = L - {0)
Profit for the year . 162 - - 162

Employee stock oplion expense 36 - - . 36

Oniher wmprchmmw income for the year {net vl laxes) - - (2} 5 3

Total comprehiensive income far the year = - 162 (2) 5 165

Balance as at March 31, 2021 40,925 718 (40.391) (2) (127 1,123

Balance as at April 1, 2021 40,925 78 (40,391) 2) (127) 1,123

Premium on shares issued during the year 53 (32), - - - 21

Profit for the year - 9,873 - E 9873

Employee stock option expense 165 - - - 165

Uiier camprehensave meonc for the year (net of taxes) - 2 {1tn (115)
Total comprehensive Income for the year - - 9.873 2 aim 9.758

Balance as ai March 3§, 2022 40,978 851 (30.518) - {244) 11.067

Significant accounting polici ' 3
The accompanying notes are an integral pat of the standalone financial

As per our report of cven date attached

for BSR & Co. LLP
(hariered Accountanis
Firm repsteation number 101248W: W- 100072

Vikash Guptu
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Membership Mo
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Managing Director Direcior
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Chief inancial Officer Company Secretary
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Caratlane Trading Private Limited
Standulone statement of cash flow
(AN amonunts i INR lakhs, wndess otheniise stated)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

A. Cash flows from operating activilies

Profit before tax

Adjusmients for:

Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Allowance for doubtful receivables and lad debts written off
Interest income

Interest income on financinl assets carricd at amortised cost
Deferred rental income and rent cqualisicion

Gain on sale of investment (net)

Finance cost

(Profit)/loss on salc of property. plant nod cquipment
Property, plant and cquipment written ort’

Intangible sscts written oft’

Employec stock option expensc

Operating profit before working capital changes

Change in operating asscts and liabilitics

(Increase) decreasc in trade reccivables

(Incicasc)/ decrease in inventories

(Inereasc) decrease in loans receivable. financial and other ssets
Increase/ {decrease) in other financial habilites

Increase/ (decrese) in provisions

Increase/ (decrease) in gold on loan and trade paysbles

[ncrease/ (decrease) in other liabilitics

Cash (used in) / gencrated from operating activities before taxes
Income taxes paid (Net of refunds)

Net cash (vutflow) / inflow from opernting activities (A)

B. Cash flows fram investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and cquipment and intangible assets and intangible assets

under development

Procecds from sale of property. plant and cquipment
Investiment in subsidiary company

Loan given during the year

Purchase/sale of mutual fund ipvestments, net
Interest received

{Investment)/redemption in other bank belances
Lease payments received from sub-leases.

Net cash used in investing aclivitics (B}

C. Cash flows from financing activi
Payment lowards lease liabilities (pnncipal)

Payment lowards leasc liabilitics (Interest)

Repayment from borrowings

Proceeds from borowings

Interest paid

Proceed from issue of equity shares

Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities (C)

Net cash (decrcasc)/increasc in cash and cnsh equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash cquivalents os at the begianing of the year
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year

Debt reconciliation statement in accardunce with Ind AN 7
Borrowings

Opening balance

Repayment of borrowings

Proceeds from homowings

Closing balance

Reconciliation of Lease liability
Opening balance

Payments made during the ycar
Non-cash changes

Closing balance

Significant accounting policics

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statcments

As per our report of cven date attached
fur BSR & Co., LLP

Chartered Accountaniy
Jrm registeagion pumber: 101248W/ W-100022

Vikash Gupta
Fariner
Membership No $04307
Place: Bengaluru

Date: Apnil 30, 2022

4816 162
2,653 2,183
27 19
(N (b)
(566) (414)
(78) (B‘?)
(33) (43)
2,084 2.06R
(14) 8
33 -
. 23
165 36
9,078 3,947
(1,169) (66)
(27,927) (5.353)
(4.146) (1,755)
872 3
304 65
21,150 5237
942 1301
(896) 3379
(19) 129
(915) 3.508
(2,639) (1,563)
11 19
(109) e
(227) -
1,285 (1,208)
567 5
(1 (63)
614 915
(509) 11,825)
(2.139) (1.465)
(874) (920)
(70.491) (38,237)
75,936 40,438
(1,099) (1.148)
2 .
1,355 (1.332)
(69) 351
11giii) 495 144
11(ik) 426 495
12,928 10,727
(70,492) (38.237)
75,936 40,438
18.372 ) 12,928
9,497 0,147
(.013) (2,385)
5,658 2735
12,142 9,497
3
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Caratlane Trading Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

\\Lﬁ . Note 36 - financial instruments.

12

Corporate information

Caratlane Trading Private Limited (the Company) is incorporated in India The registered office of the Company is located at 2nd,3rd & 4th Floor,No 32. Rutland
Gate 2nd Street, Khader Nawaz Khan Road, Nugambakkam, Chennai, Tamil Nadu - 600006, India The Company is engaged in activities of Manufacturing and
trading of jewcllery

Basis of preparation and presentation

(i) Statement of compliance

The standalone financial stalements comply in all material aspects with the Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') notificd under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companics (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 read with Section 133 of the Companics Act, 2013
(‘the Act') and other relevant provision of the act under the historical cost convention on an accrual basis and going concern except for certain financial instruments
which are measured at fair values natified under the Act and Rules preseribed thereunder (together hereinafier referred to as *Standalone Financial Statements™ or
“financial statements’)

(ii) Basis of measurement

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis under the historical cost convention except for the following items:
. Certain financial assels and liabilites that are measured at fair valuc

b. Sharc based payments that are measured at fair value

¢ Net defined bencfit liability that are measured at fair valuc of present value of defined benefit obligations

d Right of usc asscts and lease liabiitics are measured at Ly market value as per Ind AS 116

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services Fair value is the price that would be received (o
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liahility in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

(ili) Use of estimates, assumptions and judgement

The preparation of standalone financial statcments in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimales and assumplions that affect the
application of accounting policics on the reported amount of asscts and liabilitics, revenues and expenses and disclosure of contingent liabilitics: Such estimates,
assumptions and judgement are based on management’s evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as on the date of financial statements The actual result may
differ from these estimates

Estimates and assumptions are revicwed on a periodic basis Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively

Judgements

{nformation about judgements made in applying accounting poi
staterents is included in the followirg notes:

- Note 30 - Leases — whether an arrngement contains a lense

- Note 31 - Mcasurement of defined benefit obligations - Key actuarial assumptions
- Note 33 - Contract assct and liability

1uics that have the most significant ¢ffects on the amounts recognized in the standalone financial

Assumptions and estimation

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertamlics that have significant risk of resulting in a material adjustmenl in the vear ending 31 March 2022 is
included in the following notes:

- Note § (i) — Useful life of the Property, plant and equipment:

- Note § (ii} — Useful Lifc of the Intangible assets

- Note 8 - Deferred tax assets - Valuation;

- Note 30 - Leases - Lease term and incremental borrowing rate

- Notes 31 - Mcasurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuanal assumptions;
- Nole 33 - Contract asset and liability

- Note 35 .- Contingent liabilities and commitments.

- Note 36 — Fair value measurement of financial instruments

(iv) Functional and prescatation currency

Items included in the standalone financial statements of the Company arc mea
Company operates (i.c the “functional currency”). The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee
functional and presentation currency and 1s rounded-off to the nearest lakhs except when otherwise indicated

sured using the currency of the primary-economic eavironmert i which the
"Rs " or "INR"), which is thc Company's

(v) Mcasurement of fair values

Certain accounting policies and disclosures of the Company require the mcasurcment of faic values, for both financial and non-financial assels and liabilitics.

The Company has an cstablished contiol framework with respect 1o the measurement of fair values and the valuation lcam regulatly reviews significant

unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hicrarchy based on the inputs used in t
- Level 1- quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilitics

- Level 2; inputs other than quoted prices ineluded in Level | that arc observable for the asset or liability, cither dircetly (1 ¢ as prices) or indircetly (i e denved

from prices),
- Level 3; inputs for the asset ar liability that arc not based on obscrvable market data (unobservable inputs)

he valuation techniques as follows:

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a hability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible
If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into a different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the lair value measurement is

categorised in its entirety in the same Jevel of the fair value ierarchy as the lowest level input that is sigmificant to the entire measurement

Further information aboul the assumptions made in the measuring fair values is included in the following notes:




Curatlane Trading Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
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Significant accounting policies

The accounting policics set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these Standalone Financial Statements unless otherwise indicated,

(i) Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised goods ur services to customers in an amount that reflects the consider

reccive in exchange [or those goads or services

ation the Company expects 1o

Sale of products
Revenue from the sale of products is recognised at the point in time when control is (ransferred to the customer

Revenue is measured based on the tansaction price. which s the consideration, net of customér incentives, discounts, variable considerations, payments made 10
cuslomers. other similar charges, s specified in the contract with the customer Additionally, rcvenue excludes taxes collected from customers. which are

subsequently remitted to governmental authorities

Conlract assels are recognised when there is excess of revenue carned aver billings on contracts. Contract assets are classificd as unbilled receivables (only act of
invoicing is pending) when there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is required, as per contractual terms  Uncained and deftrred
revenue (“contract hability”) is recognised when there is billings in excess of revenucs, Advances received for services are reported as liabilities until all conditions
for revenue recognition arc met

[Ive of sigmificant fudgements i revenue fecoghinnen,
« The Company’s contracts with customers could include promises to transfer mulliple poods to a customer The Company assesses the goods promised i a
contract and identifics distinct performance obligations in the contract Identification of distinet performance obligation involves judgement to determine the

deliverables and the ability of the customer (o benefit independently from such deliverables.

« Judgement is alse required to determine the transaction price for the contract The transaction price could be cither a fixed amount of customer consideration or
variable consideration with elements such as volume discounts, performance bonuscs, price concessions and incentives. The transaction price 15 also adjusted for
the efeets of the time value of maney if the contract includes a significant financing component. Any consideration payable to the customer 15 adjusted to the
transaction price, unless it is a payment for a distinct good Iram the customer The cstimated amount of variable consideration is adjusted in the transaction price
only to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recogmised will not oceur and 15 1eassessed at the end of
cach reporting period.

« The Company uses judgement to determine an appropriale standalone selling price for a performance obligation The Company allocates the transaction price to
cach performance obligation on the basis of the relative stand-alone selling price of cach distinct good or service promised in the contract. Where standalone selling
price is not obscrvable, the Company uses the expected cost plus margin approach 1o allocate the transaction price to each distinct performance obligation.

Interest income is recognized as it aczrues in the standalone statement of profit and loss using effective interest rate method.
Commission income is yenerally recognized when the related sale is exceuted as per the termns of the agreement

The Company has determined that the revenues as disclosed in Note 21 are disaggregated into categories that depict how the naturc, amount, tuming and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected by ceonomie factors.

i(a) Other income
Franchisee Signing Fees :Franchisce signing fees is recognised based on the franchisee stores opened during the year which varies based on the location It

excludes taxes remitted {o the goveinment which are recovered from the Franchisee's.

(ii) Property, plant and cquipment
ltems of Property, plant and equipment arc measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, i any

The cost of an item of property, plunt and equipment comprises its purchase price/ acquisition cost, net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import duties and
other taxes (other than [hose subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities), any directly attributable expenditure on making the assct ready for its intended use,
other incidental expenses and interest on borrowings attributable to acquisition of qualifying property, plant and cquipmient up to the date the assct 1s ready for its
intended usc.

Subsequent expenditure on property. plant and equipment after its purchase / completion is capitalized only if such expenditure results in an ingrease in the future
benefits from such asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance

Advance paid towards acquisition of fixed assets outstanding at cach balance sheet date is disclosed as capital advances under non-current assets
Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the standalone statcment of profit or loss Capital work-in-progress
comprises the cost of asscts that are not ready for their intended use at the balance sheet date

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them scparately based on their spuetfic nseful
lives Repairs and mainicnance costs are recognised in the statement of prefit and loss as incurred

The Company identifies and determines cost of each component/ part of property, plant and equipment separately, if the component/ part has a cost which is
significant 1o the total cost of the property, plamt and equipment and has uscful life that is materially different from that of the remaining asset Leaschold
improvements are amortized over the estimated useful Jife of the asset or the lease period whichever is lcss

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recopnised is derccognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Gains ot Josses arising fror de-recognition of Praperty, plant and equipment and intangible asscts are mensured as the differcnce
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of Property, plant and equipment and are recognized in the standalone statement of profit and loss
when the Property, plant and equipment is derecognized




Caratlane Trading Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
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Significant accounting policics (continued)

(ii) Property, plant and cquipment (continued)
Depreciation methods, extimated wsefid life and residual value
Depreciation is calculated using straight-line method ta allocate their cost, net of thei estimated residual valucs, over the useful lives of assets which is as follows:

Asset category Management estimate of Useful life as per
useful life schedute 11
Furniture and fittings 10 years 10 vears
3 years 3 years

Computer cquipment

Computer server 6 years 6 years

Office equipments S years 5 vears
Jewellery machine 15 years 15 years
Vehicles 5 yecars 8 years
Mock jewellery 1 year | vear
Leaschold improvements 4 vears Lease period

Depreciation for assets purchased / sold during the period is proportionally charged.

The residual values. useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and cquipment ase reviewed at cach financial year end and adjusted prospectively,
if appropriate. Based on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management belicves that its estimates of useful lives as given above best represent the
period over which management expects to use these assets. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future cconomic benefits
embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are ireated as changes in accounting estimates

(iii) Intangible assets

(atj Internally generated : Research crd development

Expenditure on research activities s secognized in the statement of profit and loss as incurred

Development expenditure is capitalized as part of the cost of the resulting intangible assct anly if the expenditure can be measured rehiably. the product or process
is technically and commercially feasible, future economie benefits are probable, and the Company intends to and has sulTicient resources to complete development
and to use or sell the asset. Otherwisz, it is recognized in profit or loss as incurred Subsequent to inilial recognition, the asset is measurcd at cost less accumulated
amortization and any accumulated impaitment losses.

(h) Amortization
Amorization is caleulated 1o write off the cost of intangible asscts Jess their estimated residual values over their estimated uscfu! lives using the straight- line
method. and is included in depreciation and amortization in Statement of Profit and Loss.

The cstimated useful lives are as follows.

Useful life

Asset
Computer sofiware 3 years
Caratlanc portal 3 years

Amortization method, useful lives and residual values arc reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate

(iv) Impairment

(a) Financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowsnces using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which arc not fair valued through the statement of
profit and Joss. Expecied credit loss 1s the difference between the contractual cash flows and the cash flows that the cntity expeets to receive, discounted using the
cffective inferest rate Loss allowance for trade receivables 1s measured at an amount cqual to lifetime ECL. For all other financial asscts, expected credit losses are
measured at an amount cqual to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those aic
measured at lifetime ECL, as requited The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the

amaunt that is required 1o he recopnized is recognized as an impainnent gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss

(b) Non-financial assely
Intanpible assets and property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets and property, plant and cquipment arc evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying

amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impaiment testiny:, the recoverable amount (i ¢ the higher of the fair value less cost (o scll and the value-in -
use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the assct does not generate cash flows that are Jargely independent of those from other assets. In such cases,
the recoverable amount 1s determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the asscts exceeds the estimated recoverable amount of the asset. An
impairment loss is reversed in the stitement of profit and loss it there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. The carrying
amount of the asset is increased lo its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any accumulated amertization of depreciation) had no impairmen loss been recognized for the asset in prior years
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3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(v) Leases

Company as a lessee
A contrict is, or contains, a lease 1l the contract conveys the right to control the vse of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideratan To

assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identificd asset, the Company assesses whether:

a the contract involves the use of an identified assct;

b the Company has the right to obtain substantially all the econom ic benefits from use of the asset throughout the period of usc; and
¢. the Company has the right to dircct the use of the asset.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains i lease component, the Company allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on
the basis of the relative stand-alone prices of the lease componcents and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components

“The Company recognises right-of-use assct representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term at the lease commencenient date The cost of the
right-of-use asset measured at inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the leasc liability, adjusted for any lcase payments made al or
before the comneneement date, less any lease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an cstimate of the costs to be incurred by the lessee
dismantling and removing the underlying asset or restoring the underlying asset or site on which it is located

The right-of-use asset is subsequently measurcd at cost less aceumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses. if any and adjusicd for any remeasurement
ol the lease liability

The right-of-usc asscts is depreciated using the straight-linc method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset.
The estimated useful lives of right-of-usc assets arc determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment Right-of-usc assets are tested for
impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of profit
and loss

The lease liability is initiolly measurzd at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if that rale cannot be readily determined. the incremental borrowing rate applicable 10 the cntity within the Company Generally, the
Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the Company, on a lease by lease basis, may
adopt either the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or the incremental borrowing rate for the portfolio as a whole The lease payments shall include
fixed payments, variable lease paymants, residual value guaranices, exercise price of a purchase option where the Company is reasonably certain to excrcise that
oplion and payments of penalties for terminating the leasc, i the lease teem reflects the lessee exercising an oplion fo terminate the leasc.

The Company has clected not to recognise right-of-use asscts and Jcase liabilities for short-term leases of all assets that have a Jease e of 12 months or less and
Jeases of low-value assets The Company recognizes (he lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

When the Company acts as a lessor at the inception, it determines whether each Icase is a finance lease or an operating lease

The Company recogmses lease payieents received under aperating leases as incame on a straipht-line basis over (he leasc term. In case of finance lease, finance
income 15 recopmsed over the lease term based on a4 pattecn reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the lessor’s net investment 1n the lease. When the
Company is an intermediate lessor il accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sub-lease scparately. [t assesses the lease classification of a sub-leasc with
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease. not with reference 1o the underlying asset. 17 a head lease is a short -term lease to which the
Company applies the exemption described above, then it classifics the sub-lcasc as an operating leasc

Ifan arrangement contains a leasc and non-lease components, the Company applies Ind AS 115-Revenue to allocate the consideration in the conuact

(vi) Inventories
{nventorics [other than quantities of gold for which the price 1s yet 1o be determined with the suppliers (Unfixed Gold)) are measured at the lower of cost and nel
realizable value The cost is determmed as follows:
(iy Raw materials are valued at weighted average except solitaires which are valued at the cost of purchnse
(ii) Work-in-progress and finished goods (other than gold) are valued at weighted average cost of production
(i) Traded goods are valued at weighted average / cost of purchasc
(1v) Gold 1s valued on first-in-first-out basis
Cost comprises all costs of purchase including duties and taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable by the Company), freight inwards and other expenditure
direetly attributable to acquisition. Work-in-progress and finished goods include appropriate proportion of overheads.
Unfixed gold is valued at the provistanal gold price prevailing on the date of recerpt of pold
“ Net realizable value represent the est.mated selling price for inventorics less estimated cost of completion and costs necessary to make the sale
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(vii) Forcign currency transactions and balances
Foreign exchange transactions are recorded at the rates of exchanpe prevailing on the dates of the respective transactions Exchange differences arising on forcign

exchange transactions settled during the year arc recognized in the standalone statement of profit and loss for the year

Monctary asscts and liabilitics denominated in forcign currencies as af the standalone balance sheel date are translated at the exchange rates on that date. The
resultamt exchange differences are recognized in the standalone statement of profit and Joss

Non-monetary asscts and liabilities which are carried in terms of historical cosl denominated in foreign currency are tanslated at an exchange rate that
approximates the rates prevalent on the date of the transaction

(viii) Taxation

Income 1ax cxpense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during the year Current and deferred tax are recognized
in standalone statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. m which cuse,
the current and deferred tax arc also recopnized in other comprehensive income or directly in cquity, respectively

a) Current income tax: Current income tax for the current and prior periods arc measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities based on the taxable income for that year The tax rates and fax laws used to compute the amount are those thal are enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date. The Company ofTsels current tax asscts and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts
and where it infends either 1o settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneausly

1) Deferred income tax: Deferred income tax assets and liabilitics are recognized using the balance sheet approach Deferred tax is recognized on lemperary
differcnces at the balance sheet daie beiween the tax bascs of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes, except when the
deferred income fax ariscs from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and aftects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction. The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at cach balance sheet date and
reduced to the extent that it is no fonger probable that sufficient tixable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax assel 1o be utilized

Deferred income tax asscls are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, to the extent that it is prabable that taxable profit will be availible against
which the deductible temporary differences can be utilized Deferred income tax assels arc recognized for carry forward of unused tax credits and unused fax
Jasses, to the extent that there is convineing evidence that waxable profit will be available against which the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax

losses can be utilized

at have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and
¢ recovered or scttled The effect of changes i tax rates
5 the enactment or substantive enactiment date

taxable profits will allow

Deferred income tax asscls and liabiiitics are measured using tax rates and (ax laws th
are expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary diffesences arc expected to b
on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is recognized as an income or cxpense in the period that include:
Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future
the deferred tax asset to be recovered

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilitics are offsct if a legally enforceable right exists 1o set of current tax asscts apainst current tax liabilitics and the delerred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity

3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(ix) Employee benefits

i) Short term employce benefits

All employce benefits payable within twelve months of rendering A
compensated absences and incentives ele , are recognized in the standalone statement of profit and los

he service are classificd as short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, short-term
s for the year in which the cmployee renders the related

service

ii) Defined contribution plan
All ¢ligible employees receive benelit from provident fund. which is a defined contribution plan. Both the cmpleyee and the Company make monthly contribution

1o the fund, which is cqual to a spee:fied percentage of the covercd employee's hasic salary and including other fixed component not linked (o the performance off
employees. The Company has no fuzher obligations under this plan beyond its manthly contributions

iii) Post employment benefits
‘The Company provides for gratuity. a defined benefit plan covering all eligible employees. The present value of obligation under such defined benefit plan is
determined based on actuarial valuation carricd at the year-cnd using the Projected Unit Credit Mcthod, which recognizes cach penod of service as giving tisc (o
additional unit of employce benefit cntitlement and measures cach unit separately to build up the final obligation The obligation is measured at the present value of
the estimated future cash flows. The discount rate used for detcrmining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plans, 1s based on the market
yiclds on Government securities as il the balance sheet date having maturity periods approximating the term of the related obligation The Company recognizes the
net obligation of a defined benefit plan in 1ts balance sheel as an asset or liability Cains and losses through re-measurements of the net defined benefit hability /
(asset) are recognized in other contprehensive income. In accordance with Ind AS, re-measurement gains and losses on defined benefit plans recognized in OCI
are not to be subsequently reclassilied to standalone statement of profit and loss. As required under Ind AS compliant Schedule 111, the Company transfers 1t

immediately 1o retained carnings

cnt based on the salary of (he respective employee and

“The plan provides a lump-sum payient to cligible cemployces at retieement or on termination of employm
at the balance sheet date, carried out by an independent

the years of employment with the Company The gratuity liahility is accrucd based on an actuarial valuation

\\ actuary
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i¥) Compensated absenccs
Compensated absences which arc not expected 1o occur within twelve months after the end of the peried in which the cmployee rendets the related services are
recognized as an actuarially determined linbility at the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date using the projected unit credit

(x) Employee stock option expense

The Company measures compensation cost rclating to share-hased payments using the fair valuation method in accordance with Ind AS 102, Share-BBased
Payment. Compensation expense is amortized over the vesting period of the option on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period for cach scparately
vesting portion of the award as if'the award was in-substance, multiple awards

The cost of equity-setticd transactions is determined by the fuir value at the date when the grant is made using the Black-Scholes-Merton Medel The expected ferm
of an oplion is estimated based on the vesting ferm and conteactual life of the option, Expected volatility during the expected term of the option is based on the
historical volatility of similar compunies Risk frec interest rales arc based on the government securities yield in etfect at the time of the grant.

The cost of equity scttled transactions is recognized, together with a corresponding increase in sharc options outstanding account in equity, over the period in
which the performance andfor service conditions are fulfilled The cumulative expense recognized for equity-settled transactions at cach reporting date until the
vesting date teflects the extent to which the vesting pericd has expired and the company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest The income statement expense or eredit for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognized as at the beginning and end of that period
and is recognized in employee bencfits expense. The dilutive eNect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted

carnings per share.

(xi) Financial instruments
Recognition of financinl assets and financial liabilities:
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial asscts and liabilitics arc initially recognized at fair value Transaction costs that are dircetly ailributable 1o financial asscts and liabilities [other than
financial asscts and liabilities meastred at fair value through piofit and loss (FVTPL)] are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
liabilitics, as appropriate on initial recognition. Transaction costs dircetly attributable to acquisition of financial assets or liabilities measwed at FVTPL are
recognized immediately in the statement of profit and loss

Al recopnized financial assets are subsequently measured i their entirety at either amortized cost or fair valuc, depending on the classification of financial asscts.

A) Financial assets

Classification of financial assels:

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified at

(i) Amortized cost

(ii) Faur value through other comprehensive income (FVOCH)

(iii) Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are not reclassificd subscquent to their initial recognition, excepl if and in the period the Company changes its business model for managing
financial asscts

(i) Imancial ussets carried at umortized cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it 1s held within a busincss model whose objective is to hold the asscl in order 1o collect contractual
cash lows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and inferest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets af fair valwe throug comprelensive incame

A financial assct is subsequently measuted al fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by
both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial assct give rise on specificd dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and inte-est on the principal amuunt outstanding

Jinancial assets uf fair value through profit and {oss
\5 A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued through profit or loss
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(xi) Financial instruments (continued)
B) Financial liabilitics: classification, subsequent measurement and derecognition:

Finemctal Habilities carricd at amortized eost

Financial liabilitics arc subsequently carricd at amortized cost using the effective interest method For trade and other payables matuting within ane year from the
balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value duc to the short maturity of thesc instruments.

Finunciul labilities af fuir value through profit and loss

A financial liabilities which is not classificd in any of the above categories arc subscquently carricd at fair valuc through profit or loss

Derecognition

Financial ussets

The Company derccognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfurs (he right to receive the
conlractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asscts arc transferred or in which the
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does nol retain control of the financial asset

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recogmzed on its balance sheet, but retains cither all or substantially all of the risks and rewards

of the mansferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognized

Financiol fabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire The Company also derecognizes a financial
Jiability when its terms are modificd and the cash flows under (he modified terms arc substantially different In this case, a new financial liability based on the
modified terms is recognized at fair value The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and a new financial liability with
modificd terms is recognized in the standalone statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilitics arec offset and the net amount presented in the standalone balance sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a
Jepally enforceablc right to set ofF the amounts and it intends cither to settle them on a net basis or realize the assct and scttle the liability simultancously

(xii) Derivative financial instruments

a. Fair value hedge

With effcet from | November 2021, the Company adopted fair value hedge for the derivative contracts entered into and designated derivative conltracts or non-
derivative financial liabilitics as hedzing instruments to mitigate the risk of change in fair value of hedged item due to movement n interest rates, forcign exchange
rates and commodity prices. Changes in the fair value of hedging instruments and hedged items that arc designated and qualify as faic value hedges are recorded in
the Statement of Profit and Loss with an adjustment to the canying value of the hedged item ledge accounting is discontinued when the Company revokes the
hedge relationship, the hedging insteument or hedged item expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised or no longer meets the criteria for hedpe accounting

The Company designales derivative contracls as hedging instruments to mitigate the risk of change in (air valuc of hedged item i ¢ fixed gold inventory duc to
movement in gold prices The Company also designated the trade payables pertaining to gold taken on loan from banks (unfixed gold') as a fair value hedge to the
corresponding gold inventory purchased on loan

b. Cash flow hedge
The Company uses derivative financial instruments to manage risks associated with gold price fluctuations relating to certain highly probable ferecasied

transactions, foreign currency fluctuations relating to certain firm commitments. The Company has designated derivative financial instruments taken for gold price
fluctuations as ‘cash flow’ hedpes relating to highly probable forceasted transactions.

The use of derivative financial instruments is governcd by the Company's palicies appreved by the Roard of Dircctors, which provide written principles on the use
of such instruments consistent with the Company's risk management strategy

Jue, and arc re-measured at subscquent reporting dates. Changes in the fair value of these derivatives thal arc

Hedging instruments are initially measured at fair va
re recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading hedging reserve and the

designated and effective as hedges ol future cash flows a
incficetive portion is recognised imimediately in the statement of profit and loss.

rument expires or is sold, terminated, or cxercised, or no longer qualifics for hedge accounting lor
hedging instrument recognised in hedging reserve is retained until the forecast transaction occurs upen
expected 1o oceur, the net cumulative gain or Joss accumulated n

Heclge accounting is discontinued when the hedging inst
forccasted transactions, any cumulative gain or loss on the
which it is recognised in the statement of profit and loss II'a hedged transaction is no longer
hedging reserve is recognised immediately to the statement of profit and loss

The Company has designated derivative financial instruments taken for gold price fluctuations as ‘cash flow’ hedges relating to highly probable forecasted
transactions. The Company has followed cashflow hedge for hedping contracts taken till 31 October 2021
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3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(xiii) Provisions and contingent liabilitics

a Generul

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal o1 constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Compiny
expects some or all of a provision 1o be reimbursed, the expense relating to a provision is presented in the standalone statement of profit and loss net of any
reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions arc discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the tisks
specific to the liability When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Product warranty costs are determined based on past expericnee and provided for in the year of sale.

h. Contingent liuhilities
A disclosure for contingent liabilitics is made where there i1s a possible obligation or a present obligation that may probably not require an outflow of resources.
When there is a possible or a present obligation where the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision er disclosure is made.

[ A8 (nerous confracty
Provision for onerous contracts i & contracts where the expected unavoidable cost of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benelits
expected ta be received under it, arc recognized when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying cconomic benefits will be required to seitle a present

obligation as a result of an obligating event hased on a reliable estimate of such obligation

{xiv) Cash and cash cquivalents
Cash and cash cquivalents comprise of cash on hand, demand deposits with banks and balanccs with banks. The Company considers all highly liquid investinents
with an original maturity at the date of purchase of three months or lcss and that are readily convertible to knewn amounts of cash to be cash equivalents.

(xv) Standalone cash flow statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net loss before tax is adjusted for the effeets of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or

acervals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows
from operating, investing and financing activitics of the Company are sepregated.

{xvi) Borrowing Cost
Borrowing costs arc inferest and other costs incurred in connection with borrowing of funds The bortowing: cost includes interest expense acerued on gold on loan

taken from banks Botrowing costs attribulable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to pet ready for their
intended usc are capitalized as part of the cost of asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they arc incuried

(xvii} Earning per share

Basic earning per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year Diluted
carnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit afler tax by the weighted average number of equity shares considercd for deriving basic carnings per
share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares Diluted carnings
per share is computed using the weighted-average number ol equity and dilutive cquivalent shares outstanding during the year, using the treasury stock inethod for
options, except where the results would be anti-dilutive. The diluted potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable bad the shares been actually
issucd at fair value (i.c the average market value of the outstanding shares) Dilutive potential equity sharcs are deemed converted as of the beginning of the
period, unless issued at a later date

(xviii) Segment Reporting

Operating segments arc reported in a manner conststent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM'") The Board of

Directors of the Company assesses the financial performance and position of the Company. The Managing Director has been identificd as the CODM

The Company operates in onc segment only i Jewellery The CODM evaluates the Company's performance based on the revenue and operating income from the

sale of Jewellery Accordingly, no additional sepment disclosure has been made for the business segment

In terms of geographical segment, since the Company operates only in India, there is only one geographical segment, ic India Accordingly, no additional
\i disclosure has been made for geographical segment information
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Recent pronouncements

The amendments specify that to qualify for recognilion as part of applying
meet the definitions of assets and liabilities in the Conceptual Framework for Financi
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at the acquisition date. These changes do not significan
Company does not expect the amendment ta have any significant impact in its financial statements.

the acquisition method, the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed must
al Reporting under Indian Accounting Standards (Conceptual Framework)
tly change the requirements of ind AS 103. The

a) Ind AS 103 — Reference to Conceptual Framework

The amendments specify that to qualify for recognition as par of applying
mect the definitions of assets and liabilities in the Conceptual Framework for Financi
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at the acquisition date. These changes do nol significantly change the
Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements,

the acquisition method, the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed must
al Reporting under Indian Accounting Standards (Conceptual Framework)
requirements of Ind AS 103. The

b) Ind AS 16 - Proceeds before intended use
The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment amounts received from selling items produced while the
company is preparing the asset for ifs intended use. Instead, an entity will recognise such sales proceeds and related cost in profit or loss. The Company docs not

expect the amendments to have any impact in its recognition of its property, plant and equipment in its financial statements.

¢) Ind AS 37 - Onerous Contracts - Costs of fulfilling a contract
The amendments specify that that the “cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the “costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract

can cither be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct iabour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling
contracts. The amendment is essentizlly a clarification and the Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

d) Ind AS 109 — Annual improvements fo Ind AS (2021)
The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applics the *10 percent” test of Ind AS 109 in assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability.

The Company does not expect the amendment to have any significanl impact in its financial statements
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(Al amenmis in INR lakhs, wunless otherwise stated)

5(i) Property, plant and equipment*

Gross carrying amount

Accumulated depreciation

Carrying amount

(net)
Particulars
As at i " As at As at Charge for the " As at As at
1 April 2021 Additions Ticietiti 31 March 2022 1 April 2021 year Deletions | 3) parch2022 | 31 March 2022
Tangible assets
Furniture and fittings 795 198 74 919 253 82 29 306 613
Leasehold improvements 1,242 462 75 1,629 729 229 49 909 720
Computer equipment 635 438 43 1,030 432 178 40 569 461
Computer server 32 6 - a8 16 31 - 19 18
Mock jewellery 250 250 250 250
Office equipment 73 461 64 1,128 39] 137 N 497 631
Jewellery machine 491 226 25 692 99 44 2 141 551
Vehicles 3 - 3 2 - - 2 1
Total (A) 4,179 1,791 281 5,689 2172 673 151 2,694 2,995
]i Carrying amount
Particulars Gross carrving amount l Acc Iated depreciation (net)
As at As at As at Charge for the As at As at
1 April 2020 Additions Deletions 31 March 2021 1 April 2020 year Deletions 31 March 2021 31 March 2021
Tangible assets
Furniture and [ittings 766 74 45 795 204 75 26 253 542
Leasehold improvements 977 314 49 1,242 577 177 25 729 513
Computer equipment 506 136 7 635 318 115 1 432 203
Computer server 26 6 - 32 13 3 - 16 16
Mock jewellery 250 . . 250 250 - . 250 -
Office equipment 591 164 24 731 311 93 13 391 340
Jewellery machine 275 216 - 491 73 26 - 99 392
Vehicles 19 2 18 3 4 2 4 2 1
{ Total (A) 3,410 912 143 4,179 1,750 491 69 2,172 2,007

*Refer note 18(1)

Vh
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(Al amounts in INR lakhs, unless othcrwise stated)

5(iiy

5(iii)

5(iv)

intangible assets
Gross carrying amount Accumulated amortization Carrying amount
Particulars g = (net)
sa e y As at As at “harge for the . Asat As at
. dditi Delet|
1 April 2021 Additigns e eHons 31 March 2022 1 April 2021 year Deleions| 3 »farch 2022 31 March 2022
Intangible assets
Computer software 1,658 978 - 2,636 961 527 - 1,488 1.148
Caratlane portal 239 - : 239 239 - - 239 -
Total 1.897 978 - 2,875 1,200 527 - 1,727 1.148
Gross carrying amount Accumulated amortization Carrying amognt
Particulars o o e @ (net)
al .. . As at at arge for the : As at As at
£ Additiol Delet 4
1 April 2020 A S 31 March 2021 1 April 2020 year Deletions|  3; march 2021 31 March 2021
Intangible assets
Computer software 1,298 501 141 1,658 628 451 118 961 697
Caratlanc portal 253 - 14 239 253 5 14 239 -
Total 1,551 501 155 1.897 | 881 451 132 1.200 | 697
Ageing of Capital Work in Progress
As at March 31, 2022
; Amount in CWIP for a period of
Particulars Total
Less than 1 vear 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
(a) Projects in progress 2 - - - 2
(b) Projects temporarily suspended - - -
Total 2 - - - b
As at March 31, 2021
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Particul Total
aetiepa Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 vears More than 3 years &
(a) Projects in progress - - - - =
(b) Projecis temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total - - - - -
Ageing of Intangible assets under development:
As at March 31, 2022
5 Amount in Intangible assets under development for a period of
1 Total
Tntangiileasetywnder davelopment Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 vears 1 More than 3 vears
(a) Projects in progress 479 479
(b) Projects temporarily suspended - - - . -
Total 479 - - - 479
As at March 31, 2021
CWIP Amount in Intangible asset? under development for a period of Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 vears | 2-3 years More than 3 years
(a) Projects in progress 271 1l 131 514
(b) Projects temporarily suspended - - | - z 2
Total 271 111 | 131 - 514 |
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6 Right of use assels*

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Buildings
As at April 1 6,739 5,354
Add : Additions 4,382 1,385
Less : Modifications / Terminations = =
As at March 31 11,121 6,739
Accumulated amortisation
As at April | 2,252 1,014
Add : Amortisation Expenses 1,453 1,241
Less : Modifications / Terminations - -
As at March 31 3,708 2,252
Net carrying value 7,416 4,487
*Also refer note 30.
7 Financial assets
(i) Investments
Asat As at

Particulars

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Investment in equity instruments (unquoted)
Investment in subsidiary (at cost unless stated otherwise))

150 shares (Previous year: Nil) fully paid equity shares of $ 1,000 cach in StudioC Inc, USA 109
109 -
Aggregate book value of unquoted investments 109 -
(ii) Loans receivable
As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Unsecured, considered good

Loan to StudioC Inc. (Refer note 29) 227 -
227 -
(iii) Other financial assets
As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Unsecured, considered good
Security deposits
Lease receivables (Refer note 30)

\\}\t Mher deposits
’ ;

944 926
3,482 3,630
19 10
4,445 4,566




Caratlane Trading Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Al amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

8 Income tax

a)  The following is the analysis of deferred tax assets/ (linbilities):

b)

c)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Deferred tax assets 5.097 .
5.097

As at

Particulars Asat  Recognised in the Recognised in other
1 April 2021  statement of profit comprehensive income 31 March 2022
and loss
Deferred tax assets
Provision for doubtful trade receivables - 11 11
Property, plant and cquipment 218 - 218
Employee benefits 192 40 232
Lease liabilities (net of Right-of-usc assets) 156 156
Carry forward of losses and unabsorbed depreciution 4.480 : 4.480
- 5.057 40 5,097
Amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Income tax expenses - o
Current tax #
Deferred tax (5,057
Income tax included in other comprehensive income on:
- Remeasurement of employee defined benefit plans (40)
Tax expense for the year (5.097) -

The reconciliation between the provision of income tax and amounts computed by ap

plying the Indian statutory income tax rate to profit before taxes:

Far the year ended

For the year cnded

Particulars

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Profit before tax 4,816 162
Enacted income tax rate in India 25 17% 25 17%
Computed expected tax expense 1,212 41
Effect of:
Effect of deferred taxes on carry-forward losses, unabsorbed depreciation and others not (6,269) @n
recogniscd in earlier years
Income tax expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss (5.057)

Note : From the Assessment Year 202223 relcvant to the previous year 2021-22, the Company has elected to excrcise the option permitted under section 115BAA(1) of
the Income-tax Act, 1961 afler satisfying the conditions contained in section 115BAA(2) as introduced by

Accordingly, the Company has not recognized Minimum alternative Tax (MAT') under the provision for income tax for

computed deferred tax based on the rate prescribed 1n the said section primarily for the carried forward losses.

the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019

the previous year ended 31 March 2022 and

d) The following table provides the details of income tax assets and income tax liabilities as of 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021:
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Income tax assets (net) 115 96
Current tax liabilities (net) - )
Net current income tax assets at the end of the year 115 96

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Net current income tax assets al the beginning of the year 96 225
Income tax paid 47 (129)
Refund received during the year 28 -
115 926

\Jj/ Net current income tax assets at the end of the year
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9 Other non-current assets
, As at As at
Particulary 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Unsecured, considered good
Capital advances 166 87
Deferred rental deposit 115 138
Balance with revenue authoritics 643 1,643
924 1,868
10 Inventories
i As at As at
Farticularx 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Raw materials 12,483 5,047
Work-in-progress 1,078 486
Finished goods 32,649 14,147
Stock-in-trade 7.170 5.773
53,380 25,453
Notes:
(i) The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the year is Rs. 84,858 lakhs (Previous year: Rs. 50,071 lakhs).
(i) The cost of inventories recognised as an expense includes Rs 5 lakhs (Previous vear: Rs. 15 lakhs) in respect of write down of inventory to net-realisable
value.
(iii) The inventory includes gold purchased on loan from banks amounting to Rs. 23,643 lakhs (Previous year: Rs. | 1.569 lakhs). Also refer note 18(ii).
(iv) There arc no goods-in-transit as at 31 March 2022 (Previous year: Rs. Nil)
(v) Refer point 3(vi) under significant accounting policies for mode of valuation.
11 Financial assets

(i) Investments

Particulars

As at

31 March 2022

Ax at
31 March 2021

Investments in mutual funds (Unguoted)- [t fair value through profit or loss/

Name of the fund

Nil (Previous year - 411,012 units) ICICI Prudential Liquid Fund -Direct-Growth - 1.252
1,252

Quoted

Aggregate book value 1,251
1,252

\/ Aggregate market value
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I1 Financial assets (continued)
{11} Trade reccivables

Particulars As at Asat
- 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Unsecured
Trade receivables, considered good 1,024 713
Reccivables from related parties (Refer note 29) 1,027 169
Less: Allowance for doubtful trade receivables - :
2,051 882
Trade receivables, credit impaired 43 43
Less: Allowance for doubtful trade receivables (43) (43)
2,051 882

(a) Ageing of receivables @

As at 31 March 2022

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars x
o Less than 6 months # Bl >1 year

1 vear
(i) Undisputed Trade reccivables — considered good 1.865 186
(i) Undisputed Trade Reccivables — which havc significant increase in credit
risk " . )
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired* 3 40
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables— considered good = -
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in credit
risk " -
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - -
Total 1,865 189 40

# includes amount not due
* The outstanding amount for more than a year to 2 year amounts to Rs. 28 lakhs, more
amounts to Rs. 7 lakhs.

than 2 year to 3 year amounts to Rs. 5 lakhs and for more than 3 years

As at 31 March 2021 :

Outstanding for following periods from due date of puyment

icul S
Particulars Less than 6 months # G.mioRi >1 year
1 vear
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 874 8
(i1) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in credit - -
risk

(iii} Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired*

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables— considered good

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increasc in credit
risk

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired

Total

# includes amount not due

874 12 39

* The outstanding amount for more than a year to 2 year amounts {o Rs. 27 lakhs, more than 2 year to 3 year amounts to Rs 5 lakhs and for more than 3 years
amounts to Rs 7 lakhs.
(b) Movement in the expected credit loss allowance :

. As at As al
Fartissiar 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Balance at the beginning of the year 43 24
Provision created during the year - 19
Bad debts written off during the year - -

43 43

V Balance at the end of the year
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11 Financial assets (continued)
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents

i As at As at
Rartiuiar 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Cash on hand 61 42
Balances with banks :
(i) in current account 336 333
(ii} in EEFC account 29 -
Deposits with original maturity of less than three months - 120
426 495
(iv) Other bank balances
Particul As at As at
S 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Deposits with original maturity of more than three months 2 -
Deposits under lien* 176 67
178 67
* Pertains to deposits with bank for duty free gold purchases which are intended te be exported.
(v) Loans receivable
As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Unsecured, considered good

Employee loans 198 73
198 13
(vi) Other financial assets
Particulars puliat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Unsecured, considered good
Lease receivables (Refer note 30) 625 689
Security deposits 319 296
Interest receivable from StudioC Inc. (Refer note 29) 4 .
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 6 2
Qther receivable (Refer note (a) below) 476 171
Margin money for gold future contracts 56 20
1.486 1,178
Note :
(a) Balance pertains to amount receivable from franchisee's towards day to day expenditure.
12 Other current assets
Particulars Apat As at
) 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Unsecured, considered good

Balance with revenue authorities (Refer note (a) below) 7,511 3,419
Prepayments 287 214
Contract assets (Refer note 33) 246 197
Other assels - 20
Advance to suppliers 879 395
Less | Allowance towards advance to supplier (131) (157
8.792 4,088

Note:

(a) Balance with govemment authorities represents GST credits of Rs.8.154 lakhs (Previous year: Rs. 5,061 lakhs) in respect to GST input credits.
{h) Contract asset represents the amount of goods expected to be received by the Company on account of sales return.

L
Y

V




Caratlane Trading Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amonnts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise atated)

13

W

Share capital

Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

No of shares Amount Na of shares Amount
Authorised share capital
Lguity share of Rs. 2 each ; 49,953 234 999 49 253 23 299
Total nuthorised sharc capifal 49,953,234 999 49,953,234 999
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up equity share capital
Equity share of Rs, 2 cach 33.270.052 665 33,251,032 665
Total issued share capital 33,270,052 665 33,251,652 665

(i) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares
The Company has only one class of cquity shares having a par value of Rs. 2 Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one votc per share The dividend

proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to approval by the shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeling

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of cquity sharcs will be entitled to receive remaining asscts of the Company after distribution of all
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders.

(ii) Shares reserved for issue under Employee Stock Option Scheme

During the financial year 2017-18, the Company had introduced Caratlane Stock Option Plan 2017 (‘the Plan’). This Plan supersedes the following stock
options and stock option plans:

a Executive Management Stock Option Scheme 2009

b. CaratLane Trading India Private Limited Stock Option Schem for Consultants, 2013

¢ Senior Management Stock Option Scheme, 2012

As per the plan, Board of Directors grants options to the employees of the Company. The vesting period of the option is one to four years from the date of
grant. Options granted under the Scheme can be exercised withm a period of six years from the date of vesting For employees leaving the organization, an
option can be exercised within 3 montis from the date of resignation.

During the year the Company graated 43,000 options to employecs.

A maximum of 714,017 options are issuable under this plan. The movement in options issued are as below:

For the year ended Weighted  For the year ended Weighted average

Particulars 31 March 2022 average exercise 31 March 2021 exercise price
price

Options outstanding at the beginning 0 the year 552,000 150 488,800 126
Options granted during the ycar 43,000 474 70,000 328
Options forfeited during the year (2,600) 295 (5,600) 236
Options exercised during the yeat (1840 135 (1,200} 93
Outstanding at the end of the vear 574,000 174 552,0HH 150
Options exercisable at the end of the year 424,900 106 436,900 108

Fair value measurement
The fair value at grant datc is determined using the Black-Scholes-Merton Model which takes into account the exercise price, the term of the option, the share

price at grant date and expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend vield and the risk free interest rate for the term of the option

The key inputs used in Black-Scholes-Merton Model for calculating fair value of options under the scheme as on the date of grant are as follows:
‘The weighted average remaining contractual life of the options outstanding as of March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 under the Caratlane stock Options Plan

was 6 years and 7 years respectively
‘Fhe fair value of the options is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes-Merton Model with the following assumptions.

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
No of options granted 43,000 70,000
Datc of grant July 28,2021 January 28, 2021
Vesting period 4 years 4 years
Dividend yicld (%) .
Volatility rate (%) - -
Risk free rate (%) 6 05% 597%
[ixpected life of options (ycars) 55 55
609 474

Weighted averuge fair value of options per share (Rs.)




Caratlanc Trading Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Al amounts in INR lukhs, unless otherwise stated)

13 Share capital (continued)

(i) Shares reserved for issue under Employee Stock Option Scheme (continued)
The stock price of the Company is arived using the last round of funding

closest to the grant date. Implied volatility is the unit a1 which the price of

shares of peer listed companies has fluctuated during the past period The expected time to maturity/ expected life of the options is the period for which

the Company expects the options to be alive, which has been taken as 10 years subject to adjustment of time lapses from

rate considered for calculation is based on the yield on Government Securities for 10 years as on the date of valuation.

the date of grant The risk free

During the year ended March 31, 2022, the Company recorded employee compensation of Rs 165 lakhs (Previous year : Rs 36 lakhs) in the standalone

statement of profit and loss towards options granted / forfeited / expired. Refer note 24 for further details

(iii) Reconcilintion of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Particulars Amount Amount
No. of shares Rs. In lakhs No. of shares R I Inkks
Equity shares with voting rights
At the beginning of the year 33,251,652 665 33,250,452 665
Add lssue of shares pussuant to options biang: exercised by emplovees * 18,400 | * 0 1.200 g
At the end of the yeur 33,270,052 665 33,251,652 665

* 0! Represents atmount less than Rs. 1 lul:h

iv) Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the apgregate shares in the Company

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Farticulars No. of shares % No. of shares %

held holdi held holding |
Lty shares with voting rights
Mr Mithun Padamchand Sachcet 3,835,327 11 53% 3,835327 1153%
Mr Siddhartha Padamchand Sacheti 3,700,000 11 12% 3,700,000 11L13%
M1 Padamchand Sacheti 1,655,000 4.97% 1,655,000 4 98%
Tuan Compony Limited* 24.036.325 72.25% 24.036.325 7229%
Total 33,226,652 99.87% 33,226,652 99.92%
* Includes shares held by individuals/ directors on behalf of Titwn Company Limited.
(v) Sharcholding of promoters

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Promoternane No. of Shares | % of total shares % Change No. of Shares Yo of total Y Change
during the year shares during the year

Titan Company Limited® 24,036,325 72.25% - 24,036,325 72 29% -
Mr. Mithun Sacheti 3,835,327 11.53% - 3,835,327 11 53%
Mr Siddhartha Padamchand Sacheti 3,700,000 1112% - 3,700,000 11 13%
Mr Padamchand Sacheti 1.655.000 4.97% - 1,655,000 4.98%

* Includes shares held by mdviduals’ dircctors on behalf of Titan Company Limited.

Note

\)9/1 The above excludes share allotted to certain employee under the Caratlane Stock Option Plan 2017 apgregating to 43,400 equity shares
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Other cquity
As at As at
Particulars
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Sceurities premium 40,978 40,925
(Amounts received on issue of shares in excess of the par valwe has been classified as securities preminm)
Stock options outstanding account 851 718
(Shares granted fo employee under employee stock option plan)
Retained camings (30.518) (40,391)
(Retained earnings comprise of the Company's prior years' losses after tax)
Other comprehensive income (244) (129)
(Represents actuarial gain or loss on remeasurament of net defined benefit liabiliry and effective portions of gains
and loss on designated portion of hedging instrumenis in a cash flow hedge)
11,067 1123
Financial liabilitics
i, Borrowings
As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

At amortised cost:
Secured

Long-term borrowings (Term loan)*
Less: Current maturities of long-term borrowing:

* Sccured against the corporate guarantee issucd by Titan Company
The effective interest rate of the term loan was & 19% per annum and s paya

876 1.523
(657) (653)
219 870

Limiled at an interest rate of 0.5% per annum
ble over 48 equal monthly installments beginning from 1 June 2019 Current revised rate as per

the bank is 5.5% fram 22 March 2021 A prepayment of Rs 657 lakhs of the principal amount was made during the preious year

ii. Lease liabilitics

Parti As al As at
articulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Lease liabilities (Refer note 30) 10,293 7.813
10,293 7.813
iii. Other financial liabilities
, o As at As at
Epyuctiics 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Rental deposit (Refer note 30) 312 304
312 304
Other non-current liabilitics
: As at As at
Faticuiars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Deferred rental deposit (Refer note 30) 108 128
108 128
Provisions
) As at As at
Fartieslary 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Provision for pratuity (Refer note 31) 469 339
Provision for compensated absences (Refer note 31) 175 62
674 01
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18 Financial liabilitics

i. Borrowings

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Secured
Bank overdrafl and cash credit** 2,631 1.000
Current maturities of long term borrowings* 657 633
Unsecured
Commercial paper (Refer note 34) 14,865 10,405
18,153 12,058

* Refer note 15 (1)
** Secured against the Company's inventory, receivables and movable fixed assets on pari-passu basis. The interest rate on the overdraft varies from 4.3% to 8% per annum
and is payable at monthly intervals. The overdraft is payable on demand.
The Company has filed statements as at the quarter end with the banks which are in agreement with the books of accounts as at respective quarter ends
\

ii. Gold on loan |
|
1

Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Secured
Payable to banks* 23,043 11,569
23,643 11,569

able against gold purchased from various banks under gold on loan scheme. The interest rate of the gold

*Secured against inventory and receivables. Includes amounts pay
and is payable at monthly intervals. The credit period under the aforesaid arrangement 15 180 days Ironi

on loan varies from 2 25% to 2.75% per annum as at 31 March 2022
the date of the delivery of gold.

iii. Lease liabilities

Particulars As at Asat |
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

1.case liabilities (Refer note 30) 1.849 1.684

L\ 1,849 1,684

-
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18 Financiat liabilities (continued)
iv. Trade payables

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Trade payables o
Outstanding dues of micro and small enterpriscs [Refer note (a) and (b) below] 3.970 615
OQutstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterpriscs
- Creditors for poods 8,665 4,038
- Creditors for services 4,260 3,055
16,895 7,708

(a) Ageing of Trade Payables :

As at 31 March 2022:

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from duc date
- of payment

I Less than 1 year # More than 1 year *

(i) MSME 3,961 9

(i1} Others 12,864 61

(iit) Disputed dues - MSME -

(iv) Disputed dues — Others - -
16,825 70

# includes amount not duc
* The outstanding amount for more than a year o 2

year amounts to INR 9 lakhs for MSME and INR 32 lakhs for others, More than 2 year to 3 years amounts 1o INR Nil
for MSME and INR 11 Lakhs for others and for more than 3 years amounts to INR Nil for MSME and INR 18 Lakhs for others

As st 31 March 2021:
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date
Less than | year # More than | vear *
(i) MSME 614 |
(ii) Others 7,059 34
(i11) Disputed dues - MSME 5 »
(iv) Disputed dues — Others - s
7,673 35

# includes amount not due
* The outstanding amount for more than a year to 2 year amounts to INR 1 lakh for MSME
MSME and INR 6 Lakhs for others and for more than 3 years amounts to INR Nil for MSME and INR 17 Lakhs for others

and INR 11 lakhs far others, More than 2 year Lo 3 years amounts to INR Nil for

(b) Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006:
There are no material dues owed by the Compiziy to Micra and Small enterprises, which are outstanding for more than 45 days during the year and as at 31 March 2022
This information as required under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterpriscs Development Act, 2006 has been determined (o the extent such partics have been identificd

of payment

on the basis of information available with the Campany and has becn relied upon by the auditors. ‘
]

|

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(a) the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting
year,
- Principal 3970 615
- Intercst - -
(b) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the
appointed day during cach accounting year;
(c) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay 1n making payment (which has been paid but
beyond the appointed day during the year) bul without adding the interest specified under the Micra, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006,
{d) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year, and
(e) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the
intercst ducs above are actually paid to the small enterprisc, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. 75
3.97 615

Note: Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information collceted by the Management

Vlj This has been relied upon by the auditors

g2
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18 Financial liabilities (continued)

v. Other financial liabilities

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Capital creditors 188 12
Security deposits - 89
Employee payables 953 .
1,141 101
19 Other current liabilities
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Deferred rental deposit 27 23
Statutory dues 324 314
Contract liability (Refer note 33) 156 274
Advance from franchisee 45 45
Advance from customers 3,345 2.479
4,097 3135
20 Provisions
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Provision for gratuity (Refer note 31) 130 71
Provision for compensated absences (Refer note 31) 118 33
Provision for warranty 104 60
352 164
Note a: Provision for warranty
Movement below is for provision of warranty during the year: -
Particulars fuat As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Opening balance 60 50
Provisions made during the year 92 21
Utilisation / reversed during the year (48) (i)
\/L’ Provision at the end of the year 104 60

N
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21 Revenue from operations

For the year ended

Particulars
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Export 4,771 2,736
Domestic 120,946 68,789
Sale of products 125,717 71,525
- 45

Other operating revenue
125,717 71.570

For the vear ended

Particulars

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Contracted price 148,386 84,874
Reduction towards variable consideration 22,669 13.349
Revenue recognised 125,717 71.525

The reduction towards variable consideration comprises of scheme discounts, incentives, taxes etc.

22 Other income

For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Interest on loan (Refer note 29) 4 -
Cross charge to subsidiary (Refer note 29) 77 -
Franchisee signing fees 95 100
Deferred rental income 69 69
Rent deposit equalization 9 20
Interest income on financial assels carried at amortised cost (Refer note 30) 566 414
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (Net) 14 -
Net gain on sale of current investments 33 43
Miscellaneous income 134 88
1,001 734

23 (i) Cost of material consumed

For the vear ended

Parfienlars 31 March 2022 37 March 2021
Inventories of Raw materials at the beginning of the year 5,047 3427

Add: Purchases 100,933 44,717

Less: Inventories of Raw materials at the end of the year (12,483) (5.047)
93.497 43,097

23 (i) Purchases of stock-in-trade
: For the year ended

Farticaters 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Purchases of traded goods 11,852 10,708

\/ ' 11,852 10.708
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23 (iii) Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress

For the year ended

Paxfienines 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Finished goods
- Closing stock 32,649 14,147
- Opening stock 14,147 10,398
18,502 3,749
Work-in-progress
- Closing stock 1,078 486
- Opening stock 486 324
592 162
Stock-in-trade
- Closing stock 7,170 5,774
- Opening stock 5,773 5,951
1397 (177)
Increase in inventory 20,491 3.734

24 Employee benefits expense

For the year ended

SR 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Salaries, wages and bonus 8,001 5,252
Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer note 31) 231 181
Staff welfare expense 554 324

165 36

Employee share based payment expense (Refer note 13)

Uﬁ . 8.951 5.792
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26

27

.

Finance cost

For the year ended

s 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Intercst on borrowings 1,093 1,145
Interest on lease liabilities 984 920
Others 7 4
2,084 2,068

Depreciation and amortisation expense

For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer note 5(i)) 673 491
Amortisation of right of use assct (Refer note 6) 1.453 1,241
Amortisation of intangible asscts (Refer note 5(ii)) 527 451
2,653 2.183
Other expenses
Particulars For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Advertising 9,272 3,510
Agent commission 7,550 4,010
Rent (Refer note 30) 110 .
Freight and forwarding 1,474 1,074
Travelling and conveyance 311 98
Professional service charges 1,376 832
Bank charges 668 356
Software expenditure 828 553
Allowance for doubtful advances 1 -
Bad debts written off 26 -
Allowance for doubtful trade receivables - 19
Power and fuel 183 144
Communication expenses 103 99
Rates and taxes 53 T
Director sitting fee (Refer note 29) 33 28
Repeirs and maintenance 422 358
Insurance 47 36
Payments to auditors (Refer note below) 16 33
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment - 8
Property, plant and equipment written off 33 6
Intangible assets written off - 23
Stores and consumables 168 63
Royalty (Refer note 29) 191 107
Miscellancous expenscs 468 400
23,356 12,028

Payment to auditors

For the year ended

Bartcuiars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
For statutory audit 22 i
For tax audit 2 2
Other matters 14 8
Reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses 1 1

39 33
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28  Earnings per shure

Reconcilintion of basic and diluted shares, used in computing per share:

For the year ended

Baricuiars : 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

fasic nod dituted profit per share

Profit after tax 9.873 162

Number of weighted average shares considered for calculation of besics enrning per share 33,260,005 33,251,451

Add : Dilutive effect of stock options 225.978 499.346

Number of weighted average shares considered for calculation of diluted eaming per share 33,485,984 33,750,797

Earning per share

Nominal valuc of share (in INR) 2 2

Eamings per sharc - Basic (in INR) 29.68 049
29.48 048

Earnings per share - Dilured (in INR)

29  Related parties
1) Relationship

a) Holding company Titan Company Limited
b) Subsidiary StudioC (ne.
c) Key management personnel Mr Mithun Padamchand Sacheti, Managing Director

Mr Bhaskar Bhat, Non-executive Director

Mr Ashok Kumar Sonthalia (w e.f. 26 April 2021)

Mr C K Venkataraman, Non-executive Director (Resigned 20 August 2020)

Mr Subramaniam Somasundaram, Non-executive Director (Resigned w.e.f. 27 April 2021)
Mr Hiresh Ram Chawln, Non-executive Director (w ¢ f. 10 July 2021)

Mr Sandeep Anant Kulhalli, Non-executive Director

Mr Ajoy Hiro Chawla, Non-executive Dircetor

Mr Mathrubootham Rathnagirish, Independent Dircctor (Resigned w e f. 27 April 2021)
Ms Neelam Chhiber, Independent Director

Mr Manoj Bhanawat, Chief Fmancial Officer

Mr Bharatraj Panchal (Company Sccretary) (Resigned w.e f, 20 August 2020)

Ms Ahona Das (Company Secretary) (w.e.f. 23 October 2020)

d) Enterprises in which Key Managemem Personnel or relative of - Nol A Box, Partmership Firm
Key Management Personnel has significant influcnce Freshworks Inc.
Microgo, LLP
Jaipur Gems and Handicrafts Private Limited
Starfire Gems Private Limited
Luxury Online Retail India Private Limited

i)  Transactions with the related parties during the year:

Far the vear caded

Name of the related party Nature of transaction
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Jarpur Gems amd Handicaita Private Lunited Salc of ponds 1 1
P'uichase of goods ¢ 5

Renubursement of expenscs 7 s
Sales of property, piant and equipment 0
Starfire Gems Private Limited Purchase of goods 398 270
Sale of goods 28 -
Other expenses - Rent 25 19
Reimbursement of cxpenses 2 |
Freshworks Inc Other expenses - Miscellaneous 39 13
Luxury Online Retail Indin Private Limited Reimbursement of expense - 9
StudioC Inc Sale of goods 1,022 -
Other income - cross charges 77 -
Loan given during the year 27
[nvestment in equity shares - 109 -
Reimbursement of expenses 2 -
interest on loan 4 °
Titan Company Limited Purchase of goods 216 369
Salc of goods - 820
Royalty 191 107
Bad debts written off 2 -
Senvices - 45
Purchase of capital goods 1 14
Rerit and misce!laneous 50 49
Insurance and Salary expenses 296 319
Interest on corporate guarantee 6 14
Mithun Padamchand Sacheti Director's remuneration 182 173
Manoj Bhanawat Remuneration 76 66
Ahona Das Gupts Remuneration 13 7

\
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party di res (continued)

Transactions with the related parties during the year (continued)

At ts for the year ended 31 March 2022

Name of the related party

Nature of trapsaction

Far the year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Neelam Chibiber Sittng Fees 2 12
Haresh Ram Chawla Sining fees 6
Bhaskar Bhat Sitting fees 7 7
Sandecp Anant Kulhalli Sitting, fees 6 5
Mathrubootham Rathnagirish Sitting fees i 4
Neclam Chhiber Cominission to Directors 8
Harcsh Ram Chawla Commission to Directors 6
Bhaskar Bhat Commission to Directors 8
Sandeep Anant Kulhalli Commission to Directors 7
Mathrubootham Rathnagirish Commission to Directors i
Not A Box Reimbursement of cxpenses/services - Receivable : n
Microgo LLP Reimbursement of expenses/services - Receivable 4 i
Related party closing balnnces as on balance sheet date:
Name of the related party Financial caption 31 M“ch“;o;; 31 M:zrc!:\;l:!ll
Starfire Gems Private Liniited Tradc payable 40 53
Trade receivable 28 ”
Security deposit 6
StudioC' Inc Trade receivable 994 »
Interest receivable 4
Loan to StudioC Inc 7
Investnent in share capital 109
Titan Company Limited Trade payable 93 174
Royalty payable 172 -
Trade receivable 5 209
Microgo LLP* Trade payable 0
Security deposit 0
bi 6 6

Not A Box

Reimb rent of !services - Ri

P

Leter of financial support provided 1o Sudiol’ Ine USA for the poniod ended 31 March 2023

#Represent amount less than 1 lakh

Notes:

a) The above information has been detenmined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company and relicd upon

by the auditors.

b) The abave figures do not include provisions for encashable leave, gratuity a

Lenses

nd pension, as separatc actuarial valuation arc not available

30.i Amounts recognised in balance sheet

V.

As at As at

Fapiicdlars fNote 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(i} Right-of-use assets 6
Buildings 7416 4,487
(i) Lease liabilities
Non-current 15(it) 10,293 7.813
Current 18(iii) ‘_;_ﬂ;? 1odd
(i) Lease receivables
Non-current T(iii) 3482 3,630
Current 11(vi) 625 639
4,107 4,319
Amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss
5 Asat As at

Rarticnlary Nete 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(i) Depreciation and amortisation expense 20 1453 1241
(1) Interest cxpense (included in finance zost) 25 984 920
(iii) Interest income on sub-fease (includud in other income) 22 566 414
(iv) Expense relating to short-term leascs 27 414 347
(v) Expensc relating to variable lease payments 27 12 -
{v1) Rent concessions 27 (317 (342)

(a) Short-tenin fease hos been accounted for applying paragraph 6 of Ind AS 116 - lcase and accordingly recogmzed as expens
(b) The total cash outflow for the year ended March 31, 2022 smounts 1o Rs, 3.013 lakhs (Previous year. Rs 2,385 lakhs)

s in the standalonc statement of profit and loss.
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Employce benefit obligations

a) Defined contribution plan
The contributions recognized in the standalone statement of profit and loss during the year arc as under:

Particulars Asat As ot

31 March 2021 31 March 2021

Tployee provident fund 220 173
Lmployec state msurance il i

b) Defined benefit plan - Gratuity (non-funded)
Under the defined benefit plan, the company provides for a lumpsum payment 10 ¢
years of employment with the company

ligible cmployces, af retirement or (crmination of employment based on the last drawn salary and

The plan typically cxposes the company to actuarial risk such as milerest risk and salary risk

A novement in the bond interest rate will impact the plan liability
The present value of the defined benefit plan hability is calculated by refercnce to the future salaries of plan
participants, as such an increasc in the salary of the plan panticipants and vice-versa

Interest risk
Salary 1isk

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

Particulars As ar Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Discount rate (p.a ) [OR1 530
Salary escalation eate (p.a.)
- Corporate 10.60% R 50%
- Non-corporate 8 56% 6.50%
- Manu/facturing 697% 3.75%
Attrition rate
- Corporate 26 .60% 25.83%
- Non-carporate 25 12% 28.51%
- Manufecturing 8 28% 10 34%

- The employees of the Company are assumed (o retire at the age of 58 years.
- The mortality rates considered are as per the published rates in the Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) Ult table.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding

all other assumptions constant

For the year ended 31 March 2022

Particulars
Discount rate Escalation rate
Defined benefit obligation when a plus 50 bps for respective rates is applicd 614 642
644 616

Defined benefit abligation when a minus 50 bps for respective rates 1s applied

For the year ended 31 March 2021

Particulars
Discount rate Escalation rate
Defined benefit obligation when a plus 50 bps for respective rates 1s applicd 400 417
Defined benefit obligation when a minus 50 bps for respective rates is applicd 418 40!
i As at As at
Musgrity prefle 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Expected benefits for year 1 13t B
Expected benefits for year 2 114 75
Expected benefits for year 3 101 67
Expecied benefits for year + 86 59
Expected benefits for year 5 74 46
371 199

Expected benefits in next 5 years
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VY.

Employee benefit oblig (continued)

Components of defined benefit costs recognised in the standalone statcment of profit and loss are s follows:

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Current service cost 90 94
Past service cost :
18

Interest on net defined benefir liability 18

Total expense charged to the standalone statement of profit and loss 110 2
C ts of defined benefit costs recagmsed in other comprehensive income are as follows

Particulars As at Asat

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

157 i (5)

Remeasurements during the year

'Salprics, wages and bonus' line item in ihe standalone statement of profit and loss The remeasurement of

The service cost and the net interest expense for the year are included i the
Jane balance sheet arising from the cntity's obligation in respect of 1ts defined

the net defined liability is included in other comprehensive income The amount included i the standa
benefit plans is as follows:

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Openiny defincd benefit liability i 52}
Expense charged to standalone statement of profit and loss 110 112
Amount recognised outside the siandalone statement of profit and Juss account 157 (5)
(49) {19

Employer contrtbutions
Closing defined henefit liability 629 410

¢) Compensated absences
This provision covers the Company's liahility for eamed leave
Provision as at March 31, 2022 amountiag to Rs. 118 lakhs (Previous year: Rs. 33 [akhs) is presented as curent, since the Company based on past experience does not expect all

employces 10 avail the full amount of accrued leave or require paymenl for such leave within the next 12 months

Similar assumptions have heen made as per the defined benefit plan

The service cost and the net interest expense for the year are included in the
liability is included in other comprehensive income. The amount mcluded in the standalone balance

‘Salarics, wages and bonus' lin item in the stalement of profil and loss The remeaswement of the nel
sheet arising from the entity's obligation in respect of its compensated absences (s

as [ollows:
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Compensated absences
Non-current 175 2
Current 118 35
93 s

Segment reporting
The Chief Operating Decision Maker ('CODM?) evaluates the Company's performance and allocates resources based on an
Accordingly, segment informabion has been presented for industry classes The operating segment has been identified fo be “Jewellery

an overnll Company level as one segment

alysis of various perfonnance indicators by industry classes
" gs the CODM reviews business performance at

Contract asset and liability
Contract assct represents the amount of i2oods expected to be received by
price allocated to the performance obligations that are unsatisfied as of the end of

account of sales retum

the Company on account of sales return. Contract libility represents the aggregate amount of the fransaction
the reporting period. Thus, it represents the valuc of sales the Campany cstimates 1o be retuined on

Nature As at Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Contract liability
Qpening balance 74 143
less: Provision reversed towards sales retums (274) (143)
Add: Provision towards salcs retumn created 156G 274
Closing balance 356 274
Contract assets
Opening balance 197 100
Less: Reversal of inventorics for sales 1eturns (197) (100)
Add: Inventories towards provision for seles return 246 100
246 197

Closing balance
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(2}

(b)

(e}

(C)]

(e)

dals fi

for the year ended 31 March 2022

Commercial paper
‘The following tables set forth, for the period indicated, details of commercial paper:

March 31, 2022

Maturities 0-1 Month 2-3 Months 4-6 Months
Face value - 15,000 -
Carrying value - 14,835 -
The following tables set forth, ratings assigned by credit rating agency at March 31,2022
Instrument ICRA
Cammercaal paper Al
Contingent liabilitics and commitments
Particulars s st Avat

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
- Guarantees excluding financial guaranices - =
- Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debis:

677 102

Sales tax matters (refer nore (d) below)
- Other money for which the Company is contingently lisble

The Supreme court of India in the month of February 2019 had passed a judgement relating to definition of wages under the Provident Fund Act.1952. However, considering that
there arc numerous interpretative issues relating 1o this judgement and in the absence of reliable measurement of the provision for the caclicr periods, the Company has made a
provision for provident fund contribution based on it's interpretation of the said judg The Company will cvaluate its position and update its provision, il required, on receiving
further clanity on the subject. The Company does not expect any material impact of the same

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company has reccived a Show Cause Notice (*SCN') dated 28 March 2022, from the office of the Directorate of Enforcement,
Govemnment of India (‘DOE') As per the SCN, the office of DOE has allcged that the Company has received Foreign Direct Investment {‘FDI") during the years 2011 to 2014 in licu
of shares 1o overseas inveslor, which has been utilised in Single Brand Retail Trading without approval from the RBI Further, it has been alleged that the Company has madc retail
sate by onlinc mode during the Financial Year (*FY') 2010-11 to 2014-15 in Single Brand Retail Trading of e-commerce business which is in contravention of provisions of Section
6{3)(b) of the Foreign Exchange Manogement Act, 1999 ("FEMA"). The Company. based upon the management bricfing, has abtained a legal opinion dated 28 Apnl 2022 on the
aforesaid matter As per the opinion, during the years under consideration, the Company was engaged in the activitics of wholesale trading and manufectuning (through contract
manufacturing) in which 100 per cent FI)I under the automatic route is permitted, and hence the Company was in comphi with the applicable FEMA regulations read with the
applicable policics, press notes and circelars issued, in conducting its business, While the Company is in the process of providing a formal responsc to the SCN, based on the legal
opinion and management assessment of aansactions for the years under consideration, the Company considers that no provision is required to be carried in the financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2022,

Out of the ahove claim of Rs 677 Lakhs, the contention of the company o the department was that it had paid Rs. 615 Lakhs by way of not mansilioning to the GST regime, which
again was mentioned by the principal commissioncr in his demand order It is on the ground of non submissi of back up d s, the above demand was rmsed. Further, the
Company had taken certification from a Chartered Accountant on such non-transitioning of CENVAT credit to GST regime.

Letter of financial support provided to SmdioC Inc, USA

Note: The above amounts are based on the notice of demund or the Assessment Orders or notification by the relevant suthoritics, us the case may be, and the Company is contesting
these claims with the respective authoritics. Outflows, if any, ansing out of these claims would depend on the outcome of the decisions of the appellate authorities and the Company's

rights for future appeals before the judiciary
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VY.

Financial instruments
Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
a, Measured at amortised cost
- Loans to employees (Refer note 11{v)) 198 73
- Security and other deposits (Refer note 7(iii) and note 11(vi)) 1,282 1,232
- Trade receivables (Refer note 11{ii)) 2,051 882
- Cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 1 1(iii)) 426 495
67

- Other bank balances (Refer note 11(iv)) 178

- Lease receivables (Refer note 7(iii) and nate 11(v1)) 4,107 4,319
-Other financial assets 878 1,445
Total financial assets measured at amortised cost 9.120 8513
Total financial assets ’ 9,120

Financial liabilities

Particulars As at As af
31 March 2022 .31 March 2021

a. Measured at fair value through profit or loss ("FYTPL")

- Gold on loan 23,643 11.569

Total financial liabilities measured at FVTPL (a) 23,643 11,569

a. Measured at amonrtised cost

- Borrowings 18,372 12,928

- Rental deposits 32 393

- Trade payables 16,895 7,708

- Leasc liabilitics 12,142 9497

- Other financial liabilities 1.141 12

‘Total financig! liabilities measured at amortised cost (b) 48,862 30,538

Total financial linbilities (a + b) 72,505 42,107

(i) Fair value hierarchy

This note explains about basis for determinaiion of fair values of various financial assets and liabilities:

Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets and liabllitics measured at fair value - March 31, 2022

Financial liabilities

- Gold on loan 23,643 =

Total financial assets 23,643 - -

Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value - March 31, 2021

- Gold on loan ¢ 11.569

Total financial assets . 11,569 = >

nstruments. mutual funds The fair value of all

Level 1: Level | hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoied prices. This includes listed equity i
losing net

cquity instruments that are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price at the reporting period. The mutual funds are valued using the ¢
asset value

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not
techniques which maximize the use of obsvrvabie data and rely as liftle as possible on enlity-specific cstimates If all significant inputs required to fa

instrument are abscrvable, the instrument is included in level 2
Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on obscrvabie market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the casc of unlisted
instruments, deposits, cmployee loans etc.

waded in an active market (for example: Over-the-counter derivatives) is determined using valuation
ir value an

(ii) Valuation technique used to determine fair value

Speeific value techniques used to value financial instruments include:

- the use of quoted market prices for listed instruiments

 the fair value of remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis.

(iii} Fair value of financial assets and finaacinl linbilities that arc not measured at fair value (but fair value disclosures are required)
‘The carrying values of financial assets and liabilities approximate the fair values
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36 Financisl instruments (continued)
36.3 Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty will default on its contractual obligations esulting in financial loss to the Company The Company deals mujorly
with creditworthy counterpartics and obtains sufficient collateral, where appropriate as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss (rom defaults. Credit nisk is
managed by the Company through approved credit norms, establishing credit Jimits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the
Company grants credil terms in the normal course of business. On account of adoption of Ind AS 109, the Company uses expected credit loss model to assess the
impairment loss, Credit risk arises principally from the Company's reccivables from customers Credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterpartics are
banks. Refer note 11(ii) for the disclosures for trade receivables.
36.4 Liguidity risk
The Company invests its surplus funds from time-to-time in various short-ferm instruments Sceurity of funds and hiquidity shall be the primary consideration while
deciding on the type of invesiments. The Company manages liquidily risk by maintaining adequate reserves. banking facilities and rescrve borrowing facilitics, by
continuously monitaring forecast and actux! cash flows and by matchings the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. The company expects to meet its
other obligations from operating cash flows and proceeds of maturing financial assets.
Liquidity risk tables
The followiny table below analyses the Corpany’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their maturities for all non-derivative financal
liailitics thal are net settled.
The tables have been drawn on an undiscounted basis based on the carlicst date on which the Company can be required to pay.
Particulars As at As at
B 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Securcd bank overdraft/term loan facility, payable
- Amount uscd 3,507 2,523
- Amount unused 4993 7917
Secured gold on loan facility, payable
- Amount used 23,643 11,569
- Amount unused 10,357 0,931
Ligquidity and interest risk tables
The following tables details the Company’s remaining contractual maturily for its non-derivative financial Jiabilitics with agreed repayment periods. The tables have
been drawn on an undiscounted cash flows of financial Jiabitities based on the carfiest date on which the Company can be requited 1o pay
As at 31 March 2022
Contractual maturities of financial liabilities Less than 3 months =3 months Total
Non-derivative
- Security deposits 20 202 312
- Borrowings 17,730 642 18,372
- Trade payables 16,303 592 16,895
- Gold on loan 8,384 15,259 23,643
- Lease habilitics 1,387 10,755 12,142
- Other financial liabilities 188 953 1.141
Total non-derivative liabilities 44,012 28,493 72,505
As at 31 March 2021
Contractual maturities of financial liabilitics Less than 3 months > 3 months Total
Non-derivative
- Sccurity deposils . 393 393
- Borrowings 9,432 2,843 12,275
- Trade payables 5,255 2,453 7.708
- Gold on lean 4319 7,250 11,569
- Leasce liabilities 415 9,082 9,497
- Other financial liabilities 175 490 665
\/ Total non-derivative liabilities 19,596 22,511 42,107
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36 Financinl instruments (continued)
365 Market risk )
The markel 1sks to which the Company is expased are price visk and foreign currency risk

Price risk
The Company 1s exposed 1o fluctuations in zold price (including fluctuations in foreign currency) arising on purchase/ sale of gokd

To manage the variability in cash flows, the Company enters into derivative financial instruments to manage the risk associated with gold price fluctuations relating
to all the highty probable forccasted transactions Such derivative financial instruments are poimarily in the nature of future commedity contracts and lorwid
tarcign exchange contracts. The risk managzement strategy against pold price fluctuation alsa includes procuring gold on loan basis, with a flexibility to fix price of
gold at any time during the tenor of the loat.

The use of such derivative financial instrunients is governed by the Company’s policies approved by the Board of Directors, which provide w1 itten principles on the
nse of such instruments consistent with the Company’s nisk managemen strategy

s changes n response 1o the value of the hedgzed fteny, the economie relationship 1S established.

As the vaiue of the derivative instrument geney

The following tabic gives details of contracts as af the end of the reponting period:

Particulars Nature of Medge Averape rate Quantity of hedge Nominal amount
) (Per gram) instruments {KGS)

31 March 2022 Faur value 5.173 11l Shi
31 March 2621 Cash flow 4,476 4 192

Cash flow hedge
The Company assesses the effectiveness of its designated hedges by vsing the same hedge ratio as that resulting from the quantities of ihe hedged nem and the

hedging instrument that the Company actually uses However, this hecdue ratio will be rebalanced, when required (1¢, when the hedge rann for visk management
putposes is no longer optimal but the 1isk munagement objective remains unchanged and the hedge continues to quality for hedge accounting), by adjustig
weightimgs of the hedged ftem and the hedping instrument.

sourees of hedge ineffectivencss include nusmaich in the weightings of the hedged item and the hedging instrument and the selling rate

fhe line item i the srandalone batance sheet that include the above hedging instruments ase ather financinl assets and other financial liabilitics

As al March 31, 2022 the aggregate amount of gains under forward/future contracts is recognised in “Other Comprehensive Income” and accumulated in the cash
fow hedging eserve. Details of movements in hedping reserve is as lollows

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Talance at beginning ol the year {(net of taxes) X

Changes in Gair vilue of effective portion of cash flow hedpes 315

Cumulative paini(loss) arising on changes 1 fair value of eash flow hedges reclassified 1o standalone (23 akas)

staternent of profit and loss
Balance at end of the year (et of taxes) -

Yair value hedge

The Company designates derivative contriscts as hedging 1
Changes i the fr value of hedging instruments and hedged itemis
Loss ‘Fherefore, thete will be no impact of the tlctuation i the price of the gold on the Company's profit for the period

nstruments to mitigate the risk of change in fur value of hedged item due 1o movement i gold pnces.
that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the Statement of Profit and

The table below shows the posinon of hedgmg instruments and hedged items as on the balance sheet date:

Commadity price risk - Carrying value of Maturity date Impact of fair value Disclosure in balance
Hedged item Hedging instrument hedge sheet
Hledped item - fixed gold 571 - 2 Invenlories
2 2 months (2 Other fimancial assers!

Hedgmg instrunient - devivaives
ather liabilitics

Foreign currcncy risk management
The Conpany 15 exposed to foreign exchanze risk arising through s sales and purehases denominaled in various lorcign currencics
(1) The risk management sirategy on forciy, ]

- curtency exchinge fMluctuation arising on account of purchase/ sale of pold is covared abowve
(i) In tespeet of normal purchase and sale transactions denominated 1o foteign currency, contracts dre measured al fair value through the standalune statemem of
profitond loss.

The carrying amount of the Company's forcign cuerency denominaicd manctary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting year arc is Tollows

Currency Liabilitics as at Assets as i
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
INR 430 161 1,826 *

*Represent amount less than | lakh

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis
The Company 15 manly exposed o USD. [he Comipany's sensifivily to a 1% increase and decrease in the INR against the relevant foreign cutrencies is presented

below
The sensitviny analysis includes only outstanding foreiy
forcign currency rates. There is an increase in profit of cquify by Rs 17 lakhs where the INR
the INR against the relevant currency. there would be comparable decrease in profit or equity

“the mherent foreign exchange tisk because the exposure at the end af the reporting penod

n currency denominated monetary ems and adjusts their translation at the pencd end for a 175 change n
strenpiliens 1% against the relevant currency Fora 1% weakening of

I management's opimton, he semsifivity analysis is unrepresentative of

\j does not reflect the exposure during the year




Caratlane Trading Private Limited

Notes 1o the standalone financial statements for the year cnded 31 March 2022
(AN amounts in INR takhs, wnless otherwise stated)

37 Estimated amount of contracts remaining

38  Impact of COVID-19 (pandemic)
The Company has taken into account all the possible impacis of COVID-
assessment of, liquidity and going concern assumption, recoverable values of its financial
in pricing and impact on leases. The Comipany has carried out this assessment based on
approvai of these standalone financial statements and believes that the impact of COVID-19 is not malcri
recover the carrying amount of its assets The impact of COVID-19 on the standalone financial stafements may
of these standalone financial statements owing to the nature and duration of COVID-19

39 Financial ratios

10 be exceuted on capital sccount and not provided for is Rs. 155 lakhs (Previous vear: Rs. 343 lakhs)

19 in preparation of these standalone financial statements, including but not limited to its
and non-financial asscts, impact on revenue 1ccognition owing to changes
available internal and external sources of information upte the date of
al 10 these standalone financial stalements and expects to

difter from that estimated as at the date of approval

Ratio

Numerator

_Denominator

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

% Variance

(u} Current ratio

{b) Debl-cquity ratio

{¢) Debt service coverage atio *

(d) Return on equity ratio

{¢) Inventory turnover ratio

() Trade receivables tumover ratia
(i) Trade payables turnover ratio
(h) Net capital turnover ratio

(1) Net profit ratio

(j) Return on capital employed *

Totz! current assels

Debt consists of
boirowings (fong
feriy and short term)

Prafit before finance
costs, depreciation
and amortisation and
1ax

Prolit for the ycar
Cost of goods sold
Revenue from
opurations

Denved purchases

Revanue from
opetations
Prafit before tax

Pralit before tax and
finuice cost

Total current liabilitics

Total equity

Finance costs +
Principal repayments
during the year

Total equity

Average [nventory
Avcerage trade
receivables

Aveiage trade payables

Working capital
Revenue {rom

operations
Total cquuty

1.0l

157
18 17%

84 15%
215
8573
917
32997

T R3%a

59%

092

=~
ta
)

10 95%

9.07%
220

8337
792

24.42

9%

-78%

66%

828%
2%
3%
16%
1251%|

1590%

-53%

* Finance costs primarily consists of interest on borrowings and inteicst on lease liabilities

Notes:

() Debt-cquily ratio has improved owing to increased profitability during the year which led fo increase in equity
(b) Debt-service coverage ratio, Return on cquity ratio and net profit tatio has improved owing to increased profits during the year

() Nel capital turnover ratio has improved owing to better working capital during the year and increase 1 revenucs by more than 75

year

40 Capital management

The Company's policy to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a
1o sustain future development and growth of its business (n order 1o maintain the capital
dividends lo ¢quity sharcholders The Company aims 10 manage |
returns to all its sharcholders For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capit

included s a part ol borrowings and gold loiun

ts capital efficiency so as to sa

% as compared © previous

foeus on total equity so as to maintain investors, creditors and market conlidence and

structure, the Company monitors the return on capital, as well as level ol

feguard it ability to continuc as a going concern and 1o optimize
al includes issucd capital and all other equity reserves and debt is

Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Total debt * 18,372 12,928
Total equity 11,732 1.788
157 723

Debt to cquity ratio

* Total debt includes only borrowings. Gold on loan and lease liabilities hias not been considered for the purpose of above,

4

Other statutory information :

(1) The Company do not have any transacticns with companies struck ofl.

(1it) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet 1o be registered wilh Repistrar of Companics beyond the statutory period

(1) The Company has not traded or invesles! in erypto currency or virtual currency during the financial year
(v) The Company is not classified as wilful defaulter

(vi) The Company doesn't have any transaction which is not recorded i

the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 such as search or survey

(vii) No funds have been advanced or loaned or mvested (either fiom borrowed funds or share premium or any other so!
or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign cntitics (*Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether

(i) Ihe Company docs not have any Benanui property or any proceeding which is pending apainst the Company for holding any Benami property

1 the hooks of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in

urces or kind of funds) by the Company to
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the

Intermediary shall, direetly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or an behalf of the Company (“Utimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, seeurity or the like on behall of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,
{viii) No funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“*Funding Parties™), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, direetly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entitics identified in any manner
V (1 whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiarics™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiarics




Caratlane Trading Private Limited
Nates to the standalone i isl st
(AN amoms in INR lakhs, unless othenvise stated)

42 Disclosure under scction 186 of the Companies Act, 2013

for the ycar ended 31 March 2022

As at Investment

Investment

i Nature of Asat
N I the enti i i i
ame of the entity relationship Purpose 1 1Aprll wade during lu|i‘!flmp!ll’&d 31 March 2022
2021 the year  during the year
Investmen!s
Investment in egidty instruments (unynoied)
StudioC Inc. USA Subsidiary ~ Strategic . 109 109
investment
) (=) (-) (-}
Name of the eatity Nature of Secured/ P Rate of Term As at Given during Receipt As at
relatienship unsecured wFpaar interest 1 April 2021 the year during the year 31 March 2022
Loans
StudioC Inc. USA Subsidiary Business 59 O 227
Unsecured  support o Yo " 227
() () ) ()

Brackets represents mumbers pertaining fo previous year.

As per our report of even date attached

for BSR & Co. LLP
Charicred Acenuniants

From regastrajon s 28N W= 10002
3 -

Yok 1

.

Vikash Gupta
Partuer
Membership Ne
Place: Bengaluni
Datc: April 30, 2022

59T

of the llJ:rd of Dhreey
C THADING PRIVATE

TNz }(n"r"nn.mn)
/ ,/" P4
-

amichand Sacheti
AMurzye Director
DIN: 01683592

Chief Financial OQfficer
Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 29. 2022

Aghok Kumar Sonthalia ‘
eector |
DIN: 03259683

Lo D

Ahuna Das Guptn
Company Secretary
Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 29, 2022




BSR&Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Embassy Golif Links Business Park Telephone +91 80 4682 3000
Pebble Beach, B Block, 3rd Floor Fax +91 80 4682 3999
Off Intermediate Ring Road

Bengaluru 560 071 India

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of CARATLANE TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CARATLANE TRADING PRIVATE
LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”) and its subsidiary (Holding Company and
its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”) which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31
March 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income),
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
cndcd, and notcs to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial
statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and reports
of other auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiary as were audited by the other auditors, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act™)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2022, of its consolidated
profit and other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements
in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant
provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us along with the consideration of reports of the
branch auditors and other auditors referred to in paragraph (a) of the “Other Matters™ section below, is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment and based on the consideration of
reports of other auditors on separatefinancial statements of components audited by them, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
\lb/opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Reglstorad Qifico:
B S R & Co. (a partnership firm with Registration No. BA61223) converted into B S R & Co. LLP 14th Flgat. Contral B Wing and North C Wing, Nesco IT Park 4, Nesco
{a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP Registration No. AAB-8181) with effect from Qctlober 14, 2013 Center, Western Express Highway, Goragaon (East), Mumbai - 400063
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CARATLANE TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)
Key Audit Matters (continued)

Revenue Recognition

See note 3(i) and 21 to the consolidated financial statements

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group recognises revenue when the control of
goods being sold is transferred to the customer. A
substantial part of Group’s revenue relates to
jewellery which involves large number of
individual sales contracts having varied contractual
terms with retail customers, online customers and
franchisees. This increases the risk of misstatement
of the timing and amount of revenue recognised to
achieve  specific  performance targets or
expectations.

The Group and its external stakeholders focus on
revenuce as a key performance indicator.

In view of the above we have identified revenue
recognition as a key audit matter.

In view of the significance of the matter, we applied
the following audit procedures in this area, among
other procedures, to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence in respect of revenue that has been
recognized:

1. Assessed the appropriateness of the accounting
policy for revenue recognition as per relevant
accounting standard.

2. Weevaluated the design and implementation of
key internal financial controls and their
operating effectiveness with respect to revenue
recognition transactions selected on a sample
basis. These included general IT controls and
key application controls over the IT system
which govern revenue recognition, including
access controls and controls over program
changes.

3. We perused selected samples of key contracts
with customers and franchisees to understand
terms and conditions particularly relating to
acceptance of goods.

4. We performed substantive testing of online and
retail sales by selecting samples of sales made
online and at the retail outlets using statistical
sampling and tested the underlying documents,
which included tracing sales to collection
reports and bank statements. For franchisee
sales (other than retail sales), we performed
substantive testing using statistical sampling
and tested the underlying documentation

including  verification of invoices and
collections thereon.
5. We tested, selected samples of sales

transactions made immediately pre and post
year end, agreed the period of revenue
recognition to the underlying documents.

6. We scrutinized manual journals posted to
revenue to identify unusual items.
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CARATLANE TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Inventories

Refer note 3(vi) and 10 to the consolidated financial statements

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group’s inventories primarily comprises
jewellery (consisting of gold, diamonds,
gemstones etc.). The Group holds inventory at
various locations including factories, fulfillment
centers, stores (retail outlets) and third-party
locations.

There is a significant risk of loss of inventory given
the high value and nature of the inventory
involved.

In view of the above, we have identified existence
of physical inventories as a key audit matter.

In view of the significance of the matter we applied
the following audit procedures in this area, among
other procedures, to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence:

1. We evaluated the design, implementation and
tested the operating effectiveness of key
controls that the Group has in relation to
safeguarding and physical verification of
inventories including the appropriateness of
the Group’s standard operating procedures
for conducting, recording and reconciling
physical verification of inventories and
tested the implementation thereof.

2.  We evaluated the design, implementation

and operating effectiveness of general IT
controls and key application controls over
the Group's IT system including those
relating to recording of inventory quantities
on occurrence of each sale transaction,
including access controls and controls over
program changes.

3. For locations selected using statistical
sampling, we attended physical verification
of stocks conducted by the Group, performed
roll-back and roll-forward procedures as at
the year end, where applicable. We also
performed surprise stock counts at selected
stores on a sample basis. We also checked on
a sample basis reconciliation of inventories
as per physical inventory verification and
book records.

4. For sampled locations, we obtained
independent confirmations of inventories
held with third parties.
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CARATLANE TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Other Information

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Holding Company’s Director’s report, but does
not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed and based on the audit report of other auditors, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give a true
and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs, consolidated profit and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under Section 133 of the Act. The respective Management and Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of each company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have
been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Management and
Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of each company to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for overseeing the
financial reporting process of each company.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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CARATLANE TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis
of accounting in preparation of consolidated financial statements and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial statements of such entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such
entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For
the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other
auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. Our responsibilities in this
regard are further described in paragraph (a) of the section titled “Other Matters” in this audit report.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
\i may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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CARATLANE TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

(a) We did not audit the financial statements of one subsidiary, whose financial statements reflect total assets
(before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 1,148 lakhs as at 31 March 2022, total revenues (before
consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 866 lakhs and net cash flows (before consolidation adjustments)
amounting to Rs. 165 lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial
statements. These financial statements have been audited by other auditor whose report have been
furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as
it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this subsidiary and our report in terms of
sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary is based solely
on the report of the other auditor.

The subsidiary is located outside India whose financial statements and other financial information have
been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in their country and which
have been audited by other auditor under generally accepted auditing standards applicable in their
country. The Holding Company’s management has converted the financial statements of such subsidiary
located outside India from accounting principles generally accepted in their respective countries to
accounting principles generally accepted in India. We have audited these conversion adjustments made
by the Holding Company’s management. Our opinion in so far as it relates to the balances and affairs of
such subsidiary located outside India is based on the reports of other auditors and the conversion
adjustments prepared by the management of the Holding Company and audited by us.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work
done and the reports of the branch auditors and other auditors and the financial statements certified by the
Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 (A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of reports of
the other auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiary as were audited by other
auditors, as noted in the “Other Matters” paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated

\{l)/ financial statements.
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CARATLANE TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued)

b)

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company
as on 31 March 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and
the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary company, incorporated in India, none of
the directors of the Group companies is disqualified as on 31 March 2022 from being appointed
as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company and the operating effectiveness
of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the
reports of the other auditors on separatefinancial statements of the subsidiary, as noted in the “Other
Matters” paragraph:

a)

b)

d)

The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March
2022 on the consolidated financial position of the Group. Refer note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts during the year ended 31 March 2022.

There are no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company or its subsidiary company during the year ended
31 March 2022.

(i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in the note 40 to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or
kind of funds) by the Holding Company or its subsidiary company to or in any other persons
or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever (‘“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) by or on behalf of the Holding Company or its subsidiary company
incorporated in India or provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the

\]\‘\ Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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CARATLANE TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued)

(i1)The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in the note 40 to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have been received by the
Holding Company or its subsidiary company from any persons or entities, including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Holding Company or its subsidiary company incorporated in India shall,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) by or on behalf of the Funding Parties or provide any
guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii)Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (d) (i) and (d) (ii) contain any material mis-statement.

e) The Holding Company and its subsidiary company have neither declared nor paid any dividend
during the year.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid during the current year by the Holding Company to its directors is in accordance with the
provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director by the Holding
Company’s not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of
Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are
required to be commented upon by us.

for BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Numbey: 101248 W/W-100022

Partner
Membership No. 064597
UDIN: 22064597A1EYLY 5235

Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 30, 2022
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Caratlane Trading Private Limited

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2022
(Referred to in our report of even date)

(xxi) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination, there
are no companies included in the consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company
which are companies incorporated in India except the Holding Company. The Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 of the Holding Company did not include any unfavourable
answers or qualifications or adverse remarks.

for BSR & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101248W/W-100022

\\\\, ),
Vikash Gll:p\Y
Partner

Membership Number: 064597
UDIN: 22064597AIEYLY 5235

Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 30,2022



BSR&Co.LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ report on the consolidated financial statements of
CARATLANE TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED for the period ended 31 March 2022

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year
ended 31 March 2022, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements of CARATLANE TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as “the
Holding Company™), as of that date.

In our opinion, the Holding Company, has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2022, based on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements criteria established by such companies considering the essential components of such
internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements based on the
criteria established by the respective Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,
2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material

\l\)/respects.



BSR&Co.LLP

CARATLANE TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s report (continued)

Auditor’s responsibility (continued)

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included obtaining
an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of the internal controls based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements includes those
policies and procedures that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
\l&/ or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.



BSR&Co.LLP

CARATLANE TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s report (continued)

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to consolidated Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

Jor BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 101248 W/W-100022

\[
Vikash Gupta

Partner
Membership No. 064597
UDIN: 22064597AIEYLY 5235

Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 30, 2022



{aratlane Trading Private Limited

Consolidated balance sheet

(oAl camounts in INR lakhs, naless otherwise stated)

Note As at As at
31 March 2022 __ 31 March2021
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 51 300 2,007
Capital work-in-progress (1) 2 :
Righl-ot-use asscts 6 7417 4.487
Intangible assets 5(i) 1.238 097
Intangible assets under development 50v) 530 Sl
Financial asscts
1. Qther financial assels T 4,445 4,569
Deferred tax assels (Net) 8 5.008
Income tax assets (Net) 8 115 Oo
Other non-current asscts 9 926 1.868
22,781 14,235
Current assets
Inventarics 10 53,940 25,453
Financial asscls
1 Investments H1(i) - 1.252
i Trade receivables 11D 057 382
it Cash and cash equivalents 11(iii) 592 195
iv Other bank balance 11{iv) 178 67
v. Loan reccivables 11(v) 198 73
vi Other financial assets 13{w) 1,517 1173
Other carrenl assels [ 8.891 o 1083
_ 66,373 - 33,488
______ 89.154 47,723
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES o - T
Equity
Equity share capital 13 665 663
Other equity 14 - 10,137 L33
] 10,802 1,788
Liabilities o i
Nen-current liabilities
Financial liabilitics
i Borrowings 15(i) 219 870
i Lease liabilities 15¢ii) 10,293 71,813
i Other finaneal liabilitics 15(iin 312 04
Other non-current liabilities 16 108 128
Provisions 17 674 401
11,606 9,516
Curreat habilities i T
Tancial abililics
Bonuwings 181 18,154 12,058
i Gold on joan 18(i1) 23643 11,569
iii Lease habililies 18(ini} 1,84y 1 081
t Trade payables 186iv)
ta) Total ouistanding dues of micro anc small enterprises ERY 615
1b) Total outstanding dues of ercditors other than macro aand small enterpriscs 13,303 1.093
+ Other [inancial liabilities 18(v) 1,174 ty
Other curent liabilitics 19 4,300 3135
Provisions 20 sy I L
G646 36419
89.154 47,723

Lummary of significant accounting polic:es
I'he accompanying notes are an inlegral pari of the consolidated {inanciai statements
As per cur report of even date altacned

jor BSR & Co. LLP
¢hartered Accounlants

Larm regst :um];fbcr 11248 W/ W-100022

\

Vikash Gupt|

Ashok Kumar Sonthalia

Partaee Mancging Director ireciar
vermneising Fo, 061597 DIN: 01683592 DIN. 03259683
Mace Beagalien
Date Apn! 30, 2022 ‘ %&f,]{"‘
. ey . shona Das Gt
Chief Financial Cificer L ompany Secretain
Place Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru

Dute Apnil 29,2022 Date April 29,2022



Caratlane Trading Private Limited
Consolidated statement of profit and loss
(ANl amounts in INK lukhs, unless otherwise stated)

. For the year ended For the year ended
Part
arficulars Note 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Revenue fram aperalions 21 125,503 71.570
Other income 22 899 734
Total income (1) 126,462 72,304
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 23(i) 93,498 43,097
Purchase of stock-in-trade 23(i) 12,132 10,708
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and ” (21,050) (3,734)
work-1n-progress (1)
Employee benefits expense 24 8,963 5,192
Finance costs 25 2,084 2,068
Depreciation and amortisation expense 26 2,664 2,183
Other expenses 27 24,299 12.028
Total expenses (IT) 122,590 72.142
Profit before tax {(111) [(1)-(11)] 3.872 162
Tax expense
- Current tax 8 1
< DNeferred tax 8 (5,058)
Profit after tax (A) 8,929 162
Other comprehensive income
Htems that will not be reclassified subsequently to the siatement
of profit and loss:
- Remeasurements of employec defined benefit plans 3l (157 5
- Income-tax on above 8 40 -
Jtems that will be reclassified to the statement of profit and loss:
- Effective portions of gains and Joss an designated portion 2 (2)
of hedging instruments in a cash {low hedge
- Exchange differences in translauing the financial statements 13 -
of foreign operations
- Income-tax on above - -
‘Total other comprehensive income (B) (102) JE—— )
Total comprehensivc income for the yenr (A+B) - 8.827 . 168
Earnings per equity share (par value of Rs. 2 per share)
Basic earnings per share 28 26,85 049
Diluted eanings per share 28 _ 26,67 048
Significant accounting policies 3

The acconspanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
As per our report of even date allached

for BSR & Co. LLP
Charterea Accountants
s pepsteglion nur

101248 W/ W-100022

\ -
Vikash Gupta
FPariner Mealdefy Director
Membership M 064597 [N 11683592
Place: Bengaluru
Dare: April 30, 2022
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Bengaluru
Date: Apnl 29, 2022

As m{rs;t’h;:

Direcror
DIN. 03259683

Ahona DS Guilta
Company Secretary
Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 29, 2022



Curniiane Trading Private Limited
Consolidatcd statement of changes in equity
(AN amounis in INR Jakhs, nnless vtlerwise siated)

A. Equity share capital

As per our report of even date attached

for BSR & Ca. LLP
Chartered {c conntains

1 xvgu anog number:
- l

Vikash Gupta
Pariner
Membenhip No Dupse?

Place Bengaluru
Date April 30, 2022

Particulars . Amount

Balance at the April 1, 20240 665

Changes in equity share capital dunng the year -

As at March 31, 2021 665

Changes in equity share capital during the year* 0

As at March 31, 2022 2====_6£

* Represents amount less than Rs. 1 lakh

B. Other cquity i I _ — [

. Reserves and surpluy
Other comprehensive incpne
Particulars Securities 5:::::::;1:;’ Retained Casht Nlow hedge | Foreiga Currency Re-measurcment of Total .
premme account bt reserve Translation Reserve dcl‘me‘d b'."'r"
obligation

Balance at the 1 April 2020 40,923 634 (40,552) - (132)] Y22
Pramwum on shares issued during the year 2 (2) = c - - (0}
Profit lor the year . 162 - ; - 162
Empluyee stock opion expense 3% - * - kT3
{Other comprchensive sacome 1ot the year (no of axe) - - (2) - 5 3

Total comprehensive incame for the year . - 162 (2 > 51 . 1aS
Balance 03 at 31 March 2021 40,915 718 40390 @) - (127) 1,123 |
{Balance as at 1 April 2021 40,925 718 (40,390) 2) . (127) 123
Premium on shares issued during the yesr 53 (32) . . ) : 2
Profit lor the year - 8929 . . . £.929
Employee slock oplion expense 165 ] 165
Other comprehensive income for the vear (nct of taxes) - - 2 13 _Il_ﬁgl
[Total compirehensive income for theyear : : 8929 2l 13 i 88
Balance as at 31 Mareh 2022 40.978 851 (31.461) - 13 i (244)f 10137}
Significant eccounting policies 3

The accompanying notes are un infegral par of the lidated financial

ardfo(.l):rmun of
(G, FRIVATE LIMITED

o
f

Ashok Kumar Sonthalin
Director
DIN: 03259683

Nankpmg Meoctr

DIN 01683592

Company Secreiary

Chief I'inancial Officer

Place: Bengaluru
Daic April 29, 2022

Place: Bengaluru
Date Apni 25, 2022




Caratlane Trading Private Limlted
Consolldsted siatement of cash flow
(Alt amounts in INR lakhs, unless othenwise stated)

Particulars Note For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
A. Cash flows from operating activities
Profir before tax 3,871 162
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amotisation expenscs 2,664 2,183
Allownnce for doubiful reccivables and bad debts written off 27 19
Interest income (5) (6)
Interest income on financial ssets carried at amortised cost (566) (414)
Deferred rental income and rent equalisation (78) (89)
Gain on sale of investment (net) (33) (43)
Finance cost 2,084 2,008
(Profit) / loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) (14) 3
Adjustment for foreign currency translation reserve 13 -
Property, plant and equipment written off 33 23
Employee stock option expense 165 36
Operating profit before working capital chunges 8,162 3947
Change in operating sssets and liabilities
(Increase)/ decreasc in trade reccivables (175) (66)
(Incrcase)! decrease in inventories (28,487) {5,353)
{Incrense)/ decrease in loans reccivable, financial and other assets (4,278) (1.755)
Increase/ (decrease) in vther financial linbilities 873 3
Increase/ (decrease) in provisions 305 65
Increuse/ (decrease) in gold on Joan nnd trade payables 21,528 5,237
Increase! (decrease) in other habilities _— 1,145 1.301
Cash generated (used in)/from operating activities before taxes (N7 3,379
Income taxes paid ey . K
Net cash (outflow) / inflow from operating activities (A) I (946) - 3.508
B. Cash fiows from investing nctivities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets and intangible asscts (2,775} (1,563}
under development
Proceeds from sale of property, plaot and equipment (75! 39
Purchase/sale of mutual fund investments, net 1,285 (1,208)
Interest received 566 5
(Investment)/redemption in other bank balances (i (63}
Leasc payments received from sub-leases 614 I )
Net cash used in investing activities (B) 310y {1.825)
€. Cash flows from financing activities
Payment lowards lease liabilities (3,014) (2.395)
Praceeds towards issuc of share capital 2 -
Repayment from barrowings (70,491) (38,237
Proceeds from borrowings 75,936 40,438
Intcrest paid _(1148)
Net cash (used in) / gencrated from financing activities (8] (1332)
Net cash increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {(A+B+() 151
Cash and cosh equivalents as at the beginning of the year 10 (ili) 144
Cush and cash equivalents as ut the end of the yeor 10 (iii) 495
Debt reconcillation statement in accordance with Ind AS' 7
Borrawings
Opening balance 12,928 10,727
Repayment of borrowings (70,491) (18.237)
Proceeds [rom borrowings 75,936 40,438
Closing balance _ 18373 12928
Reconciliation of Lease liability '
Opening balance 9,497 9,147
Payments made during the year (3,014) (2,385)
Non-cash changes 5,659 2.735
12,142 9497

Closing balance

Significant accounting policics
The accompanying notes arc an integral part of the consolidated finunciel statements

As per our report of even date attached

for BSR& Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

b g atiog mumbygi lﬂ]:-lﬂ\\"‘\”—lﬂﬂﬂ!l

Vikash Gupta
Paviner

Managing Dircetor

Membership No fjed 547 DIN: 01083542
Placc. Bengalury
Date: April 30, 2022

“BIAATW

Chief Financiat Officer

Place: Bengaluru
Dale, April 29, 2022
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Kumar Sonthalia
IMroctar

DIN: A325V0683

-~
Ahena Das Gup

Cumpany Secretary

Place: Bengalury
Date: April 29, 2022
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Caratlane Trading Private Linuted
Notes fo the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Corporaie information

Caratlane Trading Private Limited (“The Compuny”) wul its subsidiary (collectively, the “Group™), 13 primarily invalved in manufactures and trading of
jewelry online. Caratlane is = pubhic company donticiled in India, with its registered office situated at 2nd3rd & 4th Fioor No 32, Rutland Gate 2nd
Street, Khader Nawaz Khan Road, Nugambakkam, Chennzi, Tamil Nadu - 600006,

Basis of preparation and presentation i

(i) Statement of compliance

The cansolidated financial staiements comply m all material aspects with the Indian Accounting Standards {'Ind AS') notified under the Companics
{Indian Accountmg Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules. 2016 read with Section 133 of the
Compamses Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and ather relevant provision of the act under the historical cost convention on an accrual basis and gaing concern exepl
for certain financial instrumenis which are measured at fair valoes notified under the Act and Rules prescribed thercunder (together hercinalter referred
10 as ‘consclidated Financial Statements' or ‘financial statements’)

{ii) Basis of meassrement
The cansoliduted financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis under the historical cost convention except for the following items

a Certain financial assets and liabilitics that arc measured al fair value

b. Sharc based payments that are measured at fair value

¢ Net defined bencfit Jiability that are measurcd at fair value of present value of defined benetit obligations
d. Right of usc assets and leasz Labilities are measured al fur murket value as per [nd AS 116

Histonical cost is penerally baced an the fair value ot the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. Fair value is the price that would be
reccived lo sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly lransaction between markel participants at the measurement dale.

(iii) Use of estimates, assumptions and judgement

The preparation of consolidued finaicial statements m conloemity with Ind AS requires management 1o make judgements, estimates and assumprians
that affect the application of zccounting policies on the reported amount of assets and Tiabilitics, revenues and expenses and disclosure of contngent
liabilitics. Such estimates. assumptions and judgement arc based on management's evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as on the daw of
financial statements. The actual resull may difler from these estimates.

Estimales and assumpuions are reviewed on a periodic basis Revisions o accounting estimates are recognized prospectively

Judpgements

Information about judgements made in applying aceounting policics that have the most significant cffects on the amounts cecagnized in the consolidated
financial statements 1s included i the following notes:

. Note 30 - Leascs - whether an asrangement contains @ lease

- Note 31 -- Measurement of defined benefit obligations - Key actuarial assumptions

- Note 33 - Contruct asset and iiability

Assumptions and cstimation

Information about assumptor:, and estimation uncerwntics that have significant nsk of resulting in & matetial adjustment 1n the year ending 31 Mareh
2622 15 included in the followiag noies.

- Note 5 (i) - Uscful life of the Praperty, plant and equipment;

- Note 5 (it) - Uschul life of the Intangibie assets,

- Note 8 - Deferred tax assets - Valualion;

- Note 30 - Leases - Lease term and incremental borrowing rate

- Notes 31 - Measurement of cefined benefil abligations: key sctanial assuinptions,
- Note 33 - Contract asset and fabality

- Note 35 - Contingent hiahlities and commitments:

- Note 36 - Fair valuc measurement of financial instruments

Basis of preparation and prisentation (continued)

{iv) Functional and presentalion currency

liems included in the consohdated financial statements of the group are measured using the currency of the primary ceonomic environment m wlich the
group aperates (r¢ the “functional currency”). The cansolidated financial stareracnts are presented u Inchan iupee ("Rs "o "INR"}. which is the proup’s
functional and presentation currency and is rounded-afi'ta the neatest lakhs exeepn when otherwise indicated

(v) Measurement of fair values

Certain accounting policics and disclosures of the group requirc the measurement of faur values, for both financral and non-financial asscis and Liabikine:
& group reg

The group has an established control framework witls respect to the measurement of [air values and the valuation team regularly reviews significant

unobservable inpuls and valuzlion adjustments

Fanr values are categarised into different levels in a fan value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techiiques as follows

-Level | quotcd prices {unadjasted} in active markets tor idontical assets or habilities

- Level 2; inputs other than quoated prices included in Level { that are observable for the asset ar liability. cither dircetly (i c. as prices) or ndirectly (1 ¢
denived Irom prices).

- Level 3 inputs for the asset or liability that arc not based on observable markel data (unobservable inputs)

When measuring the tair value ol an asset or 2 liability, the group uses observable market data as far as possible

If the inputs used 1o measure (ac fir value of an asset or 2 liability fall into a difTerent levels of the far value hierarchy. then the fair value measurcnient
is categarised in its entirety in the same level of the foir valie hicrarchy as the Jowest level input that is sigmihicant lo the enine measurement

Further information about the assumplions made in the rieasuring {air values is included in the following noles
- Nole 36 - financial instruments




Caratlane Trading Private Limited
Naotes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(vi) Basis of consolidation

L he consolidated financial statements relate W Carstlane Tradmy Puivate Limited and entiticy controlled by the Company Control & achieved when the
Company has power over the entity, 15 exposed, or has rights, to variable retarns from its invalvement with the investee; and has the ability to affect the
entity's retwrns by using its power over the entity

The standalone financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary have been combined on 2 line by line basis by adding together the book values of
like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, afier fully eliminating intra-group balances, intra-group transactions and unrealised profit or losses,
These financial statements are prepased by applying unilorm accounting policies in usc at the Group.

Entitics controlled by the Company are consolidated from the date the control commences until the date control ceases.

The subsidiary company whick are mcluded in the consolidation and the Company's holdings is StudiaC Inc, the subsidiary is incorporated in the United
states of America and the ownership interest of the Company is 100% (Previous year: 100%)

The financial statcnients of the subsidiary company which 1s inchuided in the consolidalion are drawn upto the same reporting date as thal of the Conipany
ic March 31, 2022 The finaneial statements of the subsidiary included in consohdation arc audited

3 Sigaificute accounting policies
The accounting policics st ouz below have been applicd consistently 0 all periods presented in these consolidated Financial Statenients unless othenvise

indicated.

(i) Revenue recognition
Revenue is recogiized upon transter of conicol of promised guods or services Lo customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the group expects

10 receive in exchange for thes: goods or services.

Sale of products
Revenue from the sale of products is recognised at the point in time when control is transferred to the customer

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, net of customer incentives, discounts, variable considerations, payments
made to customers, other similar charges. as specified in the contract with the customer Additionally, revenuc exciudes taxes collected from customers,
which are subsequently remitied to governmental authoritics

Contract assets are recopaised when there 15 excess ol revenuc camed over biltings on contracts Contract assets are classified as unbilled receivables
(only act of mvoiemg 15 pending) when there is unconditional right to receve cash, and only passage of time is required, as per contractual lerms
Unecarned and delerred reverue (contract liability”) 15 recogmsed when there is billings n cxcess of revenues Advances received {or scrvices we
reponted as liabilities unul all conditions for revenue recognition are met.

1Jsc of significant judgements in revenue recognition

+ The group’s contracts witl cusiomers could welude promises to transfer multiple goods 1o a customer The group assesses the goods promised in 3
contract and identifics distinc, performance obligations in the contract Ideatification of distinet performance abligauon involves judgement 10 deterinine
the deliverables and the ability of the customer Lo henelit independently from such deliverables.

+ judgemenl is also required (o determing the transaction price for the contract The transaction price could be cither a lixed amount ol customer
consideration or variable consideration with elements such as volume discounts, performance bonuses, price concessions and incentives. The nansaction
price is also adjusted tor the ¢.Tects of the time value of maney if the contract includes 2 significant financing compenent. Any consideration payable to
the customer is adjusted to the Lransaction price, unless it 1s a paymient for a distnet good from the customer The estimated amount of variable
consideration s adjusted in the transaction price only 10 the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenuc recogniscd will not oceur and is reassessed at the end of each reporting period

+ The group uscs judpement o determine an approprizie cousetidated selling price for a performance obligation. The group allecates the transaction price
10 cach performance obligation on the basis of the rclative stand-alone selling price of each distnct pood or service promised 1 the contact Where
cansolidated selling price is not obscrvable, the group uses the expected cost plus margin approach to allocate the transaction price 0 each distinct
performance obligation

Interest income is recognized as it accrues 1n the cunsolidated statement of profit and loss using ettective inlerest rate method
Commission income is generally recogmzed when the related sale is executed as per the terms of the agreement

The group has deternsined that the revenues as disclosed m Note 21 are disaggregated {nto categories that depict how the sature, amount, uming and
uncenainty of revenue and cash flows are affected by econamic factors

i (a) Other income
Franchisce Signing Fees ‘Franchisce signing fees 15 recognised based on the Sranchisec stores apened during the year which varies vased on the location
It excludes taxes remitted to the govemment which are recovered from the Franchisec's




Caratlanc Trading Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

{ii) Property, plant and equipment
Items of Property. plant and cquipment are measured at cost less accunsulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any

The cost of an item of prope:ty, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price/ acquisition cost, net of any trade discounts and rebaies, any import
dutics and other Laxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from the tax autharitics), any directly attributable expenditure on makmng cthe asset ready
for its intended use, other incidental cxpenses and mierest on borrawings attributable to acquisition of qualifying property, plant and cquipment up to the
date the asset 1s ready for its intended use

Subsequent expenditure on property, plant and equipment after its purchase / completion is capitalized only if such expenditure resulls m an increase n
the future henefits from such assct beyond its previcusly assessed standard of performance

Advance paid towards acquisition of fixed assets oulstanding at each balance sheet date is disclosed as capita) advances under non-current assets
Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment 1§ recognized m the consolidated statement of profit or loss Capital works=in-
progress comprises the cost of assets that are not ready for their intended use at the balance sheet date

When sigmificant parts of plant and equipment arc required to be replaced at intervals, the group depreciates them separately based on their specific
useful lives Repairs and maintenance costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as meurred

The group identifies and determines cost of each companent/ part of property, plant and equipment separately, if the companent/ part has a cost which 1s
significant to the total cost of the praperty, plant and equipment and has uscful lile that is materially different from that of the remaining 2sset. Leaschold
improvements arc amortized over the estimated useful life of the asset or the lease period whichever is less

An item of property, plant ancl equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when nio future ceonomic benefits
e expected from its use or disposal Gains or losscs anising from de-recognition of Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of Property. plant and cquipment and are recopnized in the consoliduled

statement of profit and loss when the Property, plant and equipment 1s derecognized

Significate accounting policies (continued)
(i}) Property, plant and cquipmeat (continued)

Deprecianon methods, estimatzed wsefid 1ife and residial vale
Depreciation is calculated using straight-line methed 1o allocale their cost, net of their cstimaled residual values, over the useful lives af assels which s s

follows

Assetcatigary Munagement estimate Useful life as per
| of useful life __schedule U1
Furniture and fitungs - 10 years 10 years
Computer equipment 3 years 3 years
Computer server 6 vears G years
Office cquipments 5 years 5 years
Jewellery Machine 15 years 15 years
Vehicles S years 8 years
Mock jewellery i year 1 vear
Leaschold improvements 4 vears 1 case period

Depreciation for assets purchsed / sald during the period is proportionally charged.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and cquipment are reviewed at each finanaial year end and adjusteu
prospectively, il appropriate Based on technical cvaluation and consequent advice, the management behieves that its estimates of useful livey as given
abave best represent the periad over which maragemant expects [0 use these assels Changes in the expected useful life vr the crpecicd patiern of
consuniption of future economic henefits embodicd in the asset are considered to modify the amortization period or method, as appropnatc, and arc

treated as changes 1n accounting cstimates.
(i) Intangible assets
tin) Internally generated © Research and developnent

Fxpenditure on rescarch activiiies is recognized in the statement of prolit and loss as incurred
Development expenditure is capitahized as part of the cost of the resulting intangible assct only if the expenditure can be measured reliably, the product of
process 1s technicaily and commercially [casible, luture economic bencfits are probable, and the group intends (o and has sullicient resourees 1o complete
development and 1o use or scl! the asset. Otherwise, it 15 recognized in profit or loss as incucred. Subsequent o initial recognition, the asset 1s measured at

cost less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.

fb) Amortizaiion

Amoization is calculated 1o write off the cost of intangiblc asscts less their estimated residual values over d
line method, and is included 1n depreciation and amortization in Statement af Profit and Loss.

The estimvated usclul lives are as follows:

heir estimated uscful lives using the strmght-

Asset 7;7_ o B - . Useful life
Computer softwarc 3 years
Caratlane portal 3 years

Amortization method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of cach financial vear and adjusied prospectively, it appropnate
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(iv) lmpairment

(a) Financial asscts

The group recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) madel for the financial assels which are not {air valued throogh the statement
of profit and loss Expected credit loss is the difference between the contraciual cash flows and the cash flows that the entity expeets to receive,
discounted using the eflective interest rate, Loss allowanec for trade receivables is measuzed at an amount equal fo fifetime ECL. For all other Linancial
assets, expected credit losses are measured al an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless therc has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial
recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL, as required. The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the
loss allowance at the reporting date 10 the amount that is required to be recognized is recognized as an 1impairment gain or loss in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

(b) Non-financial assets

Intangible assets and propecty, plant and equipmen:

Intangible assets and property, plunt and equipment wre cvaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their
camying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose off impairment festing, the recoverable amount (i.¢. the higher of the [air value less cost te sell
and the valuc-in -use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asser does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from
other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs If such assets are considered to be impaired,
the impairment 10 be recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds the
estimated recoverable amount of the assel An smpairntent loss is reversed in the statement of profit and loss if there has been a change m the esumates
used to determine the recaverable amount The carrymy amount of the asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount
does 1ot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any accumulated amontization or depreciation) had no impairment loss
been recognized for the assel in prior years

Sipnificate accounting policies (continued)

(v) Leases
Group ay a lesyee
A contract is, or contains, a lease il the contracl conveys the nght to convol the use of an 1dentificd asset for a period of time in exchange for

consideration o assess whether a contract canveys the right (o control the use of an identified asset. the group assesses whether:
a. the contract involves the use of an identificd asser,
b. the group has the right to cbain substantially all the economic benefits from use of the asset throughout 1he period of use; and
c. the group has the right to durect the use of the asset

Al inception or on reassessmient of a confract that contains a lease component, the group allocates the consideration in the contract 1o cach lease
component ou the basis of the relative stand-alone prices of the lease components and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components

The group recognises right-ni-usc asset represenling s right 1o use the underlying asset for the lease lerm at the lease commencement date The cost of
the right-of-use asset measurce at mception shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease hiability, adjusted lor any lease payments
made at ar betore the commencement date, less any lease incentives reccived, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of the costs 1o he
incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying assel or restoring the underlying asset or sitc on which it is located

The right-of-use assct is subsequently measured al cost less accumulated depreciation, accumulated impaunient losses, « any and adjusted for any
remeasurement of the lease Liability

The right-of-use assets is depreciated usug the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term o1 useful life of right-of=
usc asset. The estimated useful lives of right-of-usc assets arc determined on the same basis as thase of property, plant and equipment, Righl-ol-usc asseis
are tested for impairment wheaever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recaverable. Impaiement loss, \Fany, 18 recognised in
the statement of profit and loss

The lease liability is initially mcasured at the present value of the lease payments that arc not paid at the commencemen date, discounted vsing the
interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the incremental borrowing rate applicable to the entity within the gronp
Generally, the group uscs its incremental borrowing ralc as the discount rate. Fur leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the group, on a lease by
lease basis, may adopt either the incremental barrowiny rate specific (0 the lcase or the incremental borrowing rate for the porttoho as a whole The lcase
payments shall include fixed payments, vanable leasc payments, residual value guarantees, excrcise price of a purchase option where the group 1s
reasonably certam to exercise that option and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the Jeasc term reflects the lessee exercising 4n oplion 1o
terminate the lease

The group has clecled not to recogmse right-of-use asscts and lease Labilitics for shont-term lcases of all assets that have a lease term of 12 monthe or less
and leases of low-valuc assets. The wroup recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense o0 d straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Group as a fesvor

When the group acts &s a lesso: at the mception, it determines whether cach lease1s a finance lease or an operating lease

The group recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-line basis over the lease term  In case of a finance lease.
finance income 15 recognised cver the lease term based on 1 pattern reflecting a constant penodic rate of retum on the lessor's netanvestment in the lease
When the group 15 an intermettiate lessor it accounts [or its interests in the head lease and the sub-iease separately It assesses the lease classification of a
sub-lcase with reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head leasc, not with reference to the underlying asset. 17 a head lease 15 a short -(erm
lease 10 which the group apphes the exemption described above, then it classifics the sub-lease as an operating lease.

JF an arrangement contains a lease and non-lease components, the group applics Ind AS 115-Revenue to allocate the consideration in the contract
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3 Significate accaunting policies (continued)

(vi) Inventorics

Inventones [other than quantiucs of gold for which the price is yet to be determined with the supplicrs (Unfixed Gold)j are measured al the lower of cost

and net realizable value. The cost is determined as follows:

(i) Raw materials aic valued at weighted average excepl solitaires which are valued at the cost of purchase.
(i) Work-in-progress and finished goads (other than gold) arc vaiued at weighted average cost of praduction
(i1i) Traded goods are valued iz weighted average / cost of purchase

(iv) Gold is vatued on first-in-tirst-oul basis.

.

Cost comprises all costs of purchase including dutics and 1axes (other than those subscquently recoverable by the group), freight inwards and other
expenditure directly attributable 10 acquisition. Work-in-progress and finished goods include appropnate proportion of overheads

Unfixed gold is valued at the p-ovisional gold pnice prevailing on the date of receipt of gold

Net realizable value represent the cstimated selling price for inveatories less estimated cost of comipletion and costs necessary 1o make the sale

(vii) Foreign currency transactions and balances

Fereign exchange transaction: are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the respective ransactions Exchange diftferences arising on
foreign exchange transactions settled during the year are recognized in the consolidated statemeat of profit and loss for the year

Manetary assets and liabilitics denominated in foreign currencies as at the consolidated balance sheet date ave translated at the exchange rates on tha

date. The resultant exchange difterences are recognized 1n the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary asscts and labilities which are carmed i terms of historical cost denommated in forcign currency are translated at an exchauge rate that

approximates the rates prevalent on the date of the transaction

(viii) Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred 1ax asset or hability during the year Current and deferred tax ue

recognized in consolidated statement of profit and loss, except when they relate 10 items that arc recogmzed in other

comprehensive incomu or directly in

equity, in which case, the current and deferred fax are also recognized in other comprehensive income of directly in equity. respectively

a) Current income tax: Current income tax for the current and prior periods ars measurcd at the amount expected o be recovered fram ot paid 10 the

\axation authoritics based on the taxable income far that year The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the a
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date The group offscts current tax assc
sel off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settie on a net basis. or to realize the asset and seftle the

mount arc those that are enacted or

(s and current tax liabilitics, where it has a legally enforceable right to

liability simultancously

b) Deferred incame tax: Deferred income tax assets and liatmlivies are recognized using the balance shect approach Deferred tax 15 recognized on

teinporary differcnces at the belunce sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amo
except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability

unts for financial reporung purposes,
a wansaction that 15 not 3 busiaess

combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction The carrying amount of deferred tncome 1ax assets is
roviewed at cach balance shect date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part

of the deferred mcome tax assct to be utilized.

Deferred income tax asscls zre recognized for all deductible temporary differences, to the extent
against which the deductible wemparary differences can be utilized Deferred inco
unused tox losses, 1o the exteit that there 1s convincing evidence that taxable profit wil
and unused tax losses can be wilized

Deferred income tax asscts ard liabilitics are measured using, tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or subst
date and are expected to apply (o taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected 10
changes in tax rates on defeired income 1ax asscts and liabilites 15 recopnized as an income or expense u the p

substantive enaciment date, .

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at cach reponting datc and recagnized to the extent that

will allow the deferred tax asset 1 be recovered,
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offsct if a legally enforceable right exists fo set off cusrent tax as:

the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable eatity

that it is probable that taxable profit will be avinlabie
me tax assels are recognized for carry forward of unused tax credits and
| be available against which the cary forward of unused tax eredits

antively enacted by the balance sheet
be recovered or scttled The effect of
eriod that includes the enactment or

it has become probable that futuse taxable profits

scts aganst current tax habilities and
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Significate accounting palicies (continued)

(ix) Employee beaefits

i) Short term employee benelits

All employee benefits payable within twelve manths of rendenag the service are classified as short-term employce benefits Benefits such as salanies,
short-term compensated absences and incentives ctc, are recogmized in the consolidated statement of profit and loss for the year in which the employee
renders the related service

ii) Defined contribution plan

All eligible employees receive benefit from provident fund, which is a defined contribution plan. Both the employce and the group make monthly
contribution to the fund, which is cqual 1o a specified percentage of the covered employce's basic salary and including other fixed component not linkea
to the performance of employeas. The group has no further obligations under this plan beyond its monthly contributions

iii) Past employment benefits

The group provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan covermg all cligible emplayees. The present value of abligation under such defined benefit plan is

determined based on actuaria) valuation carricd at the year-end using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes cach peried al service as giving
rise 1o additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures cach unit separately to build up the final obligation. The obligation 1s measured at the
present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rate used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plans, 18

based on the market yiclds on Government securities as af the balance shect date having maturity periods approximating the term of the related

ohligation The group recognizes the net obligation of a defined henelit plan n its balance sheet as an assct or liubility Gams und lasses through re-
measurements of the net defined benefit liability / {asset) are recognized in other comprehensive income. In accordance with Ind AS. re-measurement

gains and losses on defined benefit plans recoguized in OCI are aot to be subsequently reclassified to consolidated statement of profit and loss As

required under Ind AS compliant Schedule 11, the group trausfers it immediately to retained carnings.

‘The plan provides a lump-sum payment to cligible employees at cetirement ar on fermination af employment based on the salary of the respeclive

cmployee and the years of employment with the group The gratuity liability is accrucd based on an actuarial valuation at the balance sheet dare, carried

out by an independent actuary

iv) Compensated absences
Compensated absences which are not expeeted to occur withm twelve months after the cnd of the period i which the employee renders the related
services are recoumized as an actuarially determined liability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date using the
projected unit credit method

(x) Employee stock option expease

The group measures compensation cost relating to shave-based payments using the fair valuation method in accordance with lnd AS 102, Share-Based
Payment. Campensation expense 15 amortized over the vesting period of the option on a straight-line basis over the requisiic service period for cach
separately vesting portion of the award as if the award was in-substance, multiple awards.

‘IT'he cost of equity-settied transactions is determined by the fair value at the dae when the grant is made using the Black-Scholes-Meron Model The
expecied term of an option is estimited based on the vesting term and contractual life of the option. Expected volatility during the expected term of the
option is based on the histonical volatility of similar companies. Risk free interest rates arc based on the government sccurities yield in cffect at the time of
the graat

The cost of equity settled transactions is recognized. together with a corresponding increase in share options outstanding account in equity, over the
geriod m which the performance and/or service condinans are fulfilled The cumulative expense recognized for equity-sertied transactions at cach
reporting date until the vesung date reflects the extent Lo which the vesting period has expired and the group’s best estimate of the number of cquity
instruments that will ultimately vest The income stalement expense or credit for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recogmzed as
at the beginning and end of thut period and is recounized in employee benclits expense The dilutive cfifect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilion in the computation of diluted carnings per share,
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Significale accounting policies (continued)

(xi} Financial instruments
Recognition of financial asscrs and financial liabilities:
Financial asscts and financial hiabilitics are recognized when the group becomes 2 party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial asscts and liabilities arc mitially recognized ul fair value. Transaction costs that are dircctly attribulable to financial asseis and liabilties {other

than financial assets and liabilitics measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)] are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial ‘
pssets or linbilitics, as apprapriate on initial recognition, Transaction costs directly anributable to acquisition of financial asscts or labiliues measured ai |
FVTPL are recognized immediately in the statement ol profit and loss

All recognized financial assets are subsequently measured m taeir entirety at either amortized cost ar fair value, depending on the classificauon of
financial assets

A) Financial assets

Classification of financial assets:

On initial recognition, a financ.al asset is classified at

(i) Amartized cost

(ii} Fair valuc through other comprehensive income (FVOCT)

(1ii) Fair value through prolit und loss (FVTPL)

Financial asscts are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the group changes its business mode! for managing
financial assets

fil Financial assets carried at amortized cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost 1f 1t is held within a business model whose abjective is ta hold the asset in order to collect
contractaal cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give risc on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding

Financial assels af fair value through comprehensive inconie

A financial asset is subsequently measurcd at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a busimess model whose objectve 13
achieved by both collecting coatractual cash flows and sclling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give nise an speaified dates
1o cash flows that are solcly payments of principal and mterest on the principal amoust autstanding

Financial assets at fair valuy (ivough profit and loss
A financial assct which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued through profit or loss

B) Financial liabilities: classification, subsequent measurement and derecognition:

Financial liahilities carvied ar amortized cos!
Financial liabilities are subscquently carricd at amortized cost usmg the effective interest method For trade and other payables maturing within one

from the balance sheet date, the carying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these insiruments

Financial lnabilities at fair vaive tivongh profit and luss
A financial liablities which is nat classificd in any of the abave categories are subsequently carried at fair value thro

year

ugh profit ar loss

Derecognition

Financial assels

The group derccognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or il transfirs the right 1o receive

\he contractual cash flows in o transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred or in
nor retains substantially all af the risks and rewards of ownership and docs not retain control of the financial asset.

which the graup neither transfurs
If the group enters into transzctions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its balance sheet, bul retains cither ali or substantially all of the risks aoud

rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets arc not dzrecognized.

Financial habilities

The group derecopnizes a linancial liability when its contractual obligations arc discharged or
financial lisbility when its teris are modified and the cash flows under the modilied terms are substantially
based on the modified terms is recognized at fair value The difference between the carrying amount of the financial ha
financial liability with madificdl terms is recognized in the canselidated statement of profit and loss

cancelled, or expire. The group also derccopnizes 2
different, b thss case, a new financial hability
bility extingmshed and a new

Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liahilitics are offsct and the net amount presented in the consolidated balance sheet

cusrently has a legally enforceable right to set off the
simultancously

when, and only when, the group
amounts and it intends cither to seltle them on a net basis or realize (he assel and settle the lability
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3 Significatc accounting policies (continucd)

(xii) Derivative financial instruments

a, Fair value hedge .
With effect from | November 2021, the Group adopted fair value hedge for the derivative contricls entered into and designated denivative contracts or

non-derivative financial libilitics as hedging instruments to mitgate the risk of change in fair value of bedged {tem due to movement m interest rates,
foresgn exchange rates and commodity prices Changes (i the [ar value of hedging instruments and hedged items that are designated and qualify as lar
value hedges arc recorded i the Statement of Profit and Loss with an adjustment to the carrymg value of the hedged item Hedge accounting is
discontinued when the Group revokes the hedge relationship, the hedging instrument or hedged item expires or 15 sold, terminated, or exercised ar no
longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting

The Graup designates derivative contracts as hedging mstruments to mitigate the risk of change in fair value of hedged item i ¢ fixed gold inventory duc
to movement in gold prices The Group also designated the tade payables pertaining to gold taken on loan from banks (‘unfixed gold') as a far value
hedge 10 the corresponding gold inventory purchased on loan

b. Cash fMlow hedge

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to manage risks associated with gold price fluctuations relating to certain highly prabable forecasted
transactions, foreign currency [luctuations relating to cenain firm commitments The Group has designated derivative financial instruments taken for gold
price fluctuations as ‘cash flow' hedpes relating to highly probable forecasted transactions

‘The use of derivative financial instruments is govemed by the Group's policies upproved by the Board of Directors, which provide writicn principles on
the use of such instruments consistent with the Group's risk management strategy

Hedping instruments are witiatly measured at fair value, and are re-measured at subsequent reporting dates. Changes in the fair value of these derwvatives
that are designated and effectve as hedges of fature cash flows are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading
hedging reserve and the inettectve portion 15 recogmised immediately in the statcment of profit and loss

Hedge accounting s discontinued when the hedging wistrument cxpires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or nu lunget gualifies [ hedge accaunting
For forecasted transactions, auy cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognised in hedging reserve is retained unti} the lorecast ransaction
occurs upan which it is recogrised in the statement of profit and loss. If a hedged transaction is no longer expected 1o occur. the net cumulative ga m
loss accumulated in hedging reserve is recognised immediately to the statement of profit and loss

The Group has designated derivative Bnancial instruments taken for gold price fluctuations as 'cash llow' hedges relating to highly probable forecasted
iransactions The Group has lulowed cashflow hedze for hedging contracts taken till 31 October 2021

(xiii) Provisions and contingent labilitics

a General

Pravisions are recognized when the group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it 1s probable that an outflow of
resources embodying econonie benefits will be required to seitle the obligation and a reliable cstimate can be made of the amount of the abligation
When the group expects some or all of a provision 1o be reimbursed, the expensc selating 1o a provision 15 presented in the consolidated statement af
prafit and loss nct of any reimbursement. If the effect ol the time valuc of money is matcrial, provisions are discounted using a current pre-lax rate that
reflccts, when appropriate, the nsks specific to the Jubility When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due Lo the passage of ime is
recognized as a finance cost

b Contingent liahilitics
A disclosure for contingent liabilitics is made where there is a possiblc obligation or a present obligation that may probably not require an outtlow of
resources. When therc is a possible or # present obligation where the likelihoed of outflow of resources 15 remole, no provision or disclosure 18 made

. Cerous contreacis

Provision for onerous contracis i ¢ contracts where the expected unavoidable cost of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the cconomic
benefits expected 1o be received under it, are recognized when 1t is probable that an outflow of resources cmbodying economic benefits will be reguired
{0 settle a present obligation as a result of an abligatng event based on a reliable esimate of such obligation

(xiv) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash cquivalents comprise of cash on hand, demand dcposits with banks and balances with banks. The group considers all highlv ligud
investments with an onginal raaturity at the date of puichase of threc months or less and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash to bz cash
cquivalents

{xv) Consolidated cash flow statement

Cash fNows are reported using the indirect methed, whereby net loss before 1ax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cush nature, any
deferrals or accruals of past or fulure operating cash rceeipts or payments and item of iicome or expenscs associated with ivesting or financing cash
Nows ‘The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the group arc segregated

(xvi) Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in conneetion with borrowing of funds The borrowing cast includes interest expense acerucd on
goid on loan taken from banks Borrowing costs attributable to acquisition or construction of an assct which necessanly take a substantial penod of ume
1o get ready for their intended use are capitalized as pait of the cost of assel. Other borrowing costs are recogrused as an expense in the period m which
they arc incurred
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Significate accaunting policies (continued)

(xvii) Earning per share

Basic caming per share is coriputed by dividing the net lass after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year

Diluted loss per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares considered [or deriving basic loss
per sharc and also the weighted average namber of cquity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential cquity shares

Diluted camings per share is compuled using the weighted-average number of equity and dilutive cquivalent shares outstanding during the year. using the
treasury stock method for options, except where the results would be anti-dilutive. The diluted potential equily shares are adjusted for the procceds
reccivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value (1 the average market value of the outstanding shares) Dilutive potential cquity shares are
deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date

(xviii) Scgment Reporting

Operating segments are reported i a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operatiag Decision Maker ('CODMY} The
Board of Directors of the group assesses the financial performance and position of the group. The Managing Director has been identificd as the CODM
The group operates in one segment only i.c Jewellery The CODM evaluates the group's performance based on the revenue and operating income trom
the sale of Jewellery Accordingly, no additional segment disclosure has been made far the business segment

In terms of geographical segment, since the group operates only in India. there is only one geographical segment, i¢ India Accordingly. no additional
disclosure has becn made for peographical segment information.

Recent pronouncemments:
The amendments specilv thai tv qualify for recagnition as pant of applying the acquisition mothod, the identifiable assets acquired and hiabilites assumed
must meet the definitions of asscts and Labulities in the Conceptual Framework for Financiul Repurting under Indian Accounting Standards (Conccptual
Frantework) issued by the Inst.ute of Chartered Accountants of India at the acquisition date These changes do not significantiy change the requirements
of Ind AS 02, The group dous not expect the amendment 1o have any significant impact in its consolidated inancial starements

a) Ind AS 103 - Reference 1o Conceptual Framework
The amendments specity thal (o qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method, the identifiable asscts acquired and liabihuies assumed
must meel the definitions of assets and liabilities 1 the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under indian Accounting Standards (Conceplual
Framewaork) issucd by the [nstitute of Chartered Accountants of India at the acquisition date These changes do not significantly change the requircmants
of Ind AS 103 The group does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its consolidated financial statements.

b) Ind AS 16 - Proceeds before intended use
The amendments mainly prohibit an cntity from deducung from the cost of propenty, plant and equipment amounts received from selling wems produced
while the group is preparing the assct for its intended usc Instead, an entity will recognise such sales proceeds and related cost in profit or loss Jhe
uroup docs not expeet the amendments to have any impact i its recognition of its property, plant and cquipment in 1ts consolidated financial statements

¢) Ind AS 37 = Onerous Comriscts - Casts of fulfilling a contract
The amendments specity that that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that refate directly to the contract” Cuosts thal rclute durectiy wa

contract can cither be incremental costs of fulfilling that cantract (examples would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of ether costs that el
directly to fulfilling contracts “The amendment is essentially  clarification and the group docs not expect the amendment to have any signilicant impuct in
its consolidated financial staterients

d) Ind AS 109 - Annual improvements to Ind AS (2021)
The amendment clarifies which fees an catity includes when it applies the *10 percent” test of Ind AS 109 i assessing whether to derecogmise a linancial

liability The group does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its consolidated financial statemcents.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statemcnts for the yea: ended 31 Mavch 2022

(Al amounis in INR lakhs, unless othernwise stared)

5(i) Property, plant and equipment*

Gross carrying amount Accumulated depreciation Carryt;:nge :]'““’-'“'
Fartieuiace Asat . _ Asal Asat| Charge for the i As at Asat
1Apriizoz|  Additions Deletions 31 March2021|  1April2021]  year Deletions 31 March2022| 31 March 2022
'Tangihk' nssets T | -1
Furmiture and fisungs 3 200 7 921 253 82 29 306 615
Leaschold improvements 12421 1od 75 1,631 729 229 49 909 122
Compuer equipment 635 ‘ 409 11 1,033 | 432 178 40 569 464
Computer zarver . (& . 38| 16 3 - 19 18
|Mucl; Jewellery 250 - - 250 | 250 - - 250 -
OMice equipsien T3 50 96 1,136 | 3a] 138 31 498 638
Jewellery machine 491 27 25 693 99 44 2 1411} 552
{Veheles o 3 - - 3 2 - - 2; 1
| Tetal (A) 4179 1,807 281 5705 | 2,172 674 151 2,695 | 3.010
| Gross carrying amount Accumulated depreciatinn | CBI.“I:’}'I.:lngE:‘NG'I.II]l
Particulars As a_t| Additions Déleticas As pl Asat | Charge for the Deletions As at As al
1 April 2020 ° 31 March 2021 1 April 2020 year 31 March 2021 31 March 2021
Tapgible assets e !
Fumiture and fittings 766 74 45 795 204 75 26 253 542
Leasehold improvements 977 314 49 1.242 577 177 25 729 513
Computer equipment 506 136 7 635 318 115 1 432 203
Computer server 26 6 - 32 13 3 - 16 16
Mock jewellery 250 - - 250 250 - - 250 -
Office equipment 591 164 24 731 311 93 13 . 3911 340
Jewellery machine 275 216 - 491 73 26 - 99 392
Vehicles 19 2 18 3] 4 2 4 2 1|
Tatal (A) = 3410 912 143 4,179 | 1,750 491 69 2,172 2,007 |

*Refer note 18(1)




Caratlane Trading Private Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(4 amounts in INR iakhs, wnless otherwise stated)

S(ii) Intaogible assets

Gross carrying amount Accumulated amortization Carrying amount
(net)
Particulars As at As at Asat| Charge for th as 3
sa . . a arge for the < at As at
: t
1 April 2021  Additions D 31 March 2022 1 April 2021 year Deletiies 31 March 2022 31 March 2022
Intangible assets |
Computer software 1,658 1.078 - 2,736 9¢1 537 1,498 1,238
Caratlane portal 239 - - 239 239 - - 239 -
Total 1.897 1.078 - 2,975 1,200 537 = 1.737 1,238
Gross carrying amount Accumulated amortization Carrying amount
Particulars e o - o e (net)
a " . s at | arge for the . at As ar
Ad 2l L
1 Aprit 2020| Eiions Deletians 31 March 2021/ . 1 April 2020 vear Deletions 31 March 2021 31 March 2021
Intangible assets
Computer software 1,298 501 141 1,658 628 451 118 951 697
(aratlane portal 2531 i - 14 239 253 - 14 239 -
Toal - ) e s 155 1.897 | 881 4al 32 vaae 697
S(iii) Ageing of Capital Work in Progress
Asat 31 March 2022 : o T —
CWIP Amount in CWIP for a period of Total
Less than | year | 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
{a) Projects in progress 2 - . - 2
(b) Projects temporarily suspended b - B e B e o - .
Total ] 2] . " . 3
As at 31 March 2021 :
1 Amount in CWIP for a period of
CWIP Total
| Less than 1 vear 1-2 years | 2-3 years More than 3 years
(a) Projects in progress - - . - -
{b) Projects temporarily suspended - - = . -
Total - - - - -
5(iv) Ageing of Intangible assets under development:
As at 31 March 2022 : I
- Amount in Intangible assets under development for a period of
1 Total
Tntapgibizastisunder deyelopment Less than 1 year | 1-2 vears 2-3 vears More than 3 vears °
{a) Projects in progress . 530 i - - - 530
(b) Projects temporarily suspended L | - L - .
Total 530 | - - - 530 |
As at 31 March 2021 ; -
Amount in Inanugible assets under development for a period of
] cw fdin Total
L 1P Less than 1 year I 1-2 vears l 2-3 years [ More than 3 years
|2 Projects in progress 271 § 1! 131 | - 514
{h) Projects temporarily suspended P o - | :
L 2m 111 131 e B4




Caratlane Trading Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Al amounts in INK lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

G Right of use assets*

Parliculars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Owuned nssets

Buildings

Asat Apnl 1 6,739 5,354

Add ; Additions 4382 1,385

Less Modifications / Terminations - -

As at March 31 11,121 6.739

Accumulated amortisation

As at April | 2,252 1,001

Add - Amortisation Expenses 1,453 1,241

Less : Modifications / Terminations - -

Net carrying value 7417 4.487

*Also refer note 30

7 Other financial assefs

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Unsecured, considered good

Security deposits 944 926

3,482 3,630

Lease receivables (Refer note 30)

Other deposits 19 10
- 4,445 4,566




Caratlanc Trading Private Limited
Notes to the consnlidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

8 Income tax asset (net)

a)  The following is the analysis of deferred tax nssets/{liabilities):

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Detferred tax assets 5.098 -
5,098 -
Particulurs : As at Recognised in the Recognised in other As al
1 April 2021 statement of profitand  comprehensive income 31 March 2022
loss
Deferred tax assets -
Provision for doubtful trade reccivables - 11 1
Property. plant and cquipment - 218 - 208
Employee benefits 193 40 235
Lease habilitics (net of Right-of-use assets) - 156 - 150
Carryforward of losses and unabsorbed depreciation - 4.480 - 4,480
- 5,058 40 B 5,098
b) Amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Income tax cxpenses
Current tax 1
Deferred tax (5,058)
Income tax included in other comprehensive income on
- Remeasurement of employee defined benefit plans (40)
Tax expense for the vear (5.097) ke

¢)  The reconciliation between the provision of incame tax and amounts computed by applying the Indian statutory income tax rate to prolit belore taxes

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 202§
Prafit before tax 3872 162
Enacted income tax rate in India 2517% 2517%
Computcd expected lax expense 975 41
Effect of:
Eftect of deferred taxes on carry-forward losses, unabsorbed depreciation and others not (6,032) (41)
recognised in carher years o
Income tax expensc recognised in the statement of profif and loss (5,057) I S

Note Trom the Assessment Year 2022-23 relevant to the previous year 2021-22, the Group has elecled o exercise the option permitied under
section 11SBAA(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 after satisfying the conditions contained in section 115BAA(2) as introduced by the Taxation

Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019 Accordingly, the Group has not recognized Minim
income tax for the previous year ended 31 March 2022 and computed deferred tax based on
carried torward losses.

um alternative Tax (MAT) under the provision for
the rate preseribed in the said seetion primarily for the

d) The following table provides the details of income tax assets and income tax liabilities as of 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021:

Particulars As at As ut
_— 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Income tax assets (net) it 96
Current tax liabilities (net) - -
Net current income tax assets at the end of the year s -
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 202§
Net current income tax assels at the beginning ol the year 96 225
Income tax paid/Refund received 49 (129}
Refund received during the year 30 -
115 e 96

(_1 Net current income tax assets nt the end of the year

vy
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

9 Other non-currcnt assets

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Unsecured, considered good
Capital advances 168 87
Deferred rental deposit 115 138
Balance with revenue authorities 643 1,643
926 1.868
10 Inventories
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Raw materials 12,483 5,047
Work-in-progress 1,078 486
Finished goods 32,649 14,147
Stock-in-trade 7.730 5773
53,940 25,453

{i) The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the year 1s Rs 84,580 lakhs (Previous year: Rs. 50,071 lakhs).
(1) The cost of inventories recognised as an expensc includes Rs. 5 lakhs (Previous year: Rs. 15 lakhs) in respect of write down of inventory to net-realisable value.

{iii) The inventory includes gold purchased on loan from banks amounting to Rs 23,643 lakhs (Previous year: Rs 11,569 lakhs)
(iv) There are no goods-in-transit as at 31 March 2022 (Previous year: Rs Nil)
fiv) Refer point 3(vi) under significant accounting policies for mode of valvation

il Financial assets

{i) Investments

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Tnvestments in mutual funds (Unquoted)- {at fair value through profit or loss}
Name of the fund
411,012 units (previous year - nil) 1CICI Prudential Liquid Fund -Direct-Growth - 1,252
Quoled
Aggregate book value - 1,251
\, (,’ Aggregate niarket value - 1,252
F - 1252




Caratlane Trading Privatc Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise staied)

(ii) Trade reccivables

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Unsecured
Trade reccivables, considered good 1,024 713
Reecivables from related partics (refer note 29) 33 169
Less: Allowance for doubtful trade reccivables 4 :
Considercd good 1,057 882
Trade reccivables, credit impaired 43 43
Less: Allowance for doubtful trade receivables (43) (43)

1,057 882
(a) Apeing of reccivables :
As at 31 March 2022
Particulars __ Outstanding for following pcriods from due date of payment
Less than 6 months # G months - > 1 year

1 vear
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considercd good 871 186
(i) Undisputed Trade Recervables — which have significant =
increase in credit risk
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired * = 3 40
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables— considercd good - -
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables —which have significant -
increase in credit risk
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired -
Total 871 189 40

# includes amount not due

* The outstanding amount for more than a year to 2 year amounts 1

than 3 years amounts to Rs. 7 lakhs

As at 31 March 2021 :

o Rs. 28 lakhs, more than 2 year to 3 year amounts to Rs 5 lakhs and tor more

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars

L ess than 6 mouths # 6 months - > 1 year

1 year

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considercd good 874 8
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant S
increase in credit risk
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credil impaired * 4 i9
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables— considered good #
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant -
increase in credit risk
{vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired : = e B ]
Total - 874 12 a9

# includes amount not due

than 3 vears amounts to Rs 7 lakhs

(b) Movement in the expected credit loss allowance :

* The outstanding amount for more than a year to 2 year amounts to Rs 27 lakhs, more than 2 year lo 3 year amounts to Rs 3 lakhs and for more

Particulars As at As at
. 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Balance at the beginning of the year 43 24
Provision created during the year - 19
Bad debts written off during the year . .
43 43

\(5/“"““ at the end of the year
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11 Financial assets (continued)

(iii} Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars As at As at
R 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Cash on hand ) 64 42
Balances with banks :
(i) in current accounts 499 33
(i1) m EEFC account 29 -
Deposits with original maturity of less than three months - 120
591 495
(iv) Other bank balances
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Depasits with original maturity of more than three months 2 -
Deposits under lien* 176 67
s 178 67
* Pertains Lo deposits with bank for duty free gold purchases which are intended to be exported
(v) Loan receivable
Particulars As at As at
L 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Unsecured, considered good
Employce loans 198 73
198 73
(vi) Other financial assels
Particulars As al As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Unsecured, considered good
Lease receivables (Refer note 30) 625 689
Security deposils 320 296
Interesi accrued on lixed deposits 6 2
Other receivable (Refer note (a) below) 510 171
Margin money for gold future contracts 56 20
1517 1,178
{a) Balance pertains to amount reccivable from franchisee's towards day o day expenditure
12 Other current assets
Particulars T Asat As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Unsecured, considered good
Balance with revenuc authorities (Refer note (2) below) 7511 3419
Prepayments 330 214
Contract assets (Refer note 33) 264 197
(Other assets - 20
Advance 10 suppliers 916 395
Less Allowance towards advance to supplier . (131) (157)
8,891 4,088
Notes:

(1) Balance with government authorities includes GST credits of Rs 8,154 lakhs (Previous year: Rs. 5,061 lakhs) in respect to GST input credit.

\/ (b Contract asset represents the amount of goods expected to be reccived by the Group on account of sales return.

{/\

-
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13

V.

Share capital

: As at 1 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021 B

Purticulars
No of shares Amount No of shares Amount

Authorised share capital
Fiuity sharc of Rs. 2 cach with voumg riphts 44.953,234 999 49,953,234 v99
Tutal authorised share capiinl 49,953,234 999 49,953,234 gy
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up equity share capital
Cquity share of Rg 2 cach with voting vights - 33.270.052 665 _ 33351682 |
Tatal issued share capital 34,270,082 665 33.251.652 "~ 6ua

(i) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares
The Group has only one class of cquity shares having a par value of Rs. 2. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share The dividend proposed
by the Board of Dircctors 1s subject to approval by the sharcholders at the ensuing Annual General Mecting

In the event of liquidaiion of the zompany, the halders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company afier distribution of all
preterential amounts. The distribution wili be in proportion to the pumber of equity shares held by the sharcholders

(ii) Shares reserved for issue under Employee Stock Option Scheme

During the finaucial year 2017-18, the Group introduced Caratlane Stock Option Plan 2017 (‘the Plan') This Plan supersedes the following stock aptions ana
stock option plans

4. Executive Managenent Stock Option Scheme 2009

b, CaratLanc Trading India Private Linuted Stock Option Scheme for Consultants, 2013

¢. Seniur Management Stock Optian Scheme, 2012
As per the plan, Board of Dircctors grants options to the employees of the Company The vesting period of the option is ane to four ycars from the date ol gran!

Oplions granted under the Scheme can be exercised within a period of six years from the date of vesting. For ernployees [caving the urganizalion, an oplion cas
be exercised within 3 months from the date of resignation.
During the year the Company granted 43,000 options to cmployees.

A maximum af 714,017 options ara issuable under this plan The movement in options issued are as below:

Particulars For the year Weighted  For the year ended ~ Weighted average
ended average cxercise 31 March 2021 exercise price
. 31 March 2022 price
Options owtstanding at the beginning of the year 552,000 150 488,300 126
Options granted during the year 43,000 474 70,000 328
Options forfeiied dunng the year (2,600) 295 (5.600) 230
Opuons exercised during the year (18.400) 135 (1.200) L E
()utslu!dllg at the end of the yeur 574,000 174 S52.000 il
Options cxcrcisnble at the end ol the year 424,900 L6 436,900 UK

Fair value measurcment
The fair value at grant datc is determined using the Black-Schales-Merion Madel which takes into account the exereise price, the term of the option. the sharc

price at grant date and expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and dhe risk free interest rate for the term of the option

The key inputs used in Black-Schozes-Merton Model for culculaing fair value of options under the scheme as on the date of prant mic as follows:

The weighted average remaining contractual life ol the options outstanding as of March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 under the Caratlane stock Options Plan
was 6 years and 7 years respectively

The fair value of the options is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes-Merion Model with the following assumptions:

31 March 2 31 March 2021

- Particulars S S, I 022

No of options granted 43,060 70,000
Date of grant July 28,2021 January 28,2001
Vesting period 4 years 4 years
Dividend yield (%) - .
Volatility rate (%) i :
Rusk free rate (%) 605% 597%
Expected life of optons (ycars) 558 58
Weighted average fair value of opuons per share (Rs ) 609 _;E,‘f
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13 Sharc capital (continued)

(ii) Shares reserved for issue under Employce Stock Option Scheme (continued)

The stock price of the Company is arrived using the List round of funding closest to the grant date. Implied volatility i
ated during the past period The expected time to maturity/ expected life of the options is the period for which the Company expects the
he risk free rate considered for calculation is based

listed companics has fluctu

oplions to be alive, which has been tuken as 10 years subject to adjustment of Lime lapses from the date of grant. T

on the yield on Government Securities for 10 years as on the date of valuation

During the year ended March 31, 2022, the Company recorded employee compensation of Rs 165 lakhs (Previous year : Rs 36

of profit and loss towards options granted / forfeited / wxpited Refer note 23 for further details.

(i) Reenneiliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the cud ol the year

s the unit at which the price of shares of peer

lakhs) in the consolidated statement

As at 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2021

1
i
|

Particulars Amount Amount
o No.ofshares | oo iniakhe | 0" | Ro.intakhs
Liquite shares with voting rights
At the beginning of the year 33,251,652 665 33,250,452 665
Add Issue of shares pursiant to options being gxereisal by employees” - 18,400 0 1,200 -
Al the end of the year 33.270,052 665 33,251,652 665
=) Represents amownt less than Rs. | lakh
1) Details of shares held by sharcholders holding more ihan 5% of the aguregate shares in the Compuny
As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Particulars Y Yo
No. of shares held . No, of shares held ]
i —— - holiling holding |
Fapraity shares with volu rights
Mr Mithun Padamchand Sacheu 3,835,327 11 53% 3,835,327 11 53%
Mr Siddhartha Padamchind Sacheti 3,700,000 11 12% 3,700,000 11 13%
Mr Padamchand Sacheti 1,655,000 497% 1,655,000 4 98%
[itan Compan. Limited* o 24.036.525 7225% 24,036,325 _T229%
Total 33,226,652 99.87% 33,226,652 99.92%
* Includes shares held by individuals/ dircetors on behulf of Titan Company Lumited
{v) Sharchalding of Promoters e ——— o
l As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021 e !
; Promoter name No. of Shares | % of total shares ‘%.' Chauge No. of Shares | % of total shares '/ Char ]
L during the vear | _ during the vear |
i Titan Company Limted® 24,036,325 72.25% - 24.036,325 72 29% 1
Mt Mithun Sacheti 3.835,527 11 53% 3,835.327 1133%
Mr Siddhartha Padamchand Sacheti 3,700,000 11 12% 3,700,000 11 13%
Mr Padamchand Sacheli 1,655,000 4.97% - 1,655,000 4 98%

* Includes shares held by individuals/ directors on behalf of Titan Company Limited

Noie:

\5 &/I The above excludey share allotted to certin employe under the Caratlane Stock Option Plan 2017 aggregating 1o 43 400 cquity shares

gl
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Other cquity
A As at As at
Part r
Articulars 31 March2022 31 March 2021
Sccuritics premium 40,978 40,924
(clinounis received on issue of shares in excess of the par value has been classified as sccuritics premiwm)
Stock options outstanding account 831 718
(Shares gramied to employee under employez stock aption plan)
Retained camings (31,401 {40,390y
(Retained carnings comprise of the Company's prior years ' losses afier tax)
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve 13 -
(Represenis reinstatement of foreign currcrcy balunces of subsidiary)
Other comprehenstve income (244) (130)
(Represenis uctnarial gain or lnss on rem-asurement af net defined benefit liability and effective portions of
gains and lass on designated portian of hedging instruments in a cash flow hedge} . e
10,137 1,125
Financial liahilities
i. Borrowings
Particulars =1 As at Asat
i 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
At amortised cost:
Secured
876

Long-term borrowings (Term loan)*

Less: Cusrrent maturities of long-term borrowings (657)

219

* Securcd against the corporate guarantee sued by Titan Company Limited at an interest rate of 0.5% per annum
‘The effective interest rate of the term loan was 8 19% per annum and is payable over 48 equal moathly installments heginning from 1 Junc 2019 Current revised rate as
per the bank is 5.5% from 22 March 2021 A prepayment of Rs.657 lakhs of the principal amount was made during the previous year

ii. Lease liabilities

Particul T As at - Asat
s ) 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
I.casc liabilities (Refer note 30) 10.293 ER AR
10,293 8L
jii. Other financial liabilities
; j As at Asal
Particutars 31 March2022 31 March 2021
Rental deposit (Refer note 30) 312 304
£ 304
Other non-current liabilities
. As at - Asnt
Tartipuiace 31 March2022 31 March 2021
Deferred rental deposit (Refer note 30) ) 108 — 128
s ___ 128
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17  Provisions

.

Particulars As at As at
i 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Prowssion for gratuity {Refer note 31) 499 339
Provision for compensated absences (Refer note 31) 175 62
674 401
Financial liabilities
i, Borrowings
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Secured
Bank overdrafl and cash credit** 2.632 1,002
Current maturitics of long term borrowings* 657 653
Unsecured
Commercial paper (Refer note 34) 14,865 10,404
18,154 12,058

** Secured against the Company's inventory, receivables and movable fixed assets on pari-passu basis. The interest rate on the overdraft varies from 4 3% to 8% per

annum and is payable at monthly intervals. The overdraft is payable on demand.

The Company has filed statements as at the quarter end with the banks which are in agreement with the books of accounts as at respeclive quarter ends

ii. Gold on loan

Particulars ’ As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Secured o
Payable 1o banks* 23,643 11.56%
23,643 11,569

m various banks under gold on loan scheme. The interest rate of the

*Secured against inventory and receivables Includes amounts payable against gold purchased [ro
credit period under the aforesaid arrangement is 180

gold on loan varies from 2.25% to 2.75% per annum a&s at 31 March 2022 and is payable at monthly intervals. The
days from the date of the delivery of gold.

iii. Lenase liabilities

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

1ease liabilities (Refer note 30) 1,849 1,684
1,849 1,684

4
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18 Financial liabilities (continued)

iv. Trade payables

As at

Particulars

L 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Trade payables = -
Outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises [Refer note (1) and (b) below] 3,970 a1s
Outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterpriscs
- Creditors for goods 8,689 4,038
- Creditors for services 4,044 3.055

17273 7708

(a) Ageing of Trade Payables :

As at 31 March 2022 : .

Outstanding for following periods from duc date i

B of payment :

— S S Less than I year # More than | \'e:l'l:-‘m 1

(i) MSME 1961 e

(1) Others 13,242 61

{i11) Disputed dues — MSME . -
{iv) Disputed dues — Others . - = -

Tatal - R = s 203 T

# icludes amount not duc
* The outstanding amount for more than a year to 2 year amounts to Rs 4 lakhs for MSME and Rs. 32 Iakhs for others, Mare than 2 year (o 3 years amounts to Rs Nl

for MSME and Rs |1 Lakhs for others and Tor more than 3 years amounts to Rs Nil for MSME and Rs. 18 Lakhs for others

As at 31 March 2021: R ——

Outstanding for following periods from due date
of payvment
l.oss than | vear# | More than | year* |
(i) MSME 614! !
(1) Otbers 759 | 34
(1in) Disputed dues - MSME - .
{iv) Disputed dues — Others | - ! o
Totat [ 7,673 1 __35'_5

i includes amount not due
* The outstanding amount for more than a year to 2 year amounts to Rs 1 lakh for MSME and Rs. |1 lakhs for others, More than 2 year to 3 ycurs amounts 10 Rs Nil

for MSME and Rs 6 Lakhs for others and for more than 3 ycars amounts to Rs Nil for MSME and Rs. 17 Lakhs for others.

(b} Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micre, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006:
There are no matenal dues owed by the Group 10 Micro and Small enterprises, which are outstanding for more than 45 days during the year and as at 31 March 2012
Tivs information as required under the Micro. Small and Medium Enterpriscs Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such parties have boen

identificd on the basts of information availahle with the Group and has been relied upon by the auditors

Particulars T - o Asal As at
31 March 2022 3% March 2021
(a) the principal amount and the interest due {hereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of cach
accounting vear,
- Principal 3.970 6LS
- Interest - -
(b} the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms ol scction 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterpriscs - -
Develapment Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the pavment made 1o the supplier beyond the
appointed day during each accounting year:
{c) the amount of interest duc and payable lor the period of delay in making payment {which has been paid but - -
bevand the appointed day during the year) but without adding the terest specified under the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act. 200¢.
(d) the amount of interest aceruzd and remaining unpaid at the end of cach accounting ycar: and : -
(c) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable cven in the succeeding years, until such daiwe when
the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Smal! and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.
3,970 615

Note: Dues to Micro and Small Enterpnses have been determined to the extent such parties have been identitied on the basis of ilormatien vollected by the

V Management This has been relied upon by the auditors
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18 Financial liabilities (continued)

v. Other financial liabilities

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Capital creditors 221 12
Sceurity deposits - 89
Employec payables 953 -
1174 101
19 Other current linbilities
Particulars As at As ot
o - S S === 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Deferred rental deposit 27 23
Statutory ducs 350 314
Contract liability (Refer note 33) 382 274
Advance from franchisee 45 45
Advance {rom customers 3,495 2,478
4,300 3,135
20 Provisioos
Particulars As at As nt
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Provision for gratuity (Refer note 31) 130 71
Provision for compensated absences (Refer note 31) 118 33
Provision for warranty 105 60
353 164
Note a: Provision for warranty T
‘Movement below is for provision of warranty during the year: I
Particulars v Axat
. 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Opening balance 60 50
Provisions made during the year 93 21
Utilsations / reversed during the year (48) (11
Provision at the end of the ycar 105 60

N
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21 Revenue from operations

For the year cnded

Farticulars o 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Export T 3,749 2,736
[Jomestic 121,812 68,789
Sale of products 125,561 71,525
QOther operating revenue 2 45
- 125,563 I
. For the vear ended
Parsicalars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Conwracted price ’ 148,553 84,874
Reduction towards variable components 22,992 13.349
. 125,561 71,525

The reduction towards variable consideration comprises of scheme discaunts, incentives, taxes ctc.

22 Other income

0 BT For the vear endcrd__;h o

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Franchisce signaling fees —_v 95 1o
Deferred rental income 69 65
Rent deposit equalization 9 20
Interest income on financiul assets carried al amortised cost (Refer note 30) 566 114
Prafit on sale of property, plant and zquipment (Net) 14 =
Net gain on sale of curreat investments 33 43
Miscellaneous income 113 88
899 T
23 (i) Cost of material d I — B
Particulars ) o " For the vear ended e
31 March 2022 3i March 2021
Inventories of Raw matenals af © e bepunmng of the vear 5047 N
Add: Purchascs 100,933 34717
Less; Inventories of Raw matenls at the end of the year o 2483)
93.4Y8
(ii) Purchases of stock-in-trade e
. For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Purchases of traded goods 12,152 o708
12,132
(i) Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress L
- For the vear ended
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Finished goods
- Closing stock 14,147
- Openng stock 10,308
3.4
Work-in-progress
- Closing stock 1,078 186
- Opening stock 486 s
592 163
Stock-in-trade
- Closing stock : 7,730 5,773
- Openng, stock 5,773 __ 5951
V 1,957 (177)
’ 21,050 3,734
- S-S
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24

25

27

v

Employve benelils expense

For the year ended

PATRERN 31March2022 31 March 2020
Salaries, wages and bonus - 8,013 5,352
Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer note 31} 231 181
Stall welfare expense 554 324
Employee sharc based payment expense (Refer note 13) 165 3o
8,963 5,792
Finance cost
i = - For the vear ended
Facticalirs 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
luterest on borrowings T 1,093 1,145
Interest on lease liabilities 984 Lali}
COthers 7 4
2,084 2,068

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Particulars

For the year ended

I:!cprccla?mn of property plant and equipment (Refer note 5(:1) -

Depreciation of right of use asset (Refer note 6)

Amortisation of intangible asscis (Kefer note 5(ii))

Qther expenses

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
674 441

1,453 1,241

537 451

2,664 2.183

For the vear ended

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 Miarch 2021
Adverusing 9789 s
Agenl commission 7.583 4016
Rent (Refer note 30) 132 .
Freight and forwarding 1,598 1,074
Travelling and conveyance 3l a3
Prolessional service charges 1,518 830
Bank charges 664 350
Software expenditure 914 353
Allowance for doubtful advances | 0
Bad debts written off 26 .
Allowance for doubtful rade receivables - 20
Power and fuel 183 Lol
LCommunication expenses 104 99
Rates and taxes 65 7l
Oirector sitting fee (Refer note 29) i3 28
Repairs and maintenince 422 358
Insurance 51 36
Payments to auditors (Refer note be.ow) 47 i3
1 os5 on sale of property, plant and equipment - 3
Property, plant and equipment wniten ofl 33 3
Intangible assets written aff -
Stores and consumables 168
Rovalty (Refer note 29) 191
Miscellancous expenses 471

T 2429

Puyment to auditors

For the year cnded

SRS ek B 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
For statutory audut 30 . ad
For 1ax audit 2 >
COuter matters 14 3
Reimbursement of aut-of-pocket expenses 1 1
. B
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28

29

(ii)

Enrnings per share

Reconciliation of hasic and diluted shares used in computing per share

For the ycar ended

Earticulare . 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Basic and diluted profit per share

Profit afier tax 8.929 162

Number of weighted average shares considered for calculation of basics carning per share 33,260,005 33,251,451

Add : Dilutive effcet of stock cptions 225978 199,346

Number of weighted averape shares considered for caleuiation of diluted carning per share 33,485,984 33,750,797

Earning per share

Nonunal value of sharc (in TNR) 2 2
Earnings per shure - Basic (in INR) 2685 0 4y

Earnings per shure - Diluted (in INR} 26.67 J48_

Related parties

Relationship

a) Holding company Titan Company Limited

b) Enterprises in which Key Management Personnel or relative of — Not A Box, Partnership Firm

Key Management Personnel hes sianificant influence Freshworks Inc
Microgo, ILP

¢) Key management personnel

d) Subsidiary

Luxury Onlme Retail Private Limited
Jaipur Gems and Handierafls Private Limited
Starfirc Gems Private Limited

Mr. Mithun Padamchand Sacheti, Managing Dircctor

Mr Bhaskar Bhat, Non-execative Dircctor

Mr Ashck Kumar Sonthalia (w.e.f. 26 April 2021}

Mr. C K Venkataraman, Non-cxecutive Director (Resigned 20 Avgust 2020)

Mr Subranianiam Somasundaram, Non-cxccutive Director (Resigned w et 27 Apnl
20210

Mr Sandecp Anant Kuthalli, Non-executive Director

Mr Ajoy Hiro Chawla, Non-executive Dircctor

Mr Mathrubootham Rathnagirish. Independent Director (Resigned on 27 April 2021)

Ms. Neelam Chhiber, [ndependent Director

Mr Manoj Bhanawat, Chief Financial Officer

Mr Bharatraj Panchal (Company Secretary) (Resigned 20 August 2020)
Ms. Ahona Das (Company Sceretary) (w e f. 25 September 2020 )

StudioC Inc., USA

Transactions with the relatcc partics during the year:

Namc of the related party Naturc of trapsaction

For the year ended

31 March 2021

. 31 March 2022
Jaipwr Gems and | landicrafts Private Limited Sale of gouds ! q
Purchase of goods £
Reimbursement of expenses 5
Sale of Property, piant & 0
equipment
Starfire Gems Private Limited Purchase of gaods 398 70
Sale of goods 28
Other expenses - Rent 23 e
Reimbursement of expenses 2 |
Freshworks Inc Other expenses - Miscellancous kL 13
Luxury Online Relail India Provate Limited Reimbursement of expense - G
‘Titan Company Limited Purchase of goods 216 869
Sale of goods = 820
Rayalty 191 167
Bad debts written oft 2
Services - qs
Purchase of capital goods 1 14
Rent and miscellaneous 50 49
Insurance and Salary expenses 296 319
Interest on corporate guarantce 5 14
Mithun Padamchand Sacheti Dircctor’s remuneration 182 173
Manoj Bhanawat Remurcration 76 66
I 7

Ahona Das Gupta

Remunerabon
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29

(i)

i)

Ll
30.1

30.2

Related party disclosures (coatinued)

Transactions with the related partics during the year (continued):

Name of the related party

For the year ended

31 March 2021

! - B Nature ohfn?sachnn 31 March 2022

Neelam Chhiber Sittmg fees 12 12

Haresh R Chawla Sitting fees 6

Bhaskar Bhat Sitting fees 7 7y

Sandeep Anant Kuthalli Situng fees 6 5

Mathruboatham Rathnaginsh Sitting fees 1 4

Neelam Chhiber Commission to Dircctors 11

Haresh R Chawla Commission to Dircctors 6 -

Bhaskar Bhat Commission to Direttors 8

Sandecp Anant Kulhalli Commission to Directors 7 -

Matheubootham Rathnagirish Commission to Directors 1

Not A Box Reimbursement of . 8
expenses/services ~ Receivable

Microgo LLP Reimbursement of 4 3
expenses/services - Receivable

Related party ¢losing balavees as on balance sheet date:

. . As at Asat
Name of the related party Nature of transaction 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Starfire Gems Private Limited Trade payable 40 55

Trade receivables 28
Seccurity deposit [4
Titan Company Limited Trade payable 93 174
Royalty payable 172 -
Trade receivable 5 20%
Microgo LLP * Trade payable 0
Security deposit 0 -
Not A Box Reimbursement of 6 &

expenses/scrvices - Recervable

*Represent amount less than | lakh

Notes:

a) The above information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identificd on the basis of information available with the Group and relied

upon by the auditars

b) The above figures do not mclude provisions for encashable leave, gratuity and pension, as scparale actuacial valuation are not available

Leases

Amounts recognised in balance sheet

. As at Asat
- s i 31 Masch 2022 31 March 2021
(i) Right-of-use ussets 6
Buildings 1417 4.487
{ii) Lease liabilities
Non-current i5(u) 10,293 7813
Currem 18(1i1) I ) 1,684
12,142 9.497
(iii} Lease receivables
Non-current 7 3,482 3,630
Current 10(v1) 625 689
4,107 4,319
Amounts recognised in the siatement of profit and Joss
" Asat As it
Rarbwlts I Nate 31March2022 31 March 2028
(11 Deprectation and amortisation expense
Butldings 26 1,453 1,241
(1} Interest expense (included i finance cost) 25 984 a20
(11} Interest income on sub-lease Gncluded w other income) n 566 a4
(1v) Expense relanng o short-larm leases 211 427 247
(v) Expense relatng (o vanable lease payments 27 )
X (317) (3421

{\1) Rent concessions

(a) Short-term lease has been accounted for applying paragraph 6 of Ind AS 116 - lease and accordingly recognized as expenses in the consolidated siatement

of profit and foss.

(b) The total cash autflow for the year ended March 31. 2022 amounts to Rs 3,014 lakhs (Previous year 2,385 lakhs)
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Employee benefit obligations

a) Defined contribution plan
The contributions recognized i the consolidated statement of profit and loss during the year are as under.

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Employec provident fund 220 13
Employec siate insurance 11 5

Particulars

b) Defined benefit plan - Gratuity (non-funded)
Under the defined benefit plan, the company provides for a lumpsum payment ta cligible employees, at reurement or terminahon of employment based on

the last drawn salary and years of employment with the company

The plan typically exposes the company to actuarial risk such as intercst risk and salary risk.

A movement in the bond interest rate will impact the plan liability

The present value of the defined benefit plan Liability 1s calculated by refercnce to the
future salaries of plan participants, as such an increase i the salary of the plan
participants and vice-versa.

Interest risk
Salary risk

The principal assumptions uscd for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2020

Discount rate (p.a ) 6.00% 330,

Salary escalation rate (p.a.)

- Comporate 10.60% 8400

- Non-corporate 8.56% G 50%

- Manufacturing 6.97% 3 75%

Attrition rate

- Corporate 26 60% 25.83%

- Non-corporate 25 12% 2B 51%

8.28% _1034%

- Manufacturing .

- The employees of the Company ure assumed to retire at the age of 58 years
- The mortality rates considered are as per the published rates in the Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) Ult table.

Seasitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumplions occurmng at the end o1 the
reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

o For the year ended 31 March 2022

Particulars S e
Discount rate Escalation rate

Defined benefit obligation when a plus 50 bps for respective rates is applied 6ld o tdd

Defined benelit obligation when a minus 50 bps for respective rates is applicd 614 o

For the year ended 31 March 2021

Particulars o
= Discount rate Escalation cmne

Defined benefit obligation when a plus 50 bps for respective rates is applied 400 _ 17
Defincd benefit obligation when 2 minus 50 bps for respeetive rates is applied a8 _4np
: ) TAsat As at
Matarhy prefile : 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Expected benefits for year 1 130 86
Expected benefits for year 2 114 15
Expected benefits for year 3 101 67
Expected henefits lor year 4 86 59
Expected bencfits for year 5 74 do
37l 49

Txpected benefits in next § yeors
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32

33

V

Employee benefit obligations (continued)
Companents of defined benelit costs recopnised in the consalidated statement of profit and loss are as follows:

Particulars - Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
90 a4

Current service cosl
Past service cost '
Interest on net delined benedi: liability 19 18

Total expense charged to the consolidated statement of profit and loss 1 — 12

Components of defined benehit costs recognised in ather comprehensive income arc as follows

Particulars - - - Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Remeasurements during the year = 157 (3)

‘The service cost and the net interest expense for the year are mcluded in the 'Salancs, wages and bonus’ line item in the consolidated statement of profit and

loss. The remeasurement of the net defined liability is included in other comprehensive income The amount included wn the consolidaied balunce sheet
arising from the entitys abligation in respect of s defined benefit plans is as follows:

Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Opening defined benefit liabilily 410 a2i
Expense charged 1o consolidated statement of profit and loss 110 i1
157 3

Amounl recogmised outside the consolidated slatement of prolit and loss account
(48) (1Y)

Employer contributions R
Closing defined benefit liahility 629 _ _,:‘,10,

¢) Compensated absences

This provision covers the Company's liability for carned leave

Provision as at March 31, 2022 amounting to Rs, 118 lakhs (2021° Rs 33 lakhs) 13 presented as current, since the Company based on past experience does
not expect all employees to avail the full amount of accrued leave or requirc payment for such leave within the next 12 months.

Simular assumptions have beca made as per the defined benefit plan
The service cost and the net iterest expense for the year are included in the 'Salaries, wapes and bonus' line item in the statement of prolfit and loss [he
remeasurement of the net hability 1s included in other comprehensive income. The amount included in the consolidated balance sheel arising from ihe

entity’s obligation in respect of its compensated absences is as follows:

Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2022 31 Mavch 2021

Compensated absenees
Non-curmrent 175 o2
Currenl 118 . 32
293 95

Scgment reporting

The Chief Operating Decisien Maker ('CODMY evaluates the Group's performance and allocates resources based on analysis of various perlormance
indicators by industry classes Accordingly, scgment mformation has been presented for industry classes The operating segment has been dentilied to be
“Jewellery” as the CODM reviews business performance at an overall Group level as one segment

Contract asset and liability
Contracl asset represents the amount of goods expected to be received by the Group on account ol sales return, Contract liability represents (nc aggregate
amount of the transaction prce allocated to the perfarmance obligations that are unsalisficd as of the end of the reparting penod Thus. 1t represents the
value of sales the Group estimates 1o be returned on account of sales retum

_As at

Nature Asal

a N s s me— 31 March2022 31 March 2021

Contract liability

Opening balance 24 143

Less: Provision reversed towards sales retumns (27143 (143)

Add: Provision towards sales return (reversed) / created 382 274

Closing balance : - 382 _____; ] i__ﬁj__

Contract assets

Opening balance d 197 100

Less: Reversal of inventories Jor sades returns 1973 1100)

Add: Inventories towards provision for sales retumn 204 197
264 197

Closing balance — _ _
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(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

v

Commercial paper
The following tables set forth, for the penod indicated, details of commereial puper:

March 31, 2022
Maturitics 0-1 Month 2-3 Montbs 4-6 Months
Face vaiue - 15,000
Carrving value . . = 14,875
The following tables set forth, ratings assigned by credit rating agency at March 31, 2022
Instrument T ) S W LCRA
Commereial paper Al+
Contingent liabilities and conmitments ——
Particulars s Asut

31 March 2022 J1 Mareh 2021
- Guarantees excluding financial guarantees -
- Claims against the Company aot acknowledged as debts:

677 102

Salcs tax matters {refer note (d) below)
- Other money for which the Campany is contingently liable

The Supreme court of India i the month of February 2019 had passed a judgement relating Lo definition of wages undcr the Provident Fund Act, 1952

However, considering that there are numerous inferprefative issues relating io this judgement and m the absence of rehable measurement of the provision for
the carlier periods, the Company ltas made a pravision for provident fund contribution based on it's interpretation of the smd judgement The Company will
evaluate its position and update its provision, if required, on receiving lurther clarity on the subject. The Campany does not expect any material impaci of

the same

During the vear ended 31 March 2022, the Company has reccived a Show Causc Notice (‘SCN’) dated 28 March 2022, from the office of the Directorate oi
Enforcement. Government ol India (‘DOE’) As per the SCN, the office of DOF has alleged that the Company has received Foraign Dircet Investment
(‘FDI') during the years 2011 50 2014 in lieu of sharcs to overseas investor, which has been utilised i Single Brand Retail Trading without approval from
{he RBL Further, it has been alleged that the Company has made retail sale by online mode during the Financial Year (*FY™) 2010-11 ta 2014-15 n Singlc
Brand Retail Trading of ecommerce business which is in contravenlion af provisions of Section G(3)(b) of the Foreign Ixchange Managenient Act, 1999
(“FEMA™) The Company, based upon the management bricfing, has ublained a legal opinion dated 28 April 2022 ou the aloresaid malter As per ihe
opmion, dunng the years under consideration, the Company was engaged in the activities of wholesale trading and manuficturmg (through contract
manufacturing) in which 100 per cent FDI under the automatic route is permitted, and hence the Company was in comphance with the applicable FEMA

iih the applicable policies, press notes and circulars issued, in conducting its business While the Campany 15 i the pracess of pioviding a

regulations read w
tion. the Compam

formal responsc to the SCN. based on the legal opuuon and management asscssment of transactions for the ycars under cansidera
cansiders that no provision is required o ?c carricd 1 the linancial statements fur the year ended 31 March 2022

Out of the above claim of Rs 677 lakhs, the contention of the Company fo the department was that 1t had paid Rs. 615 lakhs by way of not transionine 10
the GST regime. which again was mentioned by the principal commissionar tn his demand order It is on the ground of non submission of back up
documents. the above demand was raised Further, the Company had taken certification from a Chartered Accountant on such non-transitonmg of CENVAT

credit to GST regime.

Note: The above amounts ace based on the notice of demand or the Assessment Orders or notification by the relevant authoritics. as the case may be. and the
Company is contesting these zlaims with the respeehive authorities. Outflows, if any. arising out of these claims would depend on the oulcan:e of the
decistns of the appellate authorities and the Company's nghts for future appeals befare the judiciary
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36 Financial instruments

36.1 Categorics of financial instruments

Financial assefs

" As at As at
ol 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
a, Mcasured at amortised cost
- Loans 10 emplayces (Refer note 11(v)) 198 13
- Security and other deposits (Reler note 7 and note 11(vi)) 1,264 1223
- Trade reccivables (Refer note 11(i1)) 1,057 882
- Cash and cash cquivalents (Refer note 1 10::)) 592 495
- Other bank balances (Refer note 11(iv)) 178 o7
- Lease receivables (Refer note 7 and note 11{vi)) 4,107 4319
-Other financial assets (Refer note 7(ii) and note 11{vi) 590 1.455
Total financial assets measured at amortised cost 7,987 8.513
Total financial asscts 7,987 8.513
Financial liabilities
. : As at Asat
s 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
a. Measured at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL")
- Gold un luan 23.643 L1 569
Total financial liabilities measured at FVTPL. (a) 23,643 11,569
a. Measured at sinorfised cost
- Borrowings 18,373 12928
- Rental deposits 312 393
- Trade payables 17,273 1,708
- Lease liabilitics 12,142 9,497
- Qther financial liabilities 1.174 12
Total financial liabilitics measured at amartised cost (b) 49,274 30,538
Total financial liabilitics (a + b) 72,917 42,107

36.2 (i) Fair value hierarchy
This note explains about basis for determination of fair values of various financial assets and liabilities:
Particulars . Level | Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value - March 31, 2022
Financial Labilities

- Gold Joan . 23.643 J———— e £
Total financial assets 23,643 =

Particulars I Level 1 Level 2

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value - March 31, 2021

- Gold loan 11,569 - -
Total financial assets 11,569 — = e -

Level 1: Level | hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices This includes listed equity instruments, mutal funds The fair value of all
equity mstruments that are traded in the stock exchanges 1s valued using the closing price at the reporting periad The mutual funds are valued using the closing net
assel value .

Level 2+ The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example: Over-the-counter derivatives) is determmned using vahuwon
techniques which maximize the use of vbservahle data and rely s litle as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required 10 fair value an
instrument arc vbservable, the instrument is :ncluded in level 2

Level 3 1f one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3 ITis is the case ol unlisted mstuments,
depasits, employee loans ete,

(ii) Yaluat:on technique used to determine fair value

Speeific vaiue techmques used to value financial instruments include
- the use of quoted market prices for listed instruments
- the fair value of remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis

(iiii) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilitics that are not measured at fair value (but fair value diselosures are required)
\/ﬁ/ The carying values of financial assets and habilities approximate the fair values
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36 Financial instruments (continucd)
36.3 Credit risk
Credit risk refers ta the risk thar the counterparty will default on ils contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group The Group deals majorly with
creditworthy counterpartics and ohtains sullicient collateral, where appropriate as a means of miligating the risk of financial loss from defaults. Credit risk s managed
by the Group through approved credit nomis, establishing credit imits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers 1o which the Group grants credit
terms in the normal course of business On account of adeption of Ind AS 109, the Group uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss Credit risk
arises principally from the Group's receivables from customers Credit risk on liquid funds 15 limited because the counterpartics are banks Refer note 11(i1) for the
disclosures for trade reccivables
36.4 Liquidity risk
The Group invests its surplus funds from tume-to-time in various shart-term instruments. Security of funds and liquidity shall be the primary consideration while
deciding on the type of investments. The Group manages liqudity risk by maintaining adcquate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilitics, by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash tlows and by matching the maturity profiles of financial asscts and lisbilitics The Group expects 1o meet its other
abligations fiom operating cash flows and proceeds of maturing financial assets.
Liquidity risk tables
The following table below analyses the Group's Hinanciat babilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their maturitics for all non-derivative financia! hahilities
that arc net settied
The tables have been drawn on an undiscounted basis based on the cacliest date on which the Group can be required to pay
Particnlars As at As at
- 31 March2022 31 March 2021
Sccured bank overdraft/term loan facility, payable
- Amount used 3,508 2,535
- Amount unused 4,992 7.975
Sccured gold on kan facility, payable
- Amount used 23,643 11,569
- Amount unused 10,357 9,931
Liguidity anl interest vish tables
The following tables details the Group's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods The tables have been
drawn on an undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilitics based on the carliest datc on which the Group can be required to pay
R . As at 31 March 2022 o
Contractual maturities of financial liabilities Less than 3 > 3 months Tutal
: R months
Non-derivative
- Security deposits 20 292 1i2
- Horrowings 17,730 643 18,373
- Trade payables 16,681 592 17,2
- Gold loan 8,384 15,256 25,643
- Lease liabilities 1,387 10,755 12,142
- Other financial Liabilitics 221 953 1174
44,423 28,494 72,917
] As at 31 March 2021 e
Contractua) maturities of financial liabilities Luss than 3 >3 months ‘Tatal
o _months e
Non-derivative
- Security deposits - 193 393
- Borrowings 9,432 2,842 12,275
- Trade payabics 5,255 2,453 7708
- Gold loan 4319 7,250 11,569
- Lease liabilitics 418 9,082 G497
- Other finoncial liabilites 175 490 . hes
\J 19,596 S0 42107
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/.

Fingncial instruments (continucd)

36.8 Market risk

‘The markel cisks 1o which the Graup is exposed are price risk and foreign currency risk.

Price risk

The Ciroup 15 exposed 10 uctuations n gotd price (ncluding fluctuauions m forcigh currency ) arising on puretiase/ sale of pold

To manage the variability in cash flows. the Group cnters into dertvative financial instrunicnts to manage the risk associated with pold price Huctuations relating o all
the highly probable forccasted tansactions Such derivative financial instruments are primarily i the natare of future commodity contracts and forward loreign
exchange contiacts The nisk management stategy against gold price flucluation also includes procuring gold on loan basis, with a flexibility o fix price ot gold at any
time during the tenor of the loan.

The use af such derivative financial nstruments is governed by the Group's policies approved by the Board of Direciors, which provide written principles oa the use of
such instruments consistent with the Group’s risk management stratepy

As the value of the derivative instrument generally changes in response to the value of the hedged item, the economic relationship 15 established

The following table gives details of contracts as ai the end of the reporting year:

Particulars Naturc of hedge Average rale Quantity of hedge Words

(Per gram) instruments (KGS) Nominul smnvunt
31 NMarch 2022 Fair value 5173 1 Job
3} Mareh 2021 Cash Now 4476 4 197

Cash flow hedue

The Group asseases the effeetivencss of its designated hedyes by using the same hedge ratio as that resalting from the quzanhiies of the Ireclgr
insteument that the Group actually uses However, this hedge ratio will be rebalanced, when required (i e, when the hedge atio for usk minagement parposes is 10
lonper optimal bul the 1ish management objuctive remains unchanged and the hedge continues to qualify tor hedge accounting), by adjusting weightings of the hedged
tem and the hedgimg instrument

Soutees of hedue ineffectiveness nclude misimateh in the weightings of the hedged slem ard the hedging instrument and the selling rale

{ em and the hedpring

The line item 1 the consolidated halarce sheet that include the above hedgimg instruments are other financial assets and other financial habilibes
As ot March 31, 2022 the apgregate amount of gains under forward//uture contracts s recognised in “Other Comprehensive tncome " ane aceumulated in the cash flow
hedging reserve Detatls of movements in hedying reserve is as lollows

Particulars For the year ended For the yeur ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Bulance at beginning of the year (net of 1axes) i o

Changes in fun value of effective portion of cash tlow hedges - ats

Clenulative gain/loss) ansing on changes 11 fan value of cash tlow hedpes reclassified lo

consulidated siatcment of profit and loss ! (2}

Balunce at end of the year (net of laxes) e v

Fyir value hedpe

The Group designates derrvative contricts as hedging instruments Lo mitigate the risk of change in fair value of hedged item due to movement in gold prices Cranges i
the fair value of hedging instrumens and heedoed items that are designated and qualify as fan value hedges are recorded 1 the Stawement of Prohitand Loss Thecloie,
there will be no tmpact of the fiuctuation i tie price of the geld on the Greup's profit for the period

elow shows the postiion ol hedyging instruments and hedged items as on tie balance sheet date:

The table

Commaodity price risk Carrying value of Maturity date Impuct of fair value  Disclosure in balance
hedpe sheet
Hedped item Heidging instrument R I
Hedged ilem - fixed pold 571 2 lnveninies

1

2 months (2) Other financial assels

Hedging instiument - derivatives
other habitiies

Forewgn currency risk management

The Group is exposed to foreign axchange rish ansing thyough its sales and purehases denominated in various foreign currencies
(1) e risk management stratcey on foreign curency exchange Muctuation arising on account of purchase/ sal: of gold 15 covered above

(i) In respect of normal purchese and sale wransactions denominated i foreign currency, contracts are measured at fair value ditorglh the consoiidated siatoment of

protitand loss

The carrying amount of the Group's foreigm curreney denominated monetary assets and monetary Labilities at the end of the reportimg vear are us follows
Currency Luabilities us at Assets as of

B 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2022 31 Muich 2021
INR 430 161 600 '
*Represent amount less than | lac

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed o USD The Group's sensitivity to @ 125 merease and decrease in the INR against the relevant foreign cuniencics is presented below

The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign curreney denominated monetary items and adjusts their nanslation at the peniad end for o 1%e change in foregn
currency rales There is an increase in profit or cquity by Rs 17 lakhs where the INR strengthens 195 agamst the relevant currency Vor a 19 weakening oi the INK
againsi the relevant currency, theic would be & comparable decrease i profit or equity

In managements apinion, the sersitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inlerent forcign exchange risk because the expusure at the end of the reporting period does
not refieet the exposure durmg the year
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37 Estimated amount of contracts remaining 1o he exccuted on capital vccount and not provided for is Rs. 155 lakhs (Previous year Rs. 343 lakhs)

38 Disclosurc of Ratios

Ratio NMumerator Numeratar 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 Yo Variance ;
(a) Current ratio Total current assets | Total current liabilities i i 099 0.91 T TN
(b) Debt-equuty ratio Debt consists of Total equ:ty 170 723 -746%a
borrowings (fong i

term qnd short term) |

(c) Debt service coverage ratio * Profi: before finance |Finance costs + Principal 16 39% 10 95% 0%
cosls, depreciation  |repayments during the year }

and z=mortisation ‘

and (ax 1

(d) Return on equity rauo Prolit for the year | Total equity 82 66 9.07 5114l
(¢) Inventory tumover rauo Cost of goods sold | Average Inventory 213 220 -3a
(1) Trade receivables turnover ratio  |Revenue from Average rade recesvables 12951 8337 53%%|
apelauons 1

(&) Trade payables turnover tati Derivad purchases | Average trade payables 905 792 14%1
(h) Net capital tumover ratio Revenue from Waorking capital 337 2442 1279%|
operaions i

(i} Net profit raue Prolit before tax. Revenue fram operations 3.08% 0 23% i261%al
(3) Return on capital emploved * Profit before tax and | Tota! cquity 55% 125% -3t
finance cos! !

et

* Finance costs primarily consists of inleres: on borrowings and interest on lease liabilitics,

Notes:

(n) Debt=cquity ratio has improved owing 10 increased profitability during the ycar which led to increase in equity
(b) Debt-service coverage ratio, Return on equity ratio and net profit ratio has impraved owing to increased profits during the year

(c) Net capilal urnever ratio has improved owing to better working capital during the year and increase 1n revenues hy more

The Group has incorporaled a subsidiary name

The subsidusy company which is included m consolidation and the € “ampany’s holdings therein is as under

than 75% as compared [0 previous year

fy StudioC Inc on 11 Februany 2021 In the current financial year Caratlanc made an investnent of'S 1,50,000 in Studio

Name of the subsidiary Country of Holding % Htlldi;m a
incorparation 31 March 22 31 March 21
StudioC Inc United Staics 100% 100%
Additional information pursuant to para 2 of general instructions for the preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements:
Adduional imlormation as requircd hy Paragiaph 2 of the General Instructions for Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements 1o Schedule i to the 20173 Act
Net assets, i.e., tlntsfl‘a_ssets minus Consolidated profit
total liabilities L
hty o,
NaiEof theikatity As .a %'of As 2 % of consolidated
consolidated net Amount \mounf
profit
e _ assels e T
Pyrent ; Caratlane Trading Private Linuted 108% 11,732 111% a,873
Subsidiary: StudioC Inc 6% 1691) ey (791}
Adyustment ansing out of 2% (239) <24 REY]
consalidation
100% 10802 100" 8919
Share in ulh.!r comprchensive Total comprehensive income
income S
As Y of
DEWCRE e KRy chasolicated As % of total other
other Amount i Amoun!
i comprehensive income
comprehensive
s e income = )
Parent : Caratlane Trading Private Limited 100% (102) 11i% '!.T\S
Subsidiary: StudioC Jnc . = L 7945
Adjusiment arising oul of - - 2% 140}
consolidotion ST
100% (102) 100%% Hilr

[S

\

=
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40 Other statutory information :

41

42

for BSR & Co. LLP

{1} The CGroup does not have any Benami prapeny or any proceeding which is pending against the Group for holding any Benami property

(1i) The Group do not have any transactions with companies struck off,

(iii) The Group do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet (o be repistered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.

(iv) The Group has not traded or mvested in eryplo currency or viruzl currency during the financial ycar

(v1 The Group is not classified as wilful defiulter

{vi) The Group doesn't have any transaction which is not recorded 1n the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
asscssments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 such as search or survey

{vi1) No funds have been advanced or loancd or nivested (either from barrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Group fo or in any
ather personis) o entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediarics™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entitics identilied in any manner whalsoever by or on behalf of the Group (“Ultmate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guaraniee, security or the like on behall'of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(viti) No funds have been received by the Group from any persons) or entity(ics), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Group shall, directly or indircetly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneiciaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneliciaries

Impact of COV1D-19 (pandemic) .

The Group has taken into account all the possible tmpacts of COVID-19 in preparation of these consolidated financial statements, including but not limited to its
assessment of, liquidity and going concern assumption, recaverahle valies of its financial and non-financial assets, impact on 1evenue rECORNIlion owing 1o changes in
pricing and impact on leases The Group has carricd out this assessment based on pvailable internal and external sources of information upto the date of approval of
these consolidated financial statements and believes that the impact of COVIN-19 is not material to these consolidated financial statements and expects 1o recover the
carrving amount of its assets The impact of COVID-19 on the consolidated financial statements may differ from that estimated as at the datc of approval of these
standulone financial statements owing to the natwre and duration of COVID-19.

Capital management
The Group's policy 1o maintain a stable and strong capital stracuure with a focus on 1otal equity 5o as to mantain mvestors, creditors and market confidence and 10

sustain future development and growth of its business. In order to maintain the capital structure, the Group monitors the return on capital, as well as level of dividends
to cquity sharcholders. The Group aums to manage 1ls capital efficicucy so as to safeguard it ability to continue as a gong concern and to oplimize ceurns 1o all its
sharcholders Tar the purpose of the Group's capual management. capital includes issued capital and all other equity reserves and debt is mcluded as a part of
borrowings and gold loan.

Particulars As at As at
— 31 March 2022 3 Blurek 2020
Tomal debr * TR 13078
Towal equny 10,602 1 788
170% 3%

Debt o equity ralio
* Tatal debt inchides only borrowngs. Gold on loan and lease habilives has not been considered for the purpose of above
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